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Our mission is to consolidate
the leading market position
by providing a wide range

of value-added silicone
rubber products
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Corporate information

DNEEHR

SHARE INFORMATION

Listing Date:

Stock Name:

Stock Code:

Nominal Value:

Board Lot:

Public Floating as at
31 July 2013:

8 June 2007

Ta Yang Group
1991

HK$0.10

2,000 shares

258,625,000 (33.22%)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Mr. Chan Oi Fat

Telephone: (852) 3678 5088
Facsimile: (852) 3678 5099

FINANCIAL YEAR END

31 July
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Directors’ Profile

EE/[T

Huang Sheng-Shun
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, aged 59, is the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. He is responsible for the
development of our general corporate strategy, operation
management, planning and decision making. Mr. Huang,
together with Mr. Wu h Chen, founded the Group on 7 May
1991. Prior to the establishment of the Group, he was the
operation manager of a chemical company between June 1978
and May 1982. Afterwards, he worked at Ta Yang Oil N Fat
Industrial Co., Ltd. (X # i§ T 2 & 15 A BR A 7)), a private
company, and since 1986 became the company’s general
manager until 2005. Mr. Huang and his family members have
been the shareholders of Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd.
until Ta Yang Qil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd., ceased operations
and was wound up in April 2006. Save as disclosed above, there
is no relationship between Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd.
and each of the Group's companies, its directors, its substantial
shareholders and their respective associates. Mr. Huang is the
father of Mr. Huang Te-Wei, an Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Huang has also been a director of Formosan Union
Chemical Corp., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation, from 1 July 1987 to 30 June 1996 and
from 1 July 2002 to present. He has over 30 years of experience
in management positions in the chemical manufacturing
industry. Mr. Huang graduated from the Faculty of Law,
National Taiwan University in 1976. Mr. Huang is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Directors’ Profile

EE/[0

Huang Te-Wei
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Huang Te-Wei, aged 33, is the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He is the head of Control
Department and is responsible for overseeing the Group's
compliance and internal control matters. From 2008 onwards,
Mr. Huang was also responsible for the supervision of the daily
operation of the Group's factories in PRC and strategic
planning. Mr. Huang graduated from the Industrial
Administration stream, Department of Business Administration,
National Taiwan University and has completed his military
service in Taiwan. Mr. Huang is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Huang is the eldest son of Mr.
Huang Sheng-Shun, the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company.

Lin Hung-Ming
Executive Director and Research & Development Director

Mr. Lin Hung-Ming, aged 49, is the Executive Director and
research and development director of the Group. Mr. Lin joined
the Group in 1993 and is currently responsible for research and
development of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated from the
Department of Mechanics, Private Chih-Kwang Vocational High
School of Business and Technology. He has over 24 years of
experience in the silicone rubber industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lin was a factory manager of an electronics company
in Taiwan.

Wong Tak Leung
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, aged 52, is the Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager. Mr. Wong joined the Group in May
1993 and was subsequently promoted to deputy managing
director in 2001. Mr. Wong is responsible for the sales and
marketing functions of the Group. During 1981 to 1989, Mr.
Wong served in the Strategic Planning Department of Hong
Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited. Mr. Wong is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Directors’ Profile

EE/[T

Wu |lh Chen
Non-Executive Director and Adviser

Mr. Wu Ih Chen, aged 62, is the Non-Executive Director and
adviser of the Company. Mr. Wu has over 25 years of experience
in the silicone rubber industry. Mr. Wu, together with Mr. Huang
Sheng-Shun founded the Group on 7 May 1991. Presently, Mr.
Wu provides the Group consulting services concerning matters
relating to management and operation of the Company,
investment, merger and acquisition decision. Mr. Wu graduated
from the Aletheia University in 1971 and completed the
Studying Program for Hong Kong Senior Management in
Business organized by the Peking University in the PRC. Mr. Wu
is a director for the Eleventh Board of Directors of International
Association of Chinese Traders. Mr. Wu is also a director of one
of the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wu is the elder brother of
Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, the associate general manager of the Group.

Kirk Yang

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kirk Yang, aged 46, is the Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Yang was re-designated from
Non-Executive Director to Independent Non-Executive Director
on 15 November 2012. He holds Bachelor (with distinction) and
Master of Science degrees in Electrical Engineering from
Purdue University and Master of Business Administration
(Finance, Accounting and Marketing concentrations) from
University of Chicago.

Mr. Yang is currently a Managing Director and Head of Asia
Ex-Japan Technology Hardware and Components Equity
Research at Barclays Capital Asia Limited. Before that, Mr. Yang
held the same position at Nomura International (Hong Kong)
Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Yang served as a chief financial officer
in a leading private China IT software company and our
company. Mr. Yang was also a managing director and head of
Asia Technology Research of Citi Investment Research of
Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited based in Hong Kong
("Citi"”) where he was awarded the No.1 analyst by Institutional
Investors, Financial Times and Greenwich in 2004, 2006 and
2007 respectively in recognition of his accomplishment in
investment equity research industry and ranked top 3 during
most of his career. Before joining Citi, Mr. Yang served as a
director and head of Asia Technology Hardware Research at
Credit Suisse. Mr. Yang has more than eleven years of
experience in the investment banking equity research industry,
including worked at Goldman Sachs and BNP Paribas
respectively. Mr. Yang also has more than ten years of
experience in management consulting, sales/marketing and
engineering operation in various corporations such as A.T.
Kearney, Accenture, HP/EDS, Emerson Electric, IBM, and AT&T.
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Directors’ Profile

EE/[0

Hsieh Yu
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hsieh Yu, aged 65, is the Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. He obtained a certificate for solicitor
in Taiwan in 1977 and joined the Taipei Bar Association
immediately as a practicing Attorney-at-Law. He is the
responsible officer of B {2/ AE EHFT. He had been the legal
consultant for various corporations and organizations. Mr. Hsieh
graduated from the Faculty of Law, National Taiwan University
in 1976.

Jou Yow-Jen
Independent Non-Executive Director

Professor Jou Yow-Jen, aged 57, is the Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company. Professor Jou is currently
an associate professor of Department of Information and
Finance Management and Institute of Finance at National Chiao
Tung University. Professor Jou has been participated actively in
research on data analysis, time series analysis model, Ito model
application, Monte Carlo model, O-D mode and options pricing
etc. She has been knowledgable in statistics, econometrics,
financial time series analysis and financial information analysis,
and completed several fundamental researches on Economics
and Finance. Prior to joining the Company, Professor Jou was
an associate professor of Institute of Statistics at National Chiao
Tung University, the statistician of Directorate General of
Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan, R.O.C.
(Taiwan) and the planning controller of Taiwan Power Company.
Professor Jou obtained bachelor and master degree from
National Chung Hsing University and National Chen Chi
University in Taiwan respectively and Ph. D in doctorate in
Statistics from Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania.
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Directors’ Profile

EE/[T

Yeung Chi Tat
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, aged 44, is the Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company. He holds a bachelor degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong and a
master degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the
president of the Hong Kong headquarter of the International
Financial Management Association and the vice-president of
the Hong Kong Wine Merchants’ Chamber of Commerce. He is
currently the financial controller and company secretary of
Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited (Stock Code: 828), an
Independent Non-Executive Director of ANTA Sports Products
Limited (Stock Code: 2020), Boer Power Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1685), Billion Industrial Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2299) and Sitoy Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1023), all
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung had previously worked at a major
international accounting firm for over ten years. He possesses
experience in auditing, corporate restructuring and corporate
financial services.
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Senior Management Profile
SREBEAEBEN

Chan Oi Fat

Financial Controller & Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Oi Fat, aged 35, joined the Group in January, 2008 as
the financial controller and the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chan is mainly responsible for the financial and
accounting management and secretarial affairs of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was an audit manager in an
international accounting firm. Mr. Chan has over 12 years of
experience in professional accounting and auditing experience.
Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor in accountancy. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Wu Tien-Tao
Associate General Manager (Huzhou Office)

Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, aged 55, is the associate general manager.
He oversees the operation of Huzhou factory. Mr. Wu joined the
Group in August 2003 and has been responsible for the
operation of the Huzhou factory of the Group since then. Mr.
Wu has over 14 years of experience in the production of silicone
rubber and multiple layered and soft printed circuit boards. Mr.
Wu is the younger brother of Mr. Wu |h Chen, a non-executive
Director of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

“The Group's main focus will
be strengthening our financial

position preparing for-deployment

of new growth strategies at the
righttiming.”

Huang Sheng-ShunZ i 5
Chairman®/E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Ta Yang Group Holdings
Limited, | herewith present all shareholders the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 July 2013.

It was a challenging year for many players in the manufacturing
industry during the year. Economic uncertainties coupled with
the competitive landscape changes of the industry increased
the operational difficulties. The continuous shifts from
conventional electronic products to those portable devices with
touch-screen panels have adversely affected our business. We
started to restructure our capacities to cope with these
tremendous changes. Despite our continuous efforts in costs
rationalization and new business development, our results for
the year were still turned out less than satisfactory.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

By the end of the financial year, the Group's turnover decreased
by 11.7% to HK$551.3 million.

The Group's loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$131.6 million, (2012:HK$78.1 million) while
loss per share for the year was HK16.9 cents (2012: HK10.03
cents).
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Keypads for consumer electronic devices and computers and
notebooks continued to be our core businesses. During the
year, both segments have recorded a decrease. The sovereign
debt problem in Europe, sluggish recovery in the economy of
the United States in America (the “USA") and deceleration of
economic growth in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
depressed global demand and had an adverse impact on our
customer orders. In addition, the recent popularity of those
portable devices with touch-screen panels has immensely
slowed down the demand for conventional notebooks,
computers and mobile phones. As a result, some of the major
customers were experiencing difficulties and have inevitably
affected the Group's performance.

At the same time, despite of the cost control measures, the
operating costs still unavoidably rise. High manufacturing
overhead and continuous rising labour cost in the PRC keep
eroding our profit margin. The downturn of our business also
generated asset impairment losses that further deteriorated our
results during the year. Under the recent economic slowdown, it
is difficult to transfer the cost increments to the customers. All
these impacts caused the Group to have an unsatisfactory
operating results.

EBOE

HEEFERBRANEMMELHERRBES
RAEENZLER - RAFE  MHRIEST
B BUMERERRK XFNEBARB(EEDL
BERZARPEARANME ((HEDLELERT
BHEG T 2RER - XHBMANTFITEELED
TR - o OHERFEEREEN  EAE

BWTERECAEN AR MBEERNEE - &
M-ETEXFRLEERNE AEEXETHR
SHYE -

SRR - BE R PIREUE IR BIR A - EER A
B LR - RERASE BB IKRATERTT - #%
BERABRMNER RS - RPIEBBERBE - EXE
ERERK  EFEXERR/RT - EAMEERE
BT - BHPBASEINEREGREES - LR
EERAEEEEEEME -

18 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013



Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

OUTLOOK

Real recovery of the global economy is yet to be in sight, and
most of the Group's customers were expected not to be
performing well. Besides, tough operating environment in the
PRC remains challenges for all manufacturing industries. After
the substantial loss for the year, the Group’s main focus will be
strengthening our financial position preparing for deployment
of new growth strategies at the right timing. We will stay
concentrating on our core business for going through this
challenging period. Continuous efforts will be put on increasing
business volume with our existing customers and further
expanding our customer base while the tight cost control
measures will not be lossen.

The Directors are cautiously optimistic about the future
development of the Group’s business and the whole
management team is committed to working closely together for
the most timely resumption of profitability for the Group and
the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
the management and staff for their dedication and hard work
during these challenging times. The Group will strive to
strengthen our leading position in the industry.

Huang Sheng-Shun
Chairman and Executive Director
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Business Review & Outlook

FBOEKRRE

MARKET REVIEW

During the financial year, worldwide conditions were kept
continuously under pressure from sovereign debt crisis in
Europe, fiscal cliff in the U.S. and monetary tightening in the
PRC. Although there has been temporary relief from the debt
crisis and Japan’s Quantitative Easing Policy has been launched,
the global economy continued to remain uncertain. As a result,
the consumer confidence and spending still were weak. They
turned more conscious on expenditure to upgrade or replace
their electronic products. They are only willing to spend on
those innovative products. Hence, the immense popularity
achieved by tablet PC and 3G smartphones has slowed down
the demand for the conventional notebooks, computers and
mobile phones. As a result, it brought huge challenges to the
consumer electronic device market.

All these caused tremendous pressure to the business
environment of the Group, so the Group has recorded a
decrease in turnover during the year.
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Business Review & Outlook
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Company’s Overall Performance

During the year, the operating environment for manufacturing
industries remained tough and the market share of individual
player in electronic devices was reshuffled. The market became
even more competitive leading to lower demand from some of
the Group's major customers. The turnover for the financial year
ended 31 July 2013, decreased by 11.7% as compared to last
year. The primary source of income of the Group still derived
from sales of consumer electronic devices and computers and
notebooks, but its percentage to total turnover decreased from
42.7% to 38.7% and 32.7% to 30.8% respectively.

The portable devices with touch-screen panel such as
smartphones and tablet computers have continued to dominate
the market while the traditional ones accelerate to be phased
out. Inevitably, this trend has adversely affected the demand for
traditional products with keypads and hence the Group's
turnover.

To overcome the adversities of such situation, the Group has
strategically explored the market of non keypad products. With
the nature of more environmental friendly and fancy design, the
daily living products made of silicone rubber become more and
more popular. During the year, the Group has succeeded to
expand the customer base in this market. However, the demand
for such products is still not so significant at the moment. With
the increase of awareness in silicone products, it is believed it
will have obvious contribution to the Group.

Although, the Group has been continuously controlling
manufacturing overhead and general expenses, the operating
cost kept rising with the appreciating Renminbi and increasing
Consumer Price Index (“CPl"). At the same time, due to the
labour shortage in the coastal areas of the PRC, the labour cost
was still lifted during the year. In addition, with the efforts of
worldwide government to provide liquidity, this eventually led
to overheating, higher inflation rate and escalating raw material
prices. With the decrease in sales orders, the utilization rate of
the plant and machineries fall dramatically. Amid the
challenging operating environment, it led the Group to have
significant decrease in gross profit.
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Business Review & Outlook
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward to the future, the global economy is yet to be
fully recover, there were concerns of the US Federal Reserve's
plan to reduce the quantitative easing stimulus and signs of a
slowdown in the PRC's economy. Moreover, industry forecasts
predict that global shipments of both smartphones and tablets
computers will continue to increase in 2013 and onwards. It is
expected the market condition will remain volatile and
challenging in the coming year. The management will remain
cautious of the business outlook.

As the use of silicone rubber are becoming more and more
common in daily life, it is believed that this emerging markets
will show strong growth momentum and provide an exciting
business opportunity to the Group. Design innovativeness and
responsive quality production capability have become
increasingly important criterion for customers’ selection of their
suppliers. Therefore, the Group will continue to put more efforts
on research and development to explore the product quality,
develop application ability of raw material and product variety.
This proactive strategy will enable the Group to change to be
silicone rubber producers from keypad producers which can
have a broader mix in customer portfolio.

The continuous increase in production cost in the PRC and
appreciation of RMB have eroded most of the Group's profit.
With the view to improve the performance, the Group will
continue its tight cost controls and improvements in operating
efficiency and productivity.

We believed that these forward-looking efforts will strength the
leading position of the Group and pave the foundation in the
future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Turnover represents gross revenue generated from the sales of
our products, net of sales tax and other similar taxes. Our
turnover is affected by the volume of total products sold and
the product mix because our product lines have different selling
prices.

The consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 July 2013 was
decreased by 11.7% to HK$551.3 million (2012: HK$624.5
million) while our loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$131.6 million (2012: HK$78.1 million).

Basic loss per share of the Company was HK16.90 cents (2012:

HK10.03 cents) per share based on the weighted average
number of 778,541,000 shares in issue during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Keypads for consumer electronic devices

Turnover for the sales of keypads for consumer electronic
devices decreased by approximately 20.2% to HK$213.1 million
in 2013 from HK$266.9 million in 2012.

The global economy was still very volatile and Europe sovereign
debt crisis persisted together with the concerns on the US
Federal Reserve’s plan to reduce the quantitative easing
stimulus and signs of slowdown in the PRC’s economy. The
sluggish consumer spending in the major markets of the Group
was well reflected by the disappointing performance of the
customers during the year. They become more conservative on
the inventory level for the avoidance of obsolescence. This led
the turnover to decrease accordingly.

Mobile phone products

Turnover for the sales of mobile phone keypads increased by
approximately 70.5% to HK$35.4 million in 2013 from HK$20.8
million in 2012. The Smartphones with touch-screen panels has
received mainstream attention in the market from consumers,
so the demand for the conventional mobile phones with
keypads was gradually phased out. However, during the year,
the Group has explored the market and began to produce
those mobile phone peripheral products with silicon rubber.
This caused the turnover in this segment to increase
significantly.

Keypads for computers and notebooks

Turnover for the sales of keypads for computers and notebooks
decreased by approximately 16.9% to HK$169.8 million in 2013
from HK$204.4 million in 2012. The immense popularity
achieved by tablet computers has continued to deprive of the
demand for traditional notebooks and netbooks. Statistic has
shown that global shipment for traditional computers continued
to be weak for the year. Therefore, the Group has recorded a
decline in turnover under this rapid changing market.
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Automotive peripheral products

Turnover for the sales of automotive peripheral products
increased by approximately 30.8% to HK$35.7 million in 2013
from HK$27.3 million in 2012. Thanks to the quantitative easing
stimulus in U.S. the demand for those durable products such as
automotives was increased. In addition, the Group has
succeeded to explore into the PRC market. This led the sales
orders for automotive peripheral products increased
accordingly.

Lifestyle products

Turnover for sales of lifestyle products decreased by 5.8% to
HK$55.8 million in 2013 from HK$59.2 million in 2012. Although
the turnover has slightly decreased during the year, the Group
is able to expand the customer base in this segment. The Group
will continue to put more effort to explore the market to capture
the immense popularity of silicone made products and is
confident that the sales of lifestyle products will be the driving
force in the coming future.

Cost of Sales

Cost structure

The overall cost of sales decreased by approximately 7.6% from
HK$588.1 million in 2012 to HK$543.2 million in 2013. It was still
very challenging for those export oriented manufacturing
companies based in the PRC during the year. The
manufacturing overhead continued to rise with appreciating
RMB and increasing CPI. In addition, due to labour shortage in
coastal areas of the PRC, the labour cost was lifted during the
year. As a result, the rate of decrease in cost of sales is much
lower than that of turnover.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year 2013 was HK$8.1
million, which represented a decrease of approximately 77.7%
from that of HK$36.4 million for the year 2012. By the
contraction of turnover together with the boost in the
production costs, gross profit was decreased under the current
extremely challenging environment.

Moreover, the drop in utilisation rate for the plant and
machineries caused the average unit cost to increase and hence
shrinking the profit margins.
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Other operating income

Other operating income increased by approximately 34.6% to
HK$48.6 million in 2013 from HK$36.1 million in 2012, primarily
due to gain on disposal of land in Huizhou and the increase in
gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments during the
year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
16.1% to HK$31.8 million in 2013 from HK$27.4 million in 2012.
When counted as a percentage of the turnover, the total
amount was 5.8% (2012: 4.4%). The increase was due to inflation
and increase in labour cost in the PRC.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 4.4% to
HK$110.2 million in 2013 from HK$105.5 million in 2012. The rise
is mainly because of the continuous increase in operation cost
in the PRC.

Loss for the year

Loss for the year ended 31 July 2013 was HK$131.9 million (2012:
HK$78.1 million). The net loss margin of our Group increased
from 12.5% for the year ended 31 July 2012 to 23.9% for the
year ended 31 July 2013.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Directors expect that dividends will be paid as interim and/
or final dividends. We currently intend to pay annual cash
dividends of not less than 30% of our Group's audited
consolidated profits after taxation to our shareholders for the
applicable year. However, the determination to pay such
dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the "Board”) and will be based upon
our operating results, cash flows, financial positions, capital
requirements and other relevant circumstances that the Board
deems relevant. The payment of dividends may be limited by
legal restrictions and by agreements that we may enter into in
the future. Our Directors are of the views that our dividend
policy will not affect the sufficiency of our working capital in the
coming years.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of any
subsidiaries and associated companies for the year ended 31
July 2013.
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY
POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash
management and investment on uncommitted funds. The net
proceeds from the international offering (as defined in the
Prospectus) have mainly been placed on short-term deposits
with authorised financial institutions in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group's receipts were mainly denominated
in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and RMB. Payments were
mainly made in US dollars and RMB.

In respect of the US dollars, the management regards that the
foreign exchange risk for Hong Kong dollar to US dollar is not
material because (i) Hong Kong dollar remains pegged to the
US dollar and (ii) most of the Group’'s purchases are
denominated in US dollars, which are to be settled by sales
receipts in US dollars.

In respect of the RMB, as the Group’s production plants are
located in the PRC, most of our labour costs, manufacturing
overheads, selling and administrative expenses were
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the appreciation of RMB will
adversely affect the Group's profitability.

During the year, the Group has entered into some RMB/US
dollar structured forward contracts to partly hedge the risk
exposure. The Group will continue to closely monitor foreign

exchange exposure for RMB and consider hedging significant
exposure should the need arise.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group's source of fund was cash generated
from net proceeds of the international offering and operating
activities.

RERBRUBER

FR AEENESRREIEREBREENMEN
HFEREERHRE -

As at As at
31 July 2013 31 July 2012
R=-=2—= RZE—Z4F
+tA=+—H +tA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRSEEY 104,910 78,280
Net cash inflow (outflow) WEWACEY ) %58 25,747 (185,320)
Current ratio EN LR 4.7 4.1
Quick ratio REPLL R 3.6 3.1

With our strong financial background upon Listing on the Stock
Exchange, we expect we will have sufficient cash to cover future
capital expenditure requirements.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised from the international offering received
by the Company was approximately HK$635 million.

The usage of net proceeds until 31 July 2013 are as follows:

BEAEEERIF ETANBESHES B
AEEBEEANES RN BRMERRR
i -

e RERZ

ARARBBEBETESHBEREBFEY
635,000,000 7T ©

BE_Z—=FtA=1+—H FEREFECIE
NI

Planned Utilised
Particular amount amount
k0] sTEIAR EEAR
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEBET
Expansion of production facilities for silicone B BE mEERE
rubber based products 468 (309)
Upgrade and expansion of upstream RA REEFR LR ERE
production facilities 56 -
Strengthening research and InoR fiff 2% B2
development capabilities 39 (39)
Implementation of resources planning system — #17&REE X4 22 (1
General working capital —REEES 50 (50)
Total HEt 635 (399)

The remaining net proceeds have been deposited on short-

term basis in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

30 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013

PSSR IRF BB R B8 K Bl &Y 15 18 B 75
BB ITR -



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEE N WD T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES
AND CHARGES ON ASSETS

Capital commitments contracted by the Group but not yet
provided for in the consolidated financial statements as at 31
July 2013 were approximately HK$8.3 million, which was mainly
related to the acquisition of land use right in Indonesia and the
expansion of production capacity in Dongguan in the PRC. Such
capital commitments will be financed by the net proceeds from
the international offering.

As at 31 July 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities and the Group's assets were free from any charge.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As the Group is committed to expand our production capacity
and develop high value-added products, such as mobile phone
keypads, experienced workers, engineers and professionals are
the most important assets to the Group. We offer on-the-job
training and encourage staff to attend continuous professional
training in order to update their skills and knowledge.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including quality
staff quarters, trainings, medical, insurance coverage and
retirement benefits, to all employees in Hong Kong and in the
PRC. As at 31 July 2013, the Group has 5,436 permanent and
temporary employees (2012: 7,251). The total salaries and
related costs for the year ended 31 July 2013 amounted to
approximately HK$291.9 million (2012: HK$305.2 million).

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 16 May
2007 for the purpose of recognising our employees’
contribution before the Listing. As at 31 July 2013, 5,970,000
share options were still outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, of which 4,140,000 options are held by
employees of the Group. The Company also adopted a Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme on 16 May 2007. As at 31 July 2013, a
total of 12,370,000 share options were still outstanding under
the Post IPO Share Option Scheme, of which 8,241,000 share
options are held by employees of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company as it believes that effective corporate governance
practices and a fundamental to enhancing shareholder value
and safeguarding interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group's business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

The Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “Stock Exchange
Code"), Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Listing Rules”), sets out principles of good corporate
governance and two levels of recommendation:

. Code Provisions, with which issuers are expected to
comply or give considered reasons for any deviation; and

° Recommended Best Practices, for guidance only, save
that issuers are encouraged to comply or give reasons for
deviation.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Stock Exchange Code, except for the following deviations:

1. C.1.2 which requires the Company to provide all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail.

During the year, the management of the Company did not
provide monthly updates to all members of the Board as
required by C.1.2, as all the Executive Directors were
involved in the daily operation of the Group and were fully
aware of the performance, position and prospects of the
Company, and the management has provided to all
Directors (including Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors) quarterly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail during the regular board meetings of the
Company.

In addition, the management has provided all members of
the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any material
changes to the performance, position and prospects of
the Company and sufficient background or explanatory
information for matters brought before the Board.
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2. A.6.7 which requires Independent Non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general
meeting.

During the year, Mr. Kirk Yang, Mr. Hsieh Yu and Professor
Jou Yow-Jen, being Independent Non-executive directors
did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 4 December 2012 due to their overseas
business engagement. Please refer to the paragraph of
Directors’ Attendance for details of attendance records.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the Company
(the "Directors”), the Company confirmed that the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year.

The Company has adopted its “Code of Ethics and Securities
transaction” to regulate the Directors and employees of the
Group in dealing shares of the Company and provide guidelines
and procedures on handling the conflict of interest of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the board of directors

The Board comprises four executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and four independent non-executive
Directors. The function of the Board is to guide the
management to ensure the interests of the shareholders of the
Company are safeguard.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time, taking into account the scope and nature of operations
of the Company, to ensure that the size of the Board is
adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate effective
decision-making. The Directors come from diverse background
with varied expertise in finance, legal industry and business
fields. The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationships among them are set out in the “Directors’ Profile”
on pages 10 to 14 of this annual report and the Company'’s
website. The Company has maintained on the Company'’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange an updated
list of its Directors identifying their roles and functions and
whether they are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified as such in
all corporate communications that disclose the names of
Directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ Profile”, none of
the Directors except Mr. Huang Shang-Shun is the father of Mr.
Huang Te-Wei, has any financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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As at 31 July, 2013, the Board comprises the following

RZB—=FtRA=+—H ZBFAUTKEHR

members: i :
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election as
Name of Director Position to the Board Director
BREEER BIE—IR
ExgmE BEEER
L B H B A EEWHEEB
Huang Sheng-Shun Chairman/Executive Director 23/2/2006 25/11/2010
w5 EE/HITES
Huang Te-Wei Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 23/2/2006 25/11/2010
EIRAE THAEE, ITES
Lin Hung-Ming Executive Director 23/2/2006 8/12/2011
MREA HITES
Wong Tak Leung Executive Director 23/2/2006 8/12/2011
"HER HITEF
Wu |h Chen Non-Executive Director 23/2/2006 4/12/2012
REH FERITEE
Kirk Yang* Independent Non-Executive Director 18/4/2008 8/12/2011
1 EE* BUENITES
Hsieh Yu Independent Non-Executive Director 16/5/2007 25/11/2010
gy BUENITES
Jou Yow-Jen Independent Non-Executive Director 29/12/2009 4/12/2012
A$H¥ BUEHITES
Yeung Chi Tat Independent Non-Executive Director 16/5/2007 4/12/2012

% S E

Mr. Kirk Yang was re-designated from non-executive director to

BUIFATES

*

independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 15 November 2012.

BRBEERARFTPERITESHIRBULIFNTE
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Directors’ appointment, re-election and removal

Each of the executive Directors has renewed his own service
contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 16 May 2013 and subject to a termination by
giving not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Wu |h Chen was appointed as an Executive Director in 2006.
His service contract has been renewed on 16 May 2010 and
terminated on 1 February 2011. The Company then issued a
formal appointment letter to Mr. Wu for appointing him as a
non-executive Director of the Company for a period of three
years commencing from 1 February 2011 and subject to a
termination by giving not less than one month’s prior written
notice.

Mr. Kirk Yang has entered into a formal appointment letter with
the Company for appointment him as a non-executive Director
of the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1
February 2009, subject to a termination by either party giving
not less than one month’s prior written notice. His appointment
letter has been renewed on 1 February 2012 for a period of
three years commencing from 1 February 2012 and subject to a
termination by giving not less than one month’s prior written
notice. With effect from 15 November 2012, he was re-
designated from non-executive director to independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Kirk Yang has entered
into a new appointment letter for appointment him as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 15 November 2012 and subject
to a termination by giving not less than one month’s prior
written notice.

Mr. Hsieh Yu and Mr. Yeung Chi Tat have entered into a formal
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 16 June 2008, subject to a termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s prior written
notice. Their appointment letters have been renewed on 16
May, 2011 for a period of three years commencing from 16 May,
2011 and subject to a termination by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice.

Professor Jou Yow-Jen has entered a formal appointment letter
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
29 December 2009, subject to a termination by either party
giving not less than one month’s prior written notice. Her
appointment letter has been renewed on 29 December 2012 for
a period of three years commencing from 29 December 2012
and subject to a termination by giving not less than one month’s
prior written notice.
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In accordance with the Company's articles of association, all
Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

The Board

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate
and strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to
the business of the Group. All executive Directors, non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company.

Executive Directors

REANRNARKERAR  AEES(BRATE
F FRTEFERBUFNTER)B=FEEIH
BERE—K -

BExg

EXGNRERANK MBREFHRAEEM
REXBHABRENTENR EENEEER
BB B HEPIME - TAERITES - T
EERBUFNTESTORERARAH RS RER
N BPFIHE o

BOTES

Name Position Current Function/Experience
H®A R BRIRE K58
Huang Sheng-Shun Executive Director & Chairman o development of corporate operation and
=R oE HWITESRERE strategies
EEEBENRENER
Huang Te-Wei Executive Director & Chief ° marketing, administration and financial
DA Executive Officer planning
HITERFRITHARE THHMEE  (THE R KB E
o daily operation of the Group and strategic
planning
REEN R BEERKRERE
o overseeing the Group’s compliance and
internal control matters
EEAEENERRARNEESEE
Wong Tak Leung Executive Director & Deputy o sales and marketing
=ER General Manager SHE RITIHIER

WITEERAIBKE

Lin Hung-Ming Executive Director & Research &
MZEA Development Director
HITESRABRLBERDBEE

research and development

M RBER
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Non-Executive Director FHITES

Name Position Experience/Contribution

®E R f &eE

Wu Ih Chen Non-Executive Director and o provide to the Group consulting services

REW Adviser concerning matters relating to management

FERMITEFEREM and operation of the Company, investment,

merger and acquisition decision.
HRARANEEREE RERHBRERAK
S B R MR R

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Name Independence Experience/Contribution

& B &5 B

Yeung Chi Tat v o auditing and corporate restructuring

BEE EatRbEEH

Hsieh Yu v J legal and compliance

Bk ERNER

Jou Yow-Jen v o statistics, econometrics, financial time series,

AE analysis and financial information analysis
BeEt - FHERE - BBKEFS - D R
BROM

Kirk Yang (4 o corporate finance, investment, merger and

15 FE A acquisition, public relations and institutional

investors relations
K - 18E - - DHBEREIEERE
HER

Note 1: all independent non-executive directors are free from any  Afit71: FIBEBEIERTESHE S RAEMAIREFEL
business and relationships that could materially interference VEHB S HIEN ) 22T SRR -
with the exercise of their independent judgment.
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Board meetings and board practices
The Board holds at least four regular meetings a year which are
normally scheduled in the fourth quarter of the preceding year.

ExeeBNESTEER
ExgEFRLBETHRAENEHE  —KRE EAHIJ*
FENFRETEARH EFZSNTERNKFER

And the Board will also meet on other occasions when aboard- {EREEErREHEFATE -HE-_T—= Etﬂ
level decision on a particular matter is required. During the =+—BItHBEE EFeRN-_Z——F+AK
financial year ended 31 July 2013, the Board held five meetings =—ZT—=%—A =8 - ZARtASRTHERE
in October, 2012, January, February, March and July, 2013. The TXRBEREENRSETSSHNEELE
attendance records of the Directors to these board meetings
are set out below:
No. of meetings
attended/
No. of meetings held
B EBRE
Executive Directors HITESE
Huang Sheng-Shun =B /5
Huang Te-Wei =EE 5/5
Lin Hung-Ming MR 5/5
Wong Tak Leung =ER 5/5
Non-executive Director FBITEE
Wu |h Chen REH 4/5
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Hsieh Yu A /5
Jou Yow-Jen A 4/5
Yeung Chi Tat BEE 5/5
Kirk Yang HREHR 5/5
P

All minutes of the meetings recorded in sufficient detail the
matters considered and decision reach and are kept by the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
and are opened for inspection by Directors at any time.

The meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All
Directors participate in discussing the strategy, operational and
financial performance and internal control of the Group.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman to prepare the
agenda of the meeting and each Director may request to
include any matters in the agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’
notice is given for the regular meetings by the Company. All
substantive agenda items have comprehensive briefing papers,
which are circulated at least 3 days before each Board meeting.
The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions
regarding the matters discussed in the meetings so that they
may receive accurate, timely and clear information.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board
meetings are observed and providing the Board opinions on
matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the
Board meetings.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will
not dealt with the matter by way of written resolution or by a
Board committee (except if that Board committee was
specifically established for such purpose). The independent
non-executive Director with no material interest in the matter
will attend the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered
appropriate. Other than the exceptional allowed under the
Listing Rules, any Director who or whose associates have any
material interest in any proposed Board resolutions will not be
counted as a quorum in the relevant Board meeting or no vote
for the Board resolutions.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman holds meetings
with Executive Directors from time to time and at least one
meeting with Non-executive Directors (including independent
Non-executive Directors) annually without the presence of
Executive Directors.

Functions of the Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and affairs with the goal of
maximizing long-term shareholder’s value, while balancing
broader stakeholder interests. The Board has the following main
duties:

° determine all the corporate matters;

. be responsible for the management, direction and
supervision of the businesses of the Group; and

o be responsible to ensure the effectiveness on Group's
financial reporting and compliance.
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The Board has matters reserved for its decisions and these

include:
J the Group's long-term strategy and business plan;
° major capital projects, acquisitions or divestments;

° funding decision of the Group;
° internal control, risk management and compliance; and

° annual and interim financial results and shareholder
communications.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors, senior management and certain specific
responsibilities to the Board committees.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances. While allowing management
substantial autonomy to run and develop the business, the
Board plays a key role in structuring and monitoring the
reporting systems and internal controls. The composition,
functions of each Board committee and their major role and
function are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provide for in the terms of reference
of relevant committees.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range
of skills and business experience to the Group. They also bring
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance
and risk through their contribution to the Board meetings and
to the Board committees’ meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are
four independent non-executive Directors, representing over
one-third of the Board. Among the four independent non-
executive Directors, one of them have appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company, based on such confirmation, considers, Mr. Hsieh Yu,
Professor Jou Yow-Jen, Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Mr. Kirk Yang to
be independent.
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The independence of each Director is reviewed annually by the
Nomination Committee based on the definition of
independence defined in the Listing Rules .
Committee is satisfied as to the independence of Mr. Hsieh Yu,
Professor Jou Yow-Jen, Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Mr. Kirk Yang, all
of whom do not have any relationship perceived to interfere
with the exercise of their independent business judgment with a
view to the best interest of the Company.

The Nomination

Supply of and Access to information

The management supplied the Board with appropriate and
sufficient explanation and information through financial reports,
business and operational reports and budget statements, in a
timely manner, to enable them to make informed decisions.

The management also provided the Board with updates giving
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company'’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13.

The Directors are also provided with names and contact details
of the Company’s senior management and the Company
Secretary to facilitate director access to senior management
and the Company Secretary.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. The Company Secretary from
time to time updates and provides written training materials to
the Directors, and organizes seminars on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The
Directors may request the Company, pursuant to the Policy for
directors to seek independent professional advice, to provide
independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company to discharge his duties to the Company.

Induction tailored kit will be given to newly appointed Director
to his/her individual needs. This includes meetings with senior
management to enable them to have better understanding of

the Group's business and strategy and the key risks and issues.

During the year, the Company has organized two trainings on
the following topics for the Directors of the Company:

1. Directors’ Induction: Updates and Highlights; and

2. New "Companies Ordinance”: Overview
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The Company Secretary maintains records of training attended
by the Directors. The training attended by the Directors and the
Company Secretary during the year are as follows:

AREAMERBEFHFEEIEENTE EFRA
AMERAFEHFENEIEENT

Directors Training Matters®°te
= 151 e
Executive Directors HITEE

Huang Sheng-Shun =B ab
Huang Te-Wei EEH ab

Lin Hung-Ming MZ=ER ab
Wong Tak Leung =ER ab
Non-Executive Director HHITEE

Wu |h Chen REH ab
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHITESE

Hsieh Yu A ab

Jou Yow-Jen A ab
Yeung Chi Tat 5 ab

Kirk Yang 15 IER ab
Company Secretary REHE

Chan Qi Fat PRE 2 ab
Note: Biat :

a.  Regulatory a EE

b.  Corporate governance b TtEER

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of
the Company for the year 2013/2014. The insurance covers
them against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred
arising out of the corporate activities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
the Chairman, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, and the Chief Executive
Officer (the "CEQ"), Mr. Huang Te-Wei are segregated in order
to reinforce their independence and accountability.

There are clear demarcations of responsibility and authority
between the Chairman and the CEO which ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and
greater capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.
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HKEVEES °
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Their roles and responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing. The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership
to, and overseeing the functioning of, the Board to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the Group. With the support of the
other executive directors and senior management, the CEO is
responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to five Board Committees. The
principal committees of the Board are the Audit Committee
("AC"), Remuneration Committee (“RC"), Nomination
Committee ("NC"), Compliance Committee (“"CC") and
Executive Committee ("EC"), details of which are as follows:

BENABLRBEERRAT  UASEH - £F
EEEEESEREBREZENEBE BREZS
UAEBRRSERNZTE  EEMRTESRSR
EREBBT  THAHBELASENEREERER
HKEEHRE -

EXEEE

EXEENNEEFZESRRECHRE  UnHE
FEUTHY c TENEFZEERERZEE(HE
ZLZ8g]) FMZES(FHEZEE])) RHZE
e([RE2ZEg)) ARZEE(ARZBEDR
HWITZBe((HTRES))  #EHEINWT

Committee membership

ZEEHE
Audit  Nomination Remuneration  Compliance Executive
Name Committee ~ Committee Committee ~ Committee Committee
®E EREEE REZEE FMZEEE SHRZEREE  YTZRE
Huang Sheng-Shun B v
Huang Te-Wei HER 4
Lin Hung-Ming R v v
Hsieh Yu EiE v v %
Jou Yow-Jen B$¥ v v %
Yeung Chi Tat mEE v v v v
Kirk Yang B v v v
Chan Oi Fat R % v v
Li Yung-Ming Kt v

The written terms of reference of each committee are available
at the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Audit Committee

Composition

AC was established on 16 May 2007 and comprises four
members, all are independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu, Professor Jou Yow-
Jen and Mr. Kirk Yang. During the year, the role of the members
remains unchanged. The external auditors and the financial
controller also attended meetings by invitation.
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AC's responsibilities include the following:

o reports to the Board and holds regular meetings to assist
the Board in discharging its responsibilities for effective
financial reporting controls, internal controls and risk
management.

o monitors the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts and half-year
report and reviews significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them.

° reviews, makes recommendations and reports to the
Board on findings relating to the financial statements,
reports and accounts, systems of internal control and risk
management and compliance issues.

o oversees the Company’s relationship with the external
auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of external auditor.

o reviews and monitors the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with applicable standards.

o reviews external auditor's management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management
and the management’s response.

Further details on the work of the Audit Committee for the year
2012/2013 could be found under “Audit Committee Report”.

Remuneration Committee

Composition

The members of RC are Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr.
Hsieh Yu, Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Kirk Yang, of whom
are all independent non-executive Directors.

RC met two times during the year on 19 October 2012 and 25
March 2013, the attendance records of RC members to RC
Meeting are set out below:

ERZBENBEBRNATSA

AEFEEFRTTHMRITEE  UBPHEFS
BITRETARM B RS EE - NEREEREA
REESEMEE -

. ERAQNTRBRE  FERSREAMNRY
EEHEMTEY  WBOE R FROEAY
T 18 -

o ERUBHR MmERIKE - AEEERER
EERG URAKREE THBHERANSE
BEREESFHEHANER -

o ERANTEINEZZENHORRK - FEIZED
WERE  YHEENERINEREARES
SRR -

o REERERENKERINEZHMENE LI
AREGRFREEEN

o EHIMNERHEDBUEIRE N MM AR BENAE
BEERENEMERER  UREZEELD

Bl fE
BEREREERN T/ "T-=—FFETIEHN
E—HHBAR [EEZEGRE] /&R -
FMEES

HHEZEERBABEELRLE (TR it
AYLHEEGRELEE  2HORBIIENTE
=

FHMEECEFNR_ZE——F+A+hBR=F

—ZHF=ZA-THERBTMRAEHE TRETEE
SREMLFELCE

No. of meetings

attended/
Name No. of meetings held
®E HERE,ERRE
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) HEE (F/E) 2/2
Hsieh Yu EIEA 2/2
Jou Yow-Jen B 1/2
Kirk Yang TS IERR 1/2*

* Mr. Kirk Yang joined RC on 15 November 2012.

* BRBAER-Z——F+—ATHEANAFHEE

=

=
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The responsibilities of RC include the following:

° determine on behalf of Board, the Group's remuneration
policy for the executive directors and the senior
management team of the Company;

J consider and advise on the terms of any contract to be
offered to a director; and

o monitor the remuneration package of the Executive
Director and senior management team and make
recommendation.

Further information of RC’s activities is contained in
“Remuneration Committee Report”.

Nomination Committee

Composition

NC comprises three members, all are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr.
Hsieh Yu and, Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Kirk Yang.

The key objective of NC is to ensure the Board comprises
individuals with requisite skills, experience, to ensure that it is
effective in discharging its responsibilities.

NC met one time during the year, on 19 October 2012, the
attendance of the committee members are shown as the
following table:

FHEZRENBERENATEA

. fﬁ%%$@#£$$lfﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬂﬁ
= AR T B O S B BOR

WITEER

o  ERMAEREHNTEMESNGEREALERE
Bk

o ERWTEELRSREEBEBMNFMESK
TR -

FHZEanEPnNE—THBER [FHEZE SR
iJ
REERS
R
REZEEHBTERL(IRE) @HxL By
L%&&&Tﬁmﬁff‘ﬁiﬂ%ﬂz,a%ﬁﬁk E: SV oAV
FEMITESE -
REZBESEIZREENBRESSHEAMER

B ANTHARK  UERZB S AMETHE

k%é%”\ilﬂﬂf?_ ——FtAThBEET—

G TRETZEGNEMBELE

No. of meeting

attended/
Name No. of meeting held
HE HERE EFXH
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) HEE(EE) 11
Hsieh Yu RN 11
Jou Yow-Jen B 11
Kirk Yang 15 PR 0/1*

* Mr. Kirk Yang joined NC on 15 November 2012.
The criteria for appointment of a new director are set out herein
below:

J the independence in case of an independent non-
executive Director;

o possess core competencies that meet the needs of the
Company; and

o be able to commit time and carry out duties and
responsibilities.
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NC leads the process of the appointment of new director REZEGNFRNIIBEZTSEZINESNRERF -

during the year to the Board as follows:

e evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience o  FZEFSHREEE  MRLEBREIERLS

on the board and determine the role and desirable & jt%Euuu’EﬂaiiFfé?ﬂﬁEZ%méEﬂ’Jﬂﬁﬁx
competencies for a particular appointment in consultation K Pres g

with the management;

e conduct an interview with the potential candidate to e BREANSENNEEBEEREE  WHRRKE
assess suitability and to ensure that the candidates are ANHBEHHENRABRAEE &
aware of the expectations and the level of commitment
required; and

. make recommendation to the Board. . MESSROEZ -
Process for the appointment of New Director EREFESR
A A A
Evaluation
y Sé'g; Interview Recommendation
) EH Y |
kno;/\u/%dge e assess suitabilily e Board Approval

. experfence AHEEERE BREiE

® ASSESS competent

o mdependen | "HGAe
(if applicable)
B ()

—EoSEsE OREERRERAT | 49
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NC activities during the year
Significant matters discussed by NC are summarized as follows:

J To consider the re-election of the retiring directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting having regard to his
contribution and performance;

o To review and determine independency of independent
non-executive directors during the reviewing period;

. To assess the effectiveness of the Board; and

J To recommend to put the re-designation of Mr. Kirk Yang
as an independent non-executive director to the Board for
approval.

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee currently comprises Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat (Chairman), Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr. Lin Hung-Ming and Mr.
Chan Oi Fat.

The overall responsibility of the Committee is to ensure that the
Group complies with all the relevant rules, laws and regulation
as set in different jurisdiction and Listing Rules of Hong Kong.

REZEEFANESY
REZBETWNEARFRBANT

s REREIEFENERMERE  EEREERR
BFEREEBRRTES

o  EHNYEEBILIFNTEENQERNNBL
14

o  FIEEZFENEN XK

e BRELEBAEPERBUINTEE—FE
REFEHE -

BHREEE
EREBERAMBTELE(ER)  BREELLE
MEREE KRB HE AN -

EREZBETEARBRRAKEETHERTRADA
EERIBELMRAUNABABMRA XX
e
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Compliance Committee activities during the year

The CC met four times during the year. The major activities
undertaken by the Committee were to oversee the financial,
legal, statutory and listing rules requirement, internal control
and corporate governance practices of the Group.

The CC reported their discussion and recommendation to the
Board periodically.

Executive Committee

EC was established on 3 September 2007 (the “Executive
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference and
comprises four members, by whom two are executive Directors,
namely Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, and Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr.
Chan Oi Fat and Mr. Li Yung-ming.

EC is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Group's businesses, the overall financial performance of the
Group in fulfillment of strategy, plans and budgets and the
Group capital expenditures as defined in the terms of reference.

The Committee reports on these topics on its own conclusions
and recommendation to the Board.

BREREEFANES
EREZBEERFARTHAREH - ARLTBEGETT
MEREBRERME AR REBERRETRA
B URAKENAMEEREREGER

EREZBEEHRNEFTSERLTWIER

BITEES
HTZBE((HTZREE DR _ETLFNLA=R
BRI WA RBERBESLE - HITREEANEK
B DR REBAAERERESLE REHE
ERFKBRE(EPMER/PITES) °

HWITZBESRABAKEAENEREERA BRER
AEENEBUWBRRAIMEERE  FELEE
ARAREEAFXAE  FERBESEEANREL
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2013. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibilities for preparing the accounts and presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“"SHINEWING")
acknowledged their reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2013.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year ended 31 July 2013, SHINEWING was
appointed as the Group's auditors until the conclusion of next
annual general meeting. The remuneration paid/payable to
SHINEWING in respect of their audit and non-audit services
were as follows:

BEM R FT

EERZHAMNER
EREZBEEREZEEENARRBE_T—=F
TtA=Z+T—BLEFENGEPBRE - EFERH
SHRETHRERARRAARBNRER MR RATF
REYE  BW REEAFE - EEL NANFBAERA
RESARBFELERNBEIBEERNEMHIE
SUFTE RV BERT AR -

EXPA(ER) G EBHRER DR ([EKFHM])
BREABZ T =FtA=1tHLFELHA
FATERR M AZ BB RS P Pl ) R IR EAE -

o BB 5 BA

BEZZ—=FtA=1+—HILFE FkhiE
ZERAEENZEN  FHET -ERRBEFAK
FRERRIE - BB RIFRFRBEN, T E KT
FMEF BT -

2013
—_E—=

HK$'000

FET

Audit services FaT IR 1,030
Non-audit services E IR

Taxation advisory services 70 75 A Pl AR 75 22

Other advisory services L b A ) AR 75 200

Total #Et 1,252

The consolidated financial statements for the year were audited
by SHINEWING whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that SHINEWING be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Oi Fat, plays an important
role in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that board policy and procedures are
followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. He reports to the Board through the
Chairman and CEO. All Directors may access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. He regularly updates the
Board on governance and regulatory matters. He also facilitate
induction and professional development of directors.

The Board is fully involved in selection, appointment and
dismissal of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the
procedures of the Board meetings are observed and providing
the Board opinions on matters in relation to the compliance
with the procedures of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 July 2013, The Company Secretary
has undertaken 20 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, details refer to
"Continuing professional development” set out on pages 44 to
45 of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Convene of General Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders of the Company. Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend
and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable
to attend the meetings. The process of the Company’s general
meeting are monitored and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if
necessary, changes will be made to ensure that shareholders’
needs are best served. The Company uses annual general
meeting as one of the principal channels for communicating
with the shareholders. The Company ensures that shareholders’
views are communicated to the Board.

REAWE

NREAMERERCLENRESTS I AEEERA
B URRESEKEZHARIFREEARR - BN
REFEHRRNIEFREF -

RAWERRABRRAANEEFH - BBEBEFER
TRRENEESER MEEEIESARNE
MEAERRY HEeFTHREESRHABER
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IR EERR -
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At the annual general meeting, each substantially separate issue
has been considered by a separate resolution, including the
election of individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board,
chairmen of the respective board committees and the external
auditor usually attend annual general meetings to inter-face
with and answer questions from the shareholders.

The last annual general meeting of the Company is the 2012
annual general meeting ("2012 AGM") which was held on 4
December 2012 at Rooms 1 and 2, United Conference Centre,
10/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
The Directors, including the Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee, and the external auditor of
the Company, SHINEWING, attended the 2012 AGM. The
attendance records of the Directors to the 2012 AGM are set
out below:

BEABRLBBYNEFESN —BBINRESR

B ETRRENEFNET -EFEXR EFQ
BTRZBECTREIMNEZEE  —REERA
HERRBFAS » B ERREFE L B -

ARRLEBRRBFRER T - _FRRBEFAK
([T —_FRRBEFAE]) AEREN_-F
—CET - ANABEETESESEEISKE T
DIOBERE1RI2RBT - EF(BHREFSEE:
&) BREEEIR  URARRBIMNEZEEEK
PHHERHE —ZE-—FRREFAE - EFHE
T FRRBFERENLEINENT

Meeting(s)
Directors Attended/Held
B= HERE SERE
Executive Directors BITEE
Huang Sheng-Shun = e 11
Huang Te-Wei =IERL 71
Lin Hung-Ming M Z=BE 0/1
Wong Tak Leung =5ER 171
Non-Executive Director HHITESE
Wu lh Chen REWM 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFEBITEE
Hsieh Yu EIRA 0/1
Jou Yow-Jen IEFEZ 0/1
Yeung Chi Tat B E 1/1
Kirk Yang 5 e 0/1
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The Company’s notice to shareholders for the 2012 AGM was
sent to shareholders more than 20 clear business days prior to
the meeting. The chairman of the meeting exercised his power
under the Company’s Articles of Association to put each
proposed resolution to vote by way of a poll. The Company
adopted poll voting for all resolutions put to vote at the
meeting. The procedures for voting by poll at the 2012 AGM
were contained in the circular of the Company to the
shareholders, which was dispatched together with the 2012
annual report, and were further explained at the 2012 AGM
prior to the polls being taken. Separate resolutions were
proposed at the 2012 AGM on each substantive issue and the
percentage of votes cast in favor of such resolutions as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4
December 2012 are set out below:

RARZE——FRBAFAGZRRBECHRE
FRTBBE-_TEZELEEATTESRE - Kg
EFAEAQAMSRABATE THEN RS
BREMREEUARZEFARR - AQFRIEZK
ERANMARBERBAREFRNETR R 5
TE—FRERAFRE FUREFRARINEF
EAER A AR R ROBEKAN - REAEKEHE -
E—_FFR—HFTTRE MEBEFIE_Z
——FREBFRGETRZAMNUARE - R =F
——FREBFRE L SEREEHUEB RS
HIE2 MERABRBENZHAMENE S (R
RARBHAZTE——F+_ANBHALEPEE)
FENT

Percentage

Resolutions proposed at the 2012 AGM of Votes

REZB——FRREAFAERENABR SHESL

1. Toreceive and approve the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its 100%
subsidiaries and the reports of the Directors and the auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 July 2012.
BERMERRRAREMBRARBE_T——_F+tA=T—HILFENLEXGEMBRERR
RAFNEEGREDZBARE -

2. To approve and declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 July 2012. 100%
BHERERBEZ-T——F+A=1T—"HILFENRARE -

3(). To re-elect Mr. Wu |h Chen as a Non-executive Director of the Company. 96.64%
ERERBALERRNABIENITES -

3(ii) To re-elect Professor Jou Yow-Jen as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. 99.99%
BREANCHER/ARABULIFNTES -

3(iii) To re-elect Mr. Yeung Chi Tat as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. 96.64%
BERGEERERARABIFNTES -

4. To authorize the Board to fix the remuneration of the Directors. 99.99%
RREEeETEEIHE -

5. To re-appoint auditor and to authorize the Board to fix their remuneration. 100%
ENZECEMIREEESETHME -

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with shares not exceeding 95.28%
20% of the existing issued share capital of the Company.
BTESE —MEENURE « BT REBTHEARRARIRA D BITRAN20% ARG °

7. To give a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase the Company’s shares not exceeding 100%
10% of the existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing of this
resolution.
RTEE—REEUBOTZRTNRBRBBE AARRRAD ETRA10%WARRRD -

8.  To extend the general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with additional shares 95.28%

of the Company by addition thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount
of share repurchases by the Company.

BARTEERE  BITMEEARRARIMNIUD O —REE - HAR/RNER M EEERARF]
PRTEE O AR (7 AETEE B B8 -

=

SR AEEMERERDT
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All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2012 AGM were
passed. The Company’s Branch Share Registrars were
appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes
cast at that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were
published on the websites of the Company and the Exchange.

Procedures by which enquiries put to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling.

Contact details of the Company Secretary
The Company Secretary

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Flat 28, 23/F., Metro Centre Il,

21 Lam Hing Street,

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Email: alfred@tayanggroup.com

Tel No.: (852) 3678-5088

Fax No.: (852) 3678-5099

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a
Shareholders’ meeting

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Significant changes in articles of association
During the year, there is no significant change to the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Shareholdings information
As at 31 July 2013

HK$2,000,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each

Authorised Capital

HK$77,854,100 divided into paid up
capital 778,541,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each.

Issued and fully-paid

The following table summarized the existing shareholding
structure of the Company as at 31 July 2013:

REEBHE

HBERAANERED
FR - ARBNABERARN L BEMERED -

R-E-—=F+tHA=+-—H

SETERRA 2,000,000,000/87C * 25
20,000,000,000 A% &A% & &
0.1 BRI

BT RERRA 77,854,100/ 7T * D5

778,541,000 % =& EI{E0.1
BITRBE R

TRBINARBAR -_Z-—=F+tA=+—HNRA
RS

% of issued

No. of capital of

Category Shares  the Company
(P NN

BERITRA

Al BAEE KB
Controlling shareholders & Directors PRI R ES 439,854,000 56.50%
Strategic Investor' R EE 12,000,000 1.54%
Public & connected persons NRNEBEALT 326,687,000 41.96%
Total At 778,541,000 100%

Notes:
1. Strategic investor is Shin-Etsu, which held 12,000,000 shares.

2. 68,062,000 shares out of 326,687,000 shares are held by certain
connected persons of the Group.

3. The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2013 is
778,541,000 shares.

Other corporate information is set out in the “Corporate
Information” section set out on pages 6 to 9. This includes,
among others, dates for key corporate events for 2013 and
public floating as at 31 July 2013.

Hiat -
1. HREIRE 2457 12,000,000 X AZ D HI{S

2. 326,687,000 B0 > 68,062,000 B B A HIE
TREALRESA -

3. ARNARZE—=FLA=Z+—HHNEZTRAEAAE
778,541,000 &A% 17 ©

Hih RRIENENRECEIEN [REER] —f- &
PHE(REREE) T =FFERAFHNEHY
MR ZE—=Ft A=+ —HORARFKS -
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SHARE INTERESTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 July 2013, the interests of the Senior Management of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares of the Company
were as follows:

EREEER O ER
RIF—ZFtA=+—8 FRAABRERER
AR RS RARBIRD MR AN T -

Approximate
percentage of

Equity issued share
Name of Senior Capacity in which Interests derivatives Total capital of
Management interests are held in shares (Share Options) interests the Company
RN
BASTETE ERITRARN
SHETEEES EEEENEH B 17 RE 2= (RERAE) AR BHEDL
Chan Oi Fat Beneficial Owner — 310,000 310,000 0.04%
PRE 2 EmEAA
Wu Tien-Tao Beneficial Owner 10,942,000 485,000 11,427,000 1.47%
RINE EmEAA
INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS BEERKRREBHF
Communication with Shareholders and Investors HERRRREEER

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. The Board also recognizes that
effective communication with investors is the key to establish
investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining high degree of transparency
to ensure the investors and the shareholders are receiving
accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group via the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
press announcements, and also the Company’s website at
www.tayang.com.

Corporate communications issued by the Company have been
provided to the shareholders in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate their understanding. A section entitled
“Investor Relations” is available on the Company's website.
Information on the Company’s website is updated on a regular
basis.

Information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange is
also posted on the Company's website immediately thereafter
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Such information includes
financial statements, announcements, circulars to shareholders
and notices of general meetings, etc.
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The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed the
Group's strategy, operations, management and plans.

The Company’s website is also a source of information for its
shareholders and prospective shareholders. All materials on
annual reports, interim reports and announcements are
available on the Company’s website immediately following
confirmation of their release. The contact details of the Investor
Relations are also available on the Company’s website which
allows shareholders to contact the Company easily.

The Directors and the committee members are available to
answer the questions through the annual general meeting.
External auditors are also available at the annual general
meeting to address shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions
are proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate
issue.

Our investor relations activities include:

J teleconferences with analysts and fund managers;

J update of the Company’s website regularly;

J holding annual general meetings with shareholders;

J providing disclosed information on a time basis via the

Company and Stock Exchange’s website.

Hold
Shareholders
Meeting
BIRERS
\@ Y
e, INVESTOR
''''' RELATIONS
ACTIVITIES

(REEBFIE

EFQRBRTERBREE RO EEER -
FEREABAEEORE - &2 BB NETE -

AR BT BRI BCR M EBCR R B BHRORIE -
FI - PHRERAEAHDIEN —EEREM
BEENAIE AR R MU E - BRIRE E AR
HBTAEARRMEBER LT EERERR A
i o

EEPZEeNEeEBRRBFAERERRM
IR - SN BEN TS AR RBFAG EEMERR
MR - BRRAG e B ERERFERBIREZEE

RFER -

AEBNREERELBEIE

o HENMEMMESLIBIEERSE

o EHEHARTME

o BHEERRB|BITRRBEFAE:

. EEERAARREBXANERHOREE
# o

Convene
Teleconference
BHEEEEH

\¢ y

A "-,.
- .'u
Publish
Financial Reports,
Announcement
and Press Release

FBHBERE - A
U REER /

ToSHER AXEERRERAT | 59



Corporate Governance Report
TRER/RE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Environmental protection & safety measures

To support the good environment support, the Group continues
to pursue a proactive policy in environmental protection and
have implemented a series of environmental protection
practices, details of which are as follows:

J Dongguan Ta Yang factory and Huzhou factory obtained
SO 4001 certification;

J Install a discharge and sedimentation tank in our plants to
treat domestic sewage before discharging to the sewage
drains in the neighborhood,;

J Install noise-barriers in our electricity general rooms and
in the plants with air compression equipment respectively;
and

J install ventilating ducts to collect exhausted gases

generated during production processes before emitting
to the atmosphere.

In addition, the Group emphasizes on safe production
measures. These measures include safely tips which sets out
certain guidelines on occupational safety such as safely
production measures and procedures for handling emergency.
In order to promote the safety awareness, the Group also
organizes induction training and occupational safety training for
our staff. The Group has regularly checked the equipment to
ensure the staff is working at safety place.

Green policies

We implement paper recycling policy for used papers in Hong
Kong and the PRC offices. Staffs are also encouraged to
practise energy saving habits, such as setting their computers to
sleep mode when not in use, controlling the temperature of air
conditions and using internal communication in the form of
electronic direct mail.

During the year, the Group successfully achieved in reducing
the usage of energy, water and papers.
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Employment and social affairs

The Group places emphasis to retain talent staff by providing
annual bonus and annual dinner in the Chinese Lunar Year.
Besides, the Group organizes basketball and Tug-of-war sports
competition, image girl competition each year to promote the
mutual cooperation and understanding among the staff. There
are also corporate orientation programs to enable the PRC staff
to better understand the Group's culture.

Learning and development

During the year, the Group organized a training program to the
staff in the PRC office focusing on the production management
areas. The program gave them an excellent opportunity to
strengthen their understanding of the functional areas within
the factory in the PRC and strategic direction of the Group to
improve and enhance the efficiency of the Group.

In addition, the Company provides financial subsidies to
employees to attend seminar organized by different
professional bodies with the aims to enhance their technical
skills, business skills and personal strengths.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems. The internal control systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks to
which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring the reliability of financial information used for business
and publication. Qualified management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
("SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s material effectiveness of the
Company’s material internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management.
Audits were carried out on all significant business units of the
Group. The internal control report is submitted and reviewed by
the Audit Committee. In addition, internal audit’s summary of
findings and recommendation are discussed at the Audit
Committee meeting with a view to improve the Group's
operations.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management procedures and was satisfied that the Company'’s
internal control processes are adequate to meet the needs of
the Company in its current business environment.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, Control
Department is established to provide day-to-day management
of the compliance and control of the Group in order to
eliminate risks of failure of operational systems and the
achievement of the Company’s objectives. The Control
Department is currently headed by Mr. Huang Te-Wei, the
executive Director and CEO of the Company, and it reports
directly to the Board.
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Control Department will conduct meeting regularly and work
closely with SHINEWING Risk to monitor the internal control
systems within the Group in order to provide reasonable
assurance as to the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
integrity and reliability of financial information and to safeguard
and maintain accountability of its assets. Additionally, the
various divisions’ head of the Company met with the head of
Control Department each month to ensure a sound internal
control system is in place and maintained. To enhance the
knowledge of relevant staffs of the Group, training will be
provided to them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable
laws as when appropriate.

Based on the internal control report, the Board is of the view
that the internal controls of the Group are adequate and
complied with the code provisions on internal control as set out
in the Listing Rules.

Risk management

The Group manages risk under an overall strategy determined
by the Board. The framework of the risk management comprises
of the following key elements:

° identify and assess of all the risks;

J formulate the risk management strategies;

J design and implement of risk management and plan;

o monitor and report the risk management performance;
and

J continuous improvement of risk management and

mitigation action plans.
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PROCESS POLICY ACCOUNTABILITIES
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The major risk factors assessed by the Group are listed as  AEBEFFENEZEBEZEERIIDOT
follows:

Risk Factors Impact Mitigation

NS E S 2 AR LB Y 1 e
Strategic

Y

Global economic instability
and market volatility

RREETRRMSEE

Increasing competition
BF s

Integration of acquisition

WhEEa

The Group's products could be curtailed
which resulted in the risk of the operating
performance and financial stability of the

Group
AEEREMRREmR A AEENE
BRI BB E T B AR

Significant product innovations, technical
advances or the intensification of
competition could adversely affect the

Group
BEAREmEFT - RIS E S NEIE A]
HAREBER T NTE

We may not be successful acquiring
business and not reach the full synergy
effects

AREBERTRERNBBER - WBEES
A 157 [ 28 &

The Company aimed to spread its
activities geographically to benefit from
opportunities in order to minimize the
risk of political and economic instability

AREM B FEEHERBOHETFM
BAZBRTREE - emsEBrs L&

BT RRR R R

The Group continuously to enhance its
research and development and regularly
added new products to sustain the
growth of its business

ZER B 5 AR hNSR A 3 N E BAHE KR EE
R EEBIE R

o The management adopted risk
assessment includes macro and
project specific risks analysis
encompassing due diligence,
financial modeling and sensitivity
analysis on key investment
assumptions and variables
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e The management is monitoring the
progress of strategic plan and
modifying the plan from time to
time
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Risk Factors

R e B 3=

Impact
2

Mitigation
AR R B B 1 e

Operational Risk
EERMR

Seasonality
FEE

Product liabilities
EmEE

Raw material

R

Customer

P

Financial Risk

Bt ¥ B

Exchange rate fluctuation

&)

Financing and liquidity
constraints

BMERRBE SRS

Seasonality may adversely affect the
operating results of the Company’s
business

ZEIE AT RE AR R B E B8
BRI

Product liabilities claims could adversely
affect our Company'’s business

EmB ERERHARANEBHEKT
g

Growth in cost and expense in raw
materials changes may adversely
influence the future results of the
Company

R RLBCAS B F S 4G e S By AT e & A
NERREBEX TR E

Loss of customers could adversely affect
our business

PR A e B R PIR E IS ER T IR
28

Exchange rate fluctuation can have
harmful impact on company

BB & U AL RSN TR S

Lack of financial capacity could affect the
Group's ability to conduct its business
and maintain its capital investment or
dividend payments
MBI RS ENEEETTE
BREFHERRELIRERBHEE
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The Company aimed to diversify the
product mix to minimize the seasonal risk
AR ERETEMESE ST - A
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The company has arranged insurance to
cover product liability
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The company aims to maintain long-
terms business relationships with
suppliers to acquire raw material
RNRATH B IR EmE R RIER
BAR - LAERIS R

The Company keep in close touch with
our customers and markets and focus
effort on delivery high quality products
to them

RRFIEEP EMiG#sERRE - BN
REFPREBREEM

The Company has a hedging policy for
certain currency exchange rate risks from
time to time

KRB LE T EMKE R ETLH
R

The Company adopts prudent financing
treasury policy and strict cash
management policy to maintain stable
cash position
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Risk Factors Impact
PSS 2

Mitigation
IR EK 2L Bk 9 45 e

Legal and Compliance

EORERER

Law and regulations
AR AR B

and regulations

AEEHE R REETHAER

AINTESREES

Please refer to the Audit Committee Report for the committee’s
activities in 2012/2013.

Whistle Blowing Policy

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good
corporate practices, the Company has adopted a whistle
blowing policy at a Board meeting held on 24 March 2011. The
policy aims at encouraging and enabling employees of the
Group at all levels and others to report violations or suspected
violations and to raise serious concerns about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters
of the Group.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

In general, the daily management and administration functions
of the Group have been delegated to the management except
for certain matters specifically reserved to the Board for
decision. Those matters include the setting of the overall
strategic direction and long-term objectives of the Company,
approval of annual business plan, material acquisitions and
disposals of assets, investments, connected transactions and
capital projects, key human resources issue, preliminary interim
and final results announcements, determination of interim and
final dividends, appointment of Directors and annual
assessment of internal control system.

The Group may suffer as a results of its
failure to comply with all applicable laws

A K

The Control Department assists in
identifying, monitoring and providing
support to identify and manage legal
risks across the legal and seek external
legal advisers as and when appropriate
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

This report provides the details of work undertaken by the
Remuneration Committee (“RC") during the year.

Membership of the Remuneration Committee

During the year, the directors of the Company ("Directors”) who
served on RC were Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Hsieh Yu,
Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Kirk Yang (joined RC on 15
November 2012). All of them are Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Members of RC have no personal interest in RC's decisions and
they have no conflict of interest arising from cross directorship.

Activities of the Remuneration Committee
During the year, RC met two times and the major business of
those meetings included the following activities:

] conduct the annual review of 2013/2014 salary for all
Directors and Senior Management.

° consider and review the renewal of services contracts of
Directors and making appropriate recommendation to the
Board.

Remuneration Policy
The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises basic
salary, bonus, share options and pensions.

Salary adjustments are made where RC takes into account
performance of the individual, contribution, responsibilities, and
reference to comparable listed companies in Hong Kong.

The remuneration of Independent Non-Executive Director is
reviewed annually with reference to the salary research survey,
comparable companies and market condition.

Apart from basic salary, Executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and
individual’s performance during the year.
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In order to attract, retain and motivate talented eligible staff,
including the Directors, the Company has adopted a Share
Option Scheme. The scheme enables the eligible persons to
obtain an ownership interest in the Company and thus will
motivate them to optimize their continuing contributions to the

Group.

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior management.

AR B RMBRE BIARE| - BB REBE S
EMAEBAR(BEES) R BRRAEHA
TG AAAEARES  RTADRSEER
R EE R R -

TERUPRTEELRSREEBFHESHOTE -

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
B BH 3] R
Basic Salary To reflect the market value of e Cash payment ] Reviewed annually
EXRF® each individual R AN (SERTE)
REEE AT TISEE J Monthly J Compare against
5 A selected comparable
companies
EUEF R A B LA A
313
J Market trend
Mz M
Discretionary Bonus To motivate employees to J Cash Payment J Individual performance
BB TEAL deliver the high levels of b AN 8 AKRIR
performance of the Company ® Annual J Market condition
and individual performance B SRR
goals ] The Group
S EE B ERSKTFRARA A performance relative to
MEAARE BIR corporate targets
AEBEHNEERF
BRI
Share Option To motivate the participants ~ ® Share Option . Eligible participants are
B AR HEN2EE BB awarded in accordance
To attract and retain the with the Share Option
employees Scheme
Wl it EES BERB2EEREER
RGBS 2 2R
Pension To provide appropriate and ~ ® Cash contribution o MPF scheme
BRE competitive post retirement b AN wiEeEtEl
benefits J Monthly
REEE MABRF NERIKR ®A
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The following table shows the breakdown of directors’

remuneration (in percentage terms) for the year ended 31 July
2013:

TREBE-_Z-—=FLtA=t—-HIFEES
Bl eveAA (AB L RR) ¢

Salary, Retirement
allowances benefit
& other schemes  Share-based
English Name g Fees benefits Bonus contributions  payments Total
e BH RINER NRG A
e REMERN A Al RN At
% % % % % %
Huang Sheng-Shun Bl - 92.66 6.18 116 - 100
Huang Te-Wei BEH - 9240 6.00 160 - 100
Lin Hung-Ming MEH - 92.55 6.00 1.45 - 100
Wong Tak Leung EER - 90.65 755 1.80 - 100
Wu Ih Chen REF 23 60.68 431 269 - 100
Kirk Yang HIER - - - - _ _
Hsieh Yu Bl 100 - - - - 100
Jou Yow-Jen B5% 100 - - - - 100
Yeung Chi Tat htE 100 - - - - 100

The Remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 July 2013:

BREEEREHE T =F+tA=+—HIF
ERFHEESSMMESOT

Number of
Remuneration bands (HK$) Individuals
< EE (BT) A
Nil-1,000,000 4% 1,000,000 2

Details of the amount of Directors’ remuneration during the
year ended 31 July 2013 are set out in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements and details of the Share
Option Schemes are set out in Report of the Directors and Note
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)

Hsieh Yu

Jou Yow-Jen

Kirk Yang

Hong Kong, 24 October, 2013
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This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee
("AC") and the work it has undertaken by them during the year.

The members of AC during the year were:

Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)

Hsieh Yu

Jou Yow-Jen

Kirk Yang (joined AC on 15 November 2012)

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the year, AC met two times in October 2012 and March
2013. The financial controller and the external auditors normally

AopERHfEEERZES ([
FAFTHEIT TARHFHS

ERZBEDRER

FANBZZEGKENT ¢

BEE(EE)
Bkl

B
BEB(R_-F

EBRHELE

“E+—A+RAEMABKREES)

FAR BRZEENR _Z-—_"FtTAUEZ
F=h %fﬁlﬁ/ﬂ@% o B 75 #8 B R SIS AZ BT — AR

attended the meeting by invitation. The attendance records of @EBHFEH ZEEXNEHFEZRZZESTH
the committee members to AC meetings are set out below: R BT
No. of meetings
attended/
Name No. of meetings held
HE HERE, EFRE
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) BEE (F/E) 2/2
Hsieh Yu HR 2/2
Jou Yow-Jen B 2/2
Kirk Yang 5 FER 1/2*
* Mr. Kirk Yang joined AC on 15 November 2012. * BEBLEN - E——F+—B+HANMARE
mEEg -
SUMMARY OF MAJOR WORKS DONE DURING FREXNEET/EME
THE YEAR
During the year, the major works done by AC were summarized ~ FR » FEZEZESFTRO T E TIEERAT
as follows:
e reviewed with the management and the external auditors ©  FERRREFSHER - BEERE RIMNSZEE
on the interim results and annual results and related EHTHEE 2FXBUREHANE (B
announcement including the related disclosures, integrity BHABEEHE) UBRERGITBENT

of financial reporting and the accounting policies and
adopted by the Group prior to the submission to the
Board's approval;

J discussed with management on significant judgments
affecting Group's consolidated financial statements;

o considered and pre-approved the re-appointment of
auditors and their audit fee accordingly;
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H
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o reviewed and discussed the internal control report
including the status of implementing recommendations
on previous report;

. reviewed, assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal control and risk management; and

J reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
during the audit process.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

AC has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the financial
reporting matters including a review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 July
2013.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, AC engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
(the “SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct the internal control review
of the Group's operation and made recommendation to Board
accordingly. Based on the report issued by SHINEWING Risk,
AC considered that the key areas of the Company’s internal
control systems are reasonably implemented and the Company
has compiled with the requirements of the CG code as set out
in the Listing Rules in respect of internal control. There were no
matters concerns to be brought to the attention to the Board.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

AC reviewed the independence of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited and recommended their re-appointment as auditors of
the Group for the financial year 2013/2014 in the forthcoming
AGM.

Members of Audit Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Hsieh Yu

Jou Yow-Jen

Kirk Yang

Hong Kong, 24 October 2013
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Report of the Directors
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are design and manufacture of silicone rubber input devices
which are mainly used in lifestyle products and 4Cs (i) Consumer
(consumer electronic devices), (i) Computers (keypads for
computers and notebooks), (iii) Communications (mobile phone
handsets) and (iv) Cars (automotive peripheral products).
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 46
to the consolidated financial statements. The nature of the
principal activities of the Group has not changed during the
year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 July 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 101.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 July 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$25,751,000
on additions to property, plant and equipment mainly for the
expansion and enhancement of its production capacity.

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 212.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 July 2013, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution amounted to HK$610,084,000. Movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year and
the distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 July 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 49.1% of the total revenue of the Group
and the largest customer accounted for about 18.1% of the total
revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
approximately 7.7% and 19.0% of the Group's total purchase for
the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any
interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers and
customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Te-Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Hung-Ming

Mr. Wong Tak Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wu Ih Chen
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hsieh Yu

Professor Jou Yow-Jen

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Mr. Kirk Yang (re-designated from Non-Executive Director to
Independent Non-Executive Director on 15 November 2012)

Pursuant to Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, Mr. Huang Te-Wei and Mr. Hsieh Yu
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'’
CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence to Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rule”) and as
at the date of this report still considers that all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 July 2013, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, and decided
by the Board, as authorized by shareholders in the annual
general meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and comparable market securities. No Director is
involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme and
a Post-IPO share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of the schemes are set out
under the heading "“Share Option Schemes”.

Details of the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in Remuneration Report
under the heading “Remuneration Policy”.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
under review are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS

Directors’ Interests

As at 31 July 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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(a) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares in the

Company

(a)

RAEDRARGRAEBRGNTE

Number of shares/underlying shares

held in the Company

RAQAAFENRG,HERGEE
Approximate
Equity percentage of
derivatives issued share
Capacity in which Interests (Share Total capital of
Name of Director interests are held in shares Options) interests the Company® Notes
EEnA BEERNS 7 IR B AR {EARAT FiE
fTETR ERITRAKN
(R 7E) SR
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of Sunshiny Trust/ 413,940,000/ - 423,070,000 54.34% 1&2
= Sunshiny Trust Xz A,/ 152
Beneficial Owner 7,874,000 1,256,000
EnEBA
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of Sunshiny 413,940,000/ - 415,270,000 53.34% 1&3
EER Trust/ 153
Sunshiny Trust 225 A/
Beneficial Owner 540,000 790,000
EnEBA
Lin Hung-Ming Beneficial Owner 9,640,000 1,180,000 10,820,000 1.39%
MAHA EnEGA
Wong Tak Leung Beneficial Owner 5,760,000 1,135,000 6,895,000 0.89%
=ER EnEBA
Wu lh Chen Beneficial Owner 2,100,000 1,160,000 3,260,000 0.42%
REH EnEBA
Kirk Yang Beneficial Owner = 100,000 100,000 0.013%
5 IER EnEBA
Hsieh Yu Beneficial Owner = 146,000 146,000 0.02%
i EnEBA
Jou Yow-Jen Beneficial Owner = 46,000 46,000 0.006%
EEI EnEBA
Yeung Chi Tat Beneficial Owner = 146,000 146,000 0.02%
HEiE EnEBA
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Notes:

1.

Sunshiny Trust is a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Huang
Sheng-Shun is the settlor, Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited (the “Hang Seng Bank Trustee”) is
the trustee and family members of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun
(including Mr. Huang Te-Wei) are beneficiaries.

FifeE -

Sunshiny Trust 2 155t EBRELEARE
FEA  BERITEIBEBEBER AR ([EARTT
B BEEA MEBRLTENKKEKE
(BREEERLE)BTEA °

The 413,940,000 shares, representing approximately 2. % 413,940,000 & B 17+ BDANA 8] #953.17% 89
53.17% shareholding of the Company, are directly held by & AT HEREBRELAHE AT ([ERE
the following seven British Virgin Islands companies ("7 BVI BRAHESRRA])XAEERE - FBE0OT
Companies”) in aggregate as follows:
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
No. of capital of
Name of the 7 BVI Companies Shares held the Company
tREBELZBHSRAER BEROEE EERRERT
RAENNE DL
Ace Chain Investments Corporation (“Ace Chain") 149,100,000 19.15%
China Gain Holdings Limited (“China Gain”) 103,560,000 13.30%
Highwise Investment Group Corporation (“Highwise"”) 57,600,000 7.40%
Join Success Business Inc. (“Join Success”) 34,560,000 4.44%
Jumbo Regent Investment Limited (“Jumbo Regent”) 34,560,000 4.44%
Master Rich Business Limited (“Master Rich") 28,800,000 3.70%
Million Era Holding Corporation (“Million Era”) 5,760,000 0.74%
Total #&5t+ 413,940,000 53.17%
The 7 BVI Companies are respectively 100% owned tHREBERE REHES R A E BAcuwake
subsidiaries of Acuwake Enterprises Limited (“Acuwake”). Enterprises Limited ([ Acuwake ]) # & 100% /&
Acuwake is 100% owned by Bluebell Global Enterprises % B MY B A ) ° Bluebell Global Enterprises
Limited. (“Bluebell”). Bluebell is wholly owned by Hang Limited ([ Bluebell]) # & Acuwake 100% #
Seng Bank Trustee. Hang Seng Bank Trustee as trustee of % o Bluebell B4 RITIER L EHE - B4
Sunshiny Trust, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun as the settlor of $R1T15 51 5 Sunshiny Trust B {E5E A - E 53¢
Sunshiny Trust are taken to be interested in such shares. 94 7 Sunshiny Trust N EFEA - B IR 7
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is also a director of each of the 7 REERDPHEEER - BEBRTENTATR
BVI Companies. EEELZESARTEENES -
Mr. Huang Te-Wei is a son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and a 3. HERERETEREBRAENRZ T A
beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei is Sunshiny Trustf) & & A © Bl - E@ RS E
taken to be interested in the same block of 413,940,000 WRAERBTREBEXHSARFENRE—
shares held by the 7 BVI Companies. #t413,940,000 A% B 190 R #E A #E2S o
Details of the Directors’ interests in the share options 4. EERARRIR BN BREER N ERFEH
granted by the Company are set out under the heading NI [EEWRERD R —F0 -
"Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below.
The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2013 is 5. KRRV ZT—=ZFLA=+—HHEHTR

778,541,000 shares.
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Details of the Directors’ interests in the share options BEERARAFAELBREROERSEIR
granted by the Company are set out under the heading T [EFUERA BVRER] | — & o
"Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares” below.
Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares EEWERGHEFR
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
subject to subjectto  Approximate
outstanding Granted  Exercise price Exercised  outstanding percentage of
Exercise Period options as at during per share during  optionsasat the Company's
Name of Director Date of Grant  (subject to vesting period) 1.8.2012 the period HKS the period 31.7.2013  issued capital
f £33 BHBH s (RERAAHR) R=2-=F HRsi BRITEE HafE  R-B-ZF AT
NA-H AT tAZt-B  BRARAM
HARTHE HARTHE BHEAY
BREFYRY BREFYRH
Ri#A Ki#A
Huang Sheng-Shun ~ 16.05.2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 550,000 - 220 - 550,000 0.07%
aER 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 376,000 - 0.96 - 376,000 0.05%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 330,000 - 1.05 - 330,000 0.04%
1,256,000 0.16%
Huang Te-Wei 16.05.2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 230,000 - 220 - 230,000 0.03%
BER 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 300,000 - 096 - 300,000 0.04%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 260,000 - 1.05 - 260,000 0.03%
790,000 0.10%
Lin Hung-Ming 16.05.2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 320,000 - 2.20 - 320,000 0.04%
MEH 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 600,000 - 0.96 - 600,000 0.08%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 260,000 - 1.05 - 260,000 0.03%
1,180,000 0.15%
Wong Tak Leung 16.05.2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 275,000 - 2.20 - 275,000 0.04%
AR 4122009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 600,000 - 096 - 600,000 008%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 260,000 - 1.05 - 260,000 0.03%
1,135,000 0.15%
Wu Ih Chen 16.05.2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 455,000 - 220 - 455,000 0.06%
REA 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 375,000 - 096 - 375,000 0.05%
11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 330,000 - 1.05 - 330,000 0.04%
1,160,000 0.15%
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Number of Number of

Shares Shares
subject to subjectto  Approximate
outstanding Granted  Exercise price Exercised  outstanding percentage of
Exercise Period options as at during per share during  optionsasat the Company's
Name of Director Date of Grant  (subject to vesting period) 1.8.2012 the period HKS the period 31.7.2013  issued capital
ESfA RHRH T8 (B BAHR) R=B-Z% R SRR Bnfit  R-B-=F EADT
NA-H BT tA=t-8  EROREY
WRITHE WRITHE BAES

BRERSRH BREMSRN

RG#E RHEAE
Kirk Yang 24.12.2009 2406.2010-23.12.2019 100,000 - 0.96 - 100,000 0.013%
hIEE 10120010 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 - - 105 - - 0%
100,000 0.013%
Hsieh Yu 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 100,000 - 0.96 = 100,000 0.013%
B 11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 46,000 - 1.05 = 46,000 0.006%
146,000 0.019%
Jou Yow-Jen 11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 46,000 - 1.05 - 46,000 0.006%

2

46,000 0.006%
Yeung Chi Tat 2412.2009 2406.2010-23.12.2019 100,000 - 0.96 - 100,000 0.013%
CFite3 1012000 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 46,000 - 105 - 46,000 0.006%
146,000 0.019%

Further details of the share options are set out in the

section headed “Share Option Schemes” below.
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(b)

Interest in associated corporations of the Company (b)

RADREBEERERNERS

Percentage of
the relevant

associated
Number of  corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity in which shares issued share
Name of Director corporation* interests are held Class of shares interested capital
B=ng REEE £ FEEZNIH RER BERZN HERAREE
RH#E BRTREN
BAL
Huang Sheng-Shun Hang Seng Bank Trustee as ~ Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
B trustee of Sunshiny Trust  Sunshiny Trust IZEEA US$1.00 each
{85 AT AR Sunshiny BREB10ETHERR
TrustBIfE7EA
Acuwake Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust BNZFEA US$1.00 each
BREB10ETHERR
Ace Chain Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust FIZFEA US$1.00 each
BREB10ETHERR
China Gain Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust F1ZEA US$1.00 each
BREE1.0XTHEER
Highwise Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust B1ZFEA US$1.00 each
BREE1.0XTHEER
Join Success Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust B1ZFEA US$1.00 each
BREE1.0FTHEER
Jumbo Regent Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust B1ZFEA US$1.00 each
BREE1.0FTHEER
Master Rich Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust B Z&7EA US$1.00 each
BIRAE1.00%THE R
Million Era Settlor of Sunshiny Trust Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust FIZFEA US$1.00 each
BREB1.0ETHERR
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Percentage of
the relevant
associated
Number of  corporation’s
Name of associated Capacity in which shares issued share
Name of Director corporation* interests are held Class of shares interested capital
BEEpE HREEE AR BRERENSH iyl RAEEN GEREHLE
RBHE BRTRAMN
BAK
Huang Te-Wei Hang Seng Bank Trustee as ~ Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
B trustee of Sunshiny Trust ~ Sunshiny Trust B % & A US$1.00 each
{BAERITISFEEAR Sunshiny BREB10ETHERR
TrustBfE5EA
Acuwake Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust -~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust K1 2 A US$1.00 each
BREE1.0XTHERR
Ace Chain Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust -~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust B3z A US$1.00 each
BREE10FTHERR
China Gain Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust -~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust B335 A US$1.00 each
BREE10ZTHEBR
Highwise Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust -~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust 15225 A US$1.00 each
BREE10XTALER
Join Success Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust )% & A US$1.00 each
BRAE10ETHERR
Jumbo Regent Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust ~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust 15225 A US$1.00 each
BRAEB10ETHERR
Master Rich Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust -~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust 5225 A US$1.00 each
BRAEB10ETHERR
Million Era Beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust -~ Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Sunshiny Trust )25 A US$1.00 each
FREB10ETHERR
*Note: *Ha

For details of the corporate structure of each of the associated
companies, please see Notes 1 and 2 of the sub-section headed
“(a) Long positions in Shares and underlying shares held in the

Company”.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2013, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company nor their
respective associates had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company maintains two share option schemes, namely the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of recognizing the contribution of
certain executive directors and employees of the Group and
retaining them for the continual operation and development of
the Group. Both schemes were approved by the written
resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 16 May 2007 and
had a life of 10 years from its adoption.

Under the Share Option Schemes, the Board may, at its
discretion, offer any employee (including any Executive Director)
of the Group, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the two
schemes.

The Pre-IPO Share Option

The major terms of the Pre-IPO share option scheme adopted
on 16 May 2007 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were
summarized as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan is to
recognise the contribution made by the executive
directors and the employees of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company on Stock Exchange.
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Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company and/or any its subsidiaries,
including any executive director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries but excluding any non-executive director
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares in respect of the Scheme may
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
9,070,000 shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period must not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of options

An option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable at the subscription price of HK$2.20
per Share (subject to adjustment and vesting period). If a
grantee does not cease to be a participant from the date
of grant of options (i.e. 16 May 2007) to him up to the
business date immediately prior to the date of the 1st
anniversary (“Anniversary”) of the Listing Date, the
grantee may exercise up to 1/5 of the options granted to
him on or after the date of the 1st Anniversary. In the
event that the grantee does not cease to be a participant
up to the business day prior to the date of the 2nd, 3rd,
4th and 5th Anniversary, he is entitled to exercise an
addition of up to 1/5 of the options granted to him on or
after the relevant date of Anniversary respectively.
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(f)  The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$2.20 per share representing
approximately 37.1% discount to the international offering
price (assuming the offer price is the maximum of HK$3.50
per share).

(g) Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant of an option is required to be paid by each
of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

(h)  Remaining life of the Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme has no remaining life
as no further options may be granted but the provisions of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in force and effect and options which are
granted during the life on the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme may continue to exercise in accordance with the
respective terms of issue.

On 16 May 2007, the Company granted 9,070,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No further
options would be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on or after the listing date of the
Company i.e. 8 June 2007.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted
on 16 May 2007 ("Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge
the contribution of the participants. The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme will provide the participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives:

o motivate the participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

° attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going

business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.
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Participants of the Scheme

Participants of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme include (i)
eligible employees (whether full time or part time
employee including any executive director) of the Group
and any invested entity; (ii) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (iii)
any suppliers of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity; (iv) any customer of the
Group or any member of the Group; and (v) any
consultant, advisor, manager, officer or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any invested entity.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue at the date of approval of the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme (i.e. 16 May 2007). The Company may
seek approval of the shareholders in general meeting to
renew the said 10% limit such that the total number of
shares in respect of options that may be granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval to renew the limit. Notwithstanding
the above, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of total number of shares
of the Company in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue in respect thereof is 63,056,000 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 8.10% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date this report.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12 months period must not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of the said 1% limit shall
be subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such participant and his or her associates abstaining
from voting.

Timing of exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and
in any event such period shall not be longer than 10 years
after the date of grant of the option.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is such
price as determined by the Board of the Company at the
time of the grant of the options, but in any case the
subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

] the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date on which the options
are offered, which must be a business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the options; and

o the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer.

Payment on acceptance of options
A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration

for the grant of an option is required to be paid by each
of the grantee upon acceptance of the granted options.
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(h) Duration of the Scheme (hy FrEIEXHA

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force BRARESRBERESSIBERMBE (A=
for a period of 10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 16 May TELFRATRB) R TERER A1 -
2007). However, the Company may terminate the Post-IPO RAFRSENZHB AR IEERAREER
Share Option Scheme prior to such period and in such BIERT S MAZBERT B AgBERLE
event no further option may be granted but options A - MERMRIE AT IR AR IR B R
granted prior to such termination shall continue to be R ERBIRET BN ERMABER LA T
valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of 7ML -

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

As 31 July 2013, the outstanding number of shares in respect of WZZE—=F+tA=+—HB ' REBLA2HAEEE
which options had been granted under the Post-IPO Share MR AT 8P 4% A9 B8 R AE BT 0% R O FE SN 3 AR 19
Option Scheme was 12,370,000 shares, representing 1.59% of 28 412,370,000 1% * (R A A R ARE HHIE 817
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this  A&Z#91.59% °

report.

The other principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme  BAXAMEERERENSIRE XA AMEEERER
and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the HFHBNEMBIZERENRADRTNERERNA -
Prospectus of the Company.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BRES EERNFEAT

Option Type Date of Grant Exercise Period Exercise price

BB R B 17165 TEE

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme 16 May 2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 HK$2.20
(“Share Option Scheme 1”) —EZEFRA+RH 2.20787C

BRARBER BT E
([FERERT&l1])

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme 24 December 2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 HK$0.96
("Share Option Scheme II-A") —ETAFE+—A=—+MA 0.96 %7
BRARBEERERETS
(IR ERT &AL

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme 11 January 2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 HK$1.05
(“Share Option Scheme II-B") —E——%—A+—H 1.057%8 7T
BRAREERERETE
([BBRHESTE11-B )
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The following table disclosed movements in the share options ~ BRAERERNEBE TRIFEE ¢
during the period:

Options to subscribe for shares of the Company

TRBALAARGOERE
Granted Lapsed Exercised Exercise period  Exercise price
Category or name Balance as at during the during the during the  Balance as at (subject to per share
of grantees Option Type 1.8.2012 period period period 31.7.2013  vesting period) HKS
RRANEENLS BRERR R=Z-Zf BRI HAXX HhfE  RZB-Z% (gL BRITRE
NA-H tA=1-A (RBEBHR) BT
tiss s
Directors
Bz
Huang Sheng-Shun Share Option Scheme | 550,000 - - - 550,000 08.06.2008- 220
BHR TRl 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 376,000 - - - 376,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
JeiREtElI-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B 330,000 - - - 330,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
JeiRisrEll-B 10.01.2021
1,256,000
Huang Te-Wei Share Option Scheme | 230,000 - - - 230,000 08.06.2008- 2.20
L felRiEst2ll 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme I-A 300,000 = - = 300,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
FRRREGT I 1A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B 260,000 - - - 260,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
felRiEst2l1-8 10.01.2021
790,000
Lin Hung-Ming Share Option Scheme | 320,000 - - - 320,000 08.06.2008- 220
v TRl 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-A 600,000 - - - 600,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
JEfRiEElI-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B 260,000 - - - 260,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
JeiRiErElI-B 10.01.2021
1,180,000
Wong Tak Leung Share Option Scheme | 275,000 = = - 275,000 08.06.2008- 2.20
BER felRiEst2ll 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme [I-A 600,000 = = - 600,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
JERRER2-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B 260,000 - - - 260,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
JEiRiETE1-B 10.01.2021
1,135,000
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Options to subscribe for shares of the Company

TRBEEDARGNEBRE
Granted Lapsed Exercised Exercise period  Exercise price
Category or name Balance as at during the during the during the  Balance as at (subject to per share
of grantees Option Type 1.8.2012 period period period 31.7.2013  vesting period) HKS
ARANEEANE BREER RZ2-ZF A LA BrfE  R-B-ZF d ] BRAEE
NB—H tB=t-H (RBBHFRR) BT
Wi ke
Wu lh Chen Share Option Scheme | 455,000 = = = 455,000 08.06.2008- 2.20
REH RERRiER 2l 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme [I-A 375,000 - - - 375,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
FERRAER 1A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme [1-B 330,000 - - - 330,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
iRz ElI1-B 10.01.2021
1,160,000
Kirk Yang Share Option Scheme II-A 100,000 - - - 100,000 24.06.2010- 096
B Bl I-A 23122019
Share Option Scheme II-B - - - - - 11.07.2011- 1.05
BlREs 218 10.01.2021
100,000
Jou Yow-Jen Share Option Scheme I-B 46,000 = = = 46,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
B#y MRS EI1-B 10.01.2021
46,000
Hsieh Yu Share Option Scheme II-A 100,000 - - - 100,000 24.06.2010- 096
Bl IR 1A 2312.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B 46,000 - - - 46,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
i EEIIE] 10.01.2021
146,000
Yeung Chi Tat Share Option Scheme [I-A 100,000 = = = 100,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
BEE IEIREEEI1-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme [1-8 46,000 - - - 46,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
fEiEzt2lIB 10.01.2021
146,000
Total for Directors 5,959,000 - - - 5,959,000

Bzt
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Options to subscribe for shares of the Company

TRBERARGNERE
Granted Lapsed Exercised Exercise period  Exercise price
Category or name Balance as at during the during the during the  Balance as at (subject to per share
of grantees Option Type 1.8.2012 period period period 31.7.2013  vesting period) HKS
ARANBENLS BRERR R=Z-Zf HRRiL HREX BhfiE R-B-=F s BRITEE
NA-R tA=1-H (RERHHR) o
e e
Employees Share Option Scheme | 4,270,000 = (130,000) = 4,140,000 08.06.2008- 2.20
(] iRiEz 2l 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme I-A 4,607,000 - (156,000) - 4,451,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
AR EI1-A 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme I-B 4,074,000 = (284,000) = 3,790,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
BERRiER 218 10.01.2021
Total for Employees 12,951,000 - (570,000) - 12,381,000
ER#
All Categories Share Option Scheme | 6,100,000 = (130,000) = 5,970,000 08.06.2008- 2.20
FrERE G HE 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme [I-A 7,158,000 - (156,000) - 7,002,000 24.06.2010- 0.96
f=tie HERY 23.12.2019
Share Option Scheme II-B 5,652,000 - (284,000) - 5,368,000 11.07.2011- 1.05
e BEllIE] 10.01.2021
Total 18910000 - (570,000) - 18340000
&zt
Notes: Hiat -
1. The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately 1. RARRPREE —T——F— A+ —ARHBERE
before the date on which the share options granted on 11 HERRTE T (B REAR1.058 7T
January 2011 was HK$1.05 per share.
2. The vesting period of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme | is from 2. BRAMBEMERESE NEBEHAKERRE
the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise period. TEMFRER -
3. The vesting period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme II-A'is 3. BRARBEEBRESSIANEBHAKLE BN
from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise ETERMARER -
period.
4. The vesting period of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme II-Bis 4. BRARBEERBERESEIBNEBEHAKRLEAEN
from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise BITEHFERER -
period.
5. No share option was cancelled during the period. 5 HAEEERESR(EMAEARAE
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted under B EXFTREESN - SIEBREBEEAAFESHER
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option — # &t &) & &R A5 3 & 12 B AT 81K BB IR
Scheme. -
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INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 July 2013, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following persons have an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares

As at 31 July 2013, so far as is known to the Directors of the
Company, the following, not being a Director or the Chief
Executive of the Company, have an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and are recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

FRERRNERS

A\—E—ZF+/F=+—H MEBEFRM UTFTAL
RARERDLIER G EERIEESRBE KM
FEXVEE 2 RIDEREAMA R THERIBIEES
M EAE 028 336 IR ZBRE S A AN A RIF B W& e i
RIS SRR

>%1

3

REROHEFRE

R-Z—=4tB=+—0 HARAERHMM - U
TAT(EHARTHEFREBITHA L) RAR
FVR A5 S A B AR 15 1 5 4R 8 4 T O 6 ) S XV 36
F2R3H BT ANARFBBERBEBS RS
1% 336 AR SRR TE BB R i

REROREBROHNER

Percentage of

Number of interests as to
Number of shares the issued
shares held in subject to share capital of
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company options Total the Company" Notes
BREAE EEtE BEARAT BREY KK @xt (EARDRERT Bt
BB EE R EE R AR =
Ba™
Acuwake Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 1
corporation
XEREE R
Bluebell Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 1
corporation
X EEER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee  Trustee of Sunshiny 413,940,000 — 413,940,000 53.17% 1&4
EERITIER Trust
Sunshiny Trust B{55EA
Hang Seng Bank Limited  Interest of controlled 413,940,000 = 413,940,000 53.17% 4&5
BARITERAA corporation
X EE R
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Percentage of

Number of interests as to
Number of shares the issued
shares held in subject to share capital of
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company options Total the Company" Notes
RER A Rty BAEXDH BRESRH @i EERAEERT BifE
ROEE ROEE BRA B R
B
The Hongkong and Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Shanghai Banking corporation
Corporation Limited R EE S
BB LEEERITERAR
HSBC Asia Holdings BV Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
corporation
Rzt EE #n
HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)  Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
Limited corporation
Rzt EE #n
HSBC Holdings BV Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
corporation
Rzt EE #n
HSBC Finance Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
(Netherlands) corporation
Rz =R #n
HSBC Holdings plc Interest of controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 53.17% 5
ELZRAR AR corporation
Rl =R n
Ace Chain Beneficial interests 149,100,000 - 149,100,000 19.15% 1
kg
China Gain Beneficial interests 103,560,000 — 103,560,000 13.30% 1
oy gt
Highwise Beneficial interests 57,600,000 = 57,600,000 7.40% 1
Enftm
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of Sunshiny 413,940,000 - 423,070,000 54.34% 2
=t Trust/
Sunshiny Trustf)ZFEA
Beneficial interests 7,874,000 1,256,000
Enitm
TE-CHFR KFEEEEREFRAE 93
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Percentage of

Number of interests as to
Number of shares the issued
shares held in subject to share capital of
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company options Total the Company" Notes
RER A BRME TR NG| BRES RN @it EEAEERT Fir
RAEE RGEE AR
Bt
Tong Mei-Jen Beneficiary of Sunshiny 413,940,000 - 423,070,000 54.34% 3
XY Trust
Sunshiny Trustf) & A/
Spouse Interests 7,874,000 1,256,000
IifEiE s
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of Sunshiny 413,940,000 - 415,270,000 53.34% 8
BIEm Trust/
Sunshiny Trustf) Sz A/
Beneficial interests 540,000 790,000
EnlEm
Chao Yu Ting Spouse interests 413,940,000 - 415,270,000 53.34% 9
HEE ALfBER
Spouse Interests 540,000 790,000
i g
Wu Pei Min Corporate Interests/ 56,970,000 - 57,120,000 7.34% 6
RIHER RAVER/
Beneficial Interests 150,000 -
EnEn
Wu Chung-chieh, Jack Corporate Interests 56,970,000 - 56,970,000 7.32% 7
R NEER
Notes: et

m
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The 413,940,000 shares relate to the same block of shares in the
Company. These shares were directly held by the 7 BVI
Companies, all of which were wholly-owned by Acuwake which in
turn was wholly-owned by Bluebell. Bluebell was wholly-owned
by Hang Seng Bank Trustee as trustee of Sunshiny Trust. Ace
Chain, China Gain and Highwise are three of the 7 BVI Companies
which hold their respective shareholding of the Company directly
as detailed in the above table. For details of the interests of
Sunshiny Trust in the Company, please refer to notes 1 and 2 of
the sub-section headed “(a) Long positions in Shares and
underlying Shares in the Company” under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests” in the above.
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Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun as settlor of Sunshiny Trust is taken to
have an interest in such shares. Details of Mr. Huang Sheng-
Shun’s share options, please refer to sub-section headed “Share
Option Schemes” for details.

Ms. Tong Mei-Jen, the spouse of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, is also
deemed to be interested in such shares which Mr. Huang Sheng-
Shun is interested in.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hang
Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank Limited was owned as to
approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited was
wholly owned by HSBC Asia Holdings BV which was a wholly
owned subsidiary of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited. HSBC Asia
Holdings (UK) Limited was wholly owned by HSBC Holdings BV
which in turn was wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands).
HSBC Finance (Netherlands) was a wholly owned subsidiary of
HSBC Holdings plc.

56,970,000 shares out of 57,120,000 are beneficially-owned by
Golden King Holdings Limited and Joint Kingdom International
Holdings Limited which were 50% held by Ms. Wu Pei Min and
50% held by Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack respectively. Accordingly,
Ms. Wu Pei Min and Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack are deemed to
have beneficial interests in all these shares by virtue of SFO.

56,970,000 shares are beneficially-owned by Golden King
Holdings Limited and Joint Kingdom International Holdings
Limited which were 50% held by Ms. Wu Pei Min and 50% held by
Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack respectively. Accordingly, Ms. Wu Pei
Min and Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack are deemed to have
beneficial interests in all these shares by virtue of SFO.

Mr. Huang Te-Wei is the son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and a
beneficiary of Sunshiny Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei is taken
to be interested in the 413,940,000 shares directly held by the 7
BVI Companies as controlled companies of Sunshiny Trust.
Details of Mr. Huang Te-Wei's share options, please refer to
sub-section headed "Share Option Schemes” for details.

Ms. Chao Yu Ting is the spouse of Mr. Huang Te-Wei and
accordingly is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which
Mr. Huang Te-Wei is interested in.

As at 31 July 2013, the issued capital of the Company is
778,541,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2013, the Directors and
the Chief Executive of the Company were not aware of any
person who has an interest or short position in the Shares, or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other member of the Group.

(10)
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
or the chief executives of the Company or any of their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
and in which a Director of the Company had material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any
time during the year, nor had there been any contract of
significance entered into between the Group and a controlling
shareholder of the Company during the year ended 31 July
2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 July 2013, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 July 2013, in so far as the Directors were aware, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any interest in a
business that competed or was likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group, and to review the Company’s annual report and half-
yearly reports to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board. The audit committee comprises of Mr. Yeung Chi Tat,
Mr. Hsieh Yu, Professor Jou Yow-Jen and Mr. Kirk Yang, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual results
for the year ended 31 July 2013 in conjunction with the
Company's auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out
in The Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “Stock Exchange
Code”), Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except two deviations.
Details are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 34 to 35 of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine members who are entitled to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 12 December 2013, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 10 December 2013 to
Thursday, 12 December 2013, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer to shares can be registered. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Union Registrars Limited at 18th Floor, Fook Lee Commercial
Centre, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 9 December 2013.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 July 2013.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 July 2013 have been
audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
2013 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company for the re-appointment
of Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Sheng-Shun
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong

24 October 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
W3R

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

faikPAa

Shine‘zomg

TO THE MEMBERS OF TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ta
Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 101 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 July 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagements, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RS R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 July
2013 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: PO5591

Hong Kong
24 October 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melEmK

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FHET FHTT
Turnover ) 8 551,326 624,525
Cost of sales SHE A (543,210) (588,088)
Gross profit EF 8,116 36,437
Other operating income H by A 8 48,625 36,126
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HEMAY (31,758) (27,357)
Administrative expenses TR (110,204) (105,538)
Other expenses HifAS 10 (48,692) (15,558)
Share of results of jointly FEAE LRI B RS R 4R
controlled entities (5,161) (11,538)
Share of result of an associate FEfh—REEtE & AR EE 37 186
Finance costs B & Ak 2N 11 (672) (657)
Loss before tax Fri AT ETIE (139,709) (87,899)
Income tax credit e fife 12 7,790 9,809
Loss for the year NEEEIE 13 (131,919) (78,090)
Loss for the year attributable to: AT ALRIEFEAEE :
Owners of the Company KATIEB A (131,616) (78,090)
Non-controlling interests FEFEARHE = (303) =
(131,919) (78,090)
Loss per share TR EE 15
Basic and diluted (HK cents) ER K #5E Gal) (16.90) (10.03)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEEmRkEMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—_E—= —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHETT
Loss for the year FAEIE (131,919) (78,090)
Other comprehensive income (expenses) HithZEUA (Fix%)
ltems that may be reclassified REBREHHEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: MIERE :
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEENERZR
translating foreign operations 19,856 10,910
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE
Net loss arising on revaluation of FREGHTHREIESHEE
available-for-sale financial assets EEREERER
for the year (10,108) (13,727)
Reclassification adjustments for loss A EBREANER
(gain) included in the consolidated (U zs) MEFT D AR
statement of profit or loss
— gain on disposal — HEWER (1,258) 6,513)
— impairment loss — HEEE 710 3,856
(10,656) (16,384)
Share of other comprehensive income JE i — R Bt 22 &) R (R4
(expenses) of an associate and jointly EEMNEMZEBA (FAX)
controlled entities
Share of exchange difference of PRI —MEtE AR E R =58
an associate 300 (287)
Share of exchange difference of FEMRAREHERAEL =58
jointly controlled entities 139 (503)
439 (790)
Other comprehensive income FAHMEERA (FA)
(expenses) for the year 9,639 (6,264)
Total comprehensive expenses for FARHEMA AR
the year, net of income tax (FBRFT15HL1E) (122,280) (84,354)
Total comprehensive expenses for LTALEREFAZEAS
the year, net of income tax, #EE (R FTIS B 12)
attributable to
Owners of the Company NN ZE DN (122,094) (84,354)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R (186) =
(122,280) (84,354)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

ASAT 31 JULY 2013 R=F—=FtA=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—CF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MtaE FExT FET
Non-current assets JEREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KRG 18 264,638 290,626
Construction in progress EETRE 19 693 2,423
Prepaid lease payments A EERE 20 13,213 58,985
Investment property B 21 32,382 31,195
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 22 32,084 65,524
Held-to-maturity investments HERIHEE 23 - 2,442
Interests in jointly controlled entities ARSI B R 24 - 5,672
Interest in an associate R —EE R F A 25 1,678 1,341
Loan receivable from a jointly UL — R 2 [R5 I & B
controlled entity R E 26 = 7,801
Deposits for acquisition of land U BE + M (F ARER IR S
use rights 17,551 18,209
362,239 484,218
Current assets mMEN&E
Inventories =7E 27 153,074 166,156
Trade and other receivables FH&Z’,"?%EE RN E A
JE W RRIR 28 213,254 265,330
Entrusted loan receivable FEMEEE R 29 = 30,500
Prepaid lease payments B EFE 20 361 1,370
Loan receivable from a jointly e —R 3 ﬂ#‘%ljfg%i.
controlled entity RE R 26 7,801 -
Amounts due from jointly FEU RS TR A
controlled entities 30 5,428 11,853
Income tax recoverable B EEEES 80 10
Held-to-maturity investments HERREIEE 23 10,100 43,035
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBRE 31 14,250 5,851
Derivative financial instruments TESRTAE 32 1,204 2,229
Financial asset designated at 8T TEQ?E@J%E’D‘?A
fair value through profit or loss BaNRENE/mEE 33 36,997 =
Short-term bank deposits MHASRITTER 34 102,690 90,870
Bank balances and cash RITER NI E 34 104,910 78,280
650,149 695,484
Assets classified as held for sale DEABEHESE 35 21 -
650,170 695,484
Current liabilities mEaE
Unsecured bank borrowing AR TR X 36 20,124 31,734
Trade and other payables ENE SR N H A B 1B 37 95,524 106,966
Income tax payable B TSR 22,244 29,347
137,892 168,047
Net current assets mENEEFE 512,278 527,437
Total assets less current liabilities BEMAERRSEE 874,517 1,011,655
SR =EFER AFEEERERAR 103



Co solidated Statement of Financial Position

 BEBBRRE

AS AT 31 JULY 2013 R=F—=F+A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=5F —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MtaE F&T T
Capital and reserves B K #
Share capital R 38 77,854 77,854
Reserves s 785,074 930,035
Equity attributable to owners of RRABHER NEEER
the Company 862,928 1,007,889
Non-controlling interests SRR T 4,860 -
Total equity W 867,788 1,007,889
Non-current liabilities FErREaE
Deferred income IRIEUT A 39 4,061 1,028
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIBE & 40 2,668 2,738
6,729 3,766
874,517 1,011,655

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 211 were £ 101 BEEF 211 ENGEA KRR IKEZTS N =
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  ZE—=4%+ A — -+ B #t /& R FHETZ - T H 5

24 October 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: BERREE
Director Director
BE Bx
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 &IZE=Z—=FtA=+—HILFE
Attributable to the owners of the Company
ARTERAEL
Share Investments Capital ~ Statutory Non-
Share Share Other options  Retained  Exchange  revaluation  redemption surplus Legal controlling
capitel ~ premium resenve resenve profits resenve resenve resenve resenve resenve Total interests Total
- k& K iRER
kA BbEE  AkREE B RBEN  ERRRE EERR  EOER Mg AERE 4% iR 4%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAn FAn FAn FAT FAR TER TERT TER TERL TER FAT FAn FAT
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4)
(Hist1) (H#2) (H#3) (Ht4)
At 1 August 2011 RZF-——%N\A-A 77,854 633,786 - 14132 29979 135720 31,502 2420 2 89 1,138,153 - 1138153
Lossforthe year ERER - - - - 180%) - - - - = (78090) = (78,090)
Other comprehensive EREHRENRA :
income for the year:
Exchange differences BERNEBELH
arising on EizR
translating
foreign operations - - - - - 10910 - - - - 10910 - 10910
Net loss arising on EREETRIE
revaluation of SRAEELN
available-for-sale RS
financial assets
during the year - - - - - - (13721) - - - (13727) - (13727)
Reclassfication AR BERN
adjustments for () BRMER
(gain)loss included AERE
in the consolidated
statement of profit
orloss
- gain on disposal —tehE - - - - - - (6513) - - - 6513 = 6513
~impaiment loss —EEE - - - - = = 38% - - - 38% - 385
Share of exchange EE—FBEAT
difference of an HESZE
associate - - - - - (287) - - - - (287) - (287)
Share of exchange ElREHER
difference ofjointly MERZE
controlled entities - - - - - (503) - - - - (503) - (503)
Total comprehensive EREE (%) WASE
(expenses) income for
the year - - - - (78,09) 10120 (16,384) - - - (84,354) - (84,354
Transfer to reserve for BRANERENEE
value of share options HETRE
forfeited - - - (830) 830 - - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share- EsEINRHERLS
based transactions - - - 802 - - - - - - 802 - 802
Appropriationtoreserves  BHERfE - - - - (700) - - - 700 - - - -
Dividend declared and ERERRERARE
paid during the year (Histn)
(Note 14) = = = = (46,712) = - - - - (46,712 - (46,712
At31 July 2012 RIZ-ZE
tA=+-R 71,85 633,786 - 14,104 85,307 145,840 15118 2420 341 9 1,007,889 - 1,007,889
R -ZFFR KFREERARAA 105



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ADFARAARE
Retained
Share profits/ Investments Capital  Statutory Non-
Share Share Other options (accumulated ~ Exchange  revaluation  redemption surplus Legal controlling
capital premium reserve reserve loss) reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
BRE REE/ RE % EERH

Bx  BOEE  R6REE B (RHER)  EXBRE  ERER  BDER e EEER 88 FERES &g
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR THTL ThRL ThR TiEn TiEn TR TEx Tin TR THT THRL ThR

(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4)
(1) (Hi2) (Hi3) (Kite)
At 1 August 2012 W=E-—£)\B-H 71,854 633,786 - 14,104 85,307 145,840 15,118 2,420 3341 49 1,007,889 - 1,007,889
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (131,616) - - - - - (131,616) (303 (131,919
Other comprehensive EREBZERA :
incorne for the year:
Exchange differences AEMINEREE
arising on NERZR
translating
foreign operations - - - - - 19,739 - - - - 19,739 17 19,856
Netloss arising on ERERTEHESR
revaluation of BEEANERTE
available-for-sale
financial assets
during the year - - - - - - (10,108) - - - (10,108) - (10,108)
Reclassification 5
adjustments for
(gain) loss included
in the consolidated
statement of
profit or loss
- gain on disposal —HERS - - - - - - (1,258) - - - (1,258) - (1,258)
~ impairment loss —hEBE - - - - - - 710 - - - 710 = 710
Share of exchange Bl fBERA
difference of an HEXZR
associate - - - - - 300 - - - - 300 - 300
Share of exchange EliELREHER
difference of jointly HEHZR
controlled entities - - - - - 139 - - - - 139 - 139
Total comprehensive ERRE(RR)WALE
(expenses) income for
the year - - - - (131,616) 20,178 (10,656) - - - (122,094) (186)  (122,280)
Transfer to reserve for B ERENEE
value of share options HRZGE
forfeited - - - (466) 466 - - - - - - - -
Capital contribution by RS TE
non-controlling interests - - 489 - - - - - - - 489 5,046 5,535
Dividend declared and ERfTHRE
paid during the year Wizt 14)
(Note 14) - - - - (23,356) - - - - - (23,356) - (23,356)
At31July 2013 RZT-Z%
tA=1-H 71,854 633,786 489 13,638 (69,199) 166,018 4,462 2,420 3341 49 862,928 4,860 867,788
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

Notes:

1.

Other reserve

Other reserve represented the difference between the capital
contribution received from a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and the increase in its share of net asset value of that
subsidiary.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the
shares repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable
reserves of the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit
(after offsetting prior year losses) as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

Legal reserve

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code, the Company’s
subsidiary incorporated in Macau is required to appropriate 25%
of its net profit to a legal reserve until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. Legal reserve
is not distributable to shareholders.

HAt
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—B-=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Loss before tax PR A& 18 (139,709) (87,899)
Adjustments for: HATZIBIELFE -
Interest income S A (4,471) (7133)
Dividend income AR B A (2,838) (2,848)
Investment income from PSR T AKRERA
derivative financial instruments (3,255) (2.125)
Fair value loss on derivative TESBIAQFEER
financial instruments 1,025 1,524
Fair value loss on financial asset BERNFEIRITRERA
designated at fair value RENEMEENTEEBR
through profit or loss 803 -
Loss on disposal of derivative HETHE SR IAEE
financial instruments - 631
Gain on disposal of held-for- HEFEEERE s
trading investments (2,532) (1,589)
Gain on disposal of prepaid HEEMHEEFE R
lease payments (10,858) -
Fair value loss on held-for- FEBEERE N TEEE
trading investments 1,947 1,846
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEAHEESREEKR
sale financial assets (7,826) (4,134)
Impairment loss recognised in HAEEESREERRY
respect of available-for- REEE
sale financial assets 12,320 4123
Amortisation of prepaid T & SRR i
lease payments 868 1,371
Amortisation of deferred income IR A 5 (25) (24)
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment 40,049 43,493
Increase in fair value of REMERN R TEE M
investment property (160) (4,355)
Impairment loss recognised in B - BB R AR
respect of property, plant VERIEN R
and equipment 19,940 -
Impairment loss recognised in HIENAERIBRERA B ERRE
respect of prepaid lease payments 2,010 -
Share of results of jointly (L HEZEHEENEER
controlled entities 5,161 11,538
Share of result of an associate e — B & R R AR (37) (186)
Impairment loss recognised in TR AT B MR TR
respect of interests in jointly HREEE
controlled entities 629 1,800
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEREHEE
plant and equipment 1,700 76
Impairment loss recognised in o 8 Ui — ) L[R2 | B 8 X
respect of amount due from HERERERE
a jointly controlled entity 3,669 -
Impairment losses recognised Th e W 5 BRI HAth FE UK IR
in respect of trade and BRA R EEE
other receivables 1,158 171
Allowance for inventories FEEE 7,431 436
Government grants BT & (1,635) (1,121)
Finance costs FE AR 672 657
Equity-settled share-based REES (BT B AR 1 BB KB X2
payment expenses - 802
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Operating cash flows before EERESEPINCERERE
movements in working capital (73,964) (42,946)
Decrease in inventories FER> 10,307 14,947
Decrease in trade and other FEUE 5 AR 3R K E A W SR TE R A
receivables 55,509 25,699
(Decrease) increase in trade and BB SRR R H AR
other payables CR )i*j]l] (13,823) 7,360
Cash (used in) generated (AR REELEEHHNIEL
from operations (21,971) 5,060
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund REIFBNEH 22 6
Taiwan Profit-Seeking- ERNBEENEEMEN
Enterprise Income Tax paid (80) (161)
PRC Income Tax paid EASR BT ER (346) (863)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED (AR) REREZHNREFE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (22,375) 4,042
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RELH
Placement of short-term bank deposits EHIRITER (104,601) (101,794)
Purchase of held for trading BERBEERRE
investments (127,884) (77,790)
Redemption from held-to- BESE R HRE
maturity investments 44,455 -
Payment for derivative PTESBMT AR
financial instruments - (31,928)
Repayment (advance) of EWZEEFER (B
entrusted loan receivable 30,583 (30,500)
Purchase of held-to-maturity BERBERIEKRE
investments (7,586) (21,715)
Purchase of property, plant BEYE BB LRERE
and equipment (25,717) (13,556)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEESREE
financial assets - (15,254)
Purchase of financial asset BEEEERATEYRITNERZA
designated at fair value through RENEREE
profit or loss (37,800) =
Deposits paid for acquisition of BT T AR S
land use rights - (11,340)
Payment for construction in progress TEETIRNR (1,322) (6,218)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE  BERRERTEIE
plant and equipment 631 237
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid HERNHEERENATEHIA
lease payments 55,427 -
Investment income from derivative PTES R T EMRERA
financial instruments 3,255 2,125
Dividends received from B E S E E WAL E
available-for-sale financial assets 1,242 1,928
Repayment from jointly controlled HEEFIEBRNER
entities 2,965 1,234

it
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHTT
Interest received BUFIE 4,450 5,603
Proceeds from disposal of HEHEESHEENSHRIE
available-for-sale financial assets 19,590 8,786
Withdrawal upon maturity of R BRR AT 17 SR B EARR IR R
short-term bank deposits 95,574 10,924
Proceeds from disposal of HEMTESRTAEMMEIIE
derivative financial instruments - 31,716
Proceeds from disposal of HEFEE B R ENMEIE
held-for-trading investments 120,070 72,694
Dividends received from BHA 23R EREA RS
held-to-maturity investments 92 =
Dividends received from BREEERERIHRE
held-for-trading investments 204 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM ®E (AR REEZDNREFH
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 73,628 (174,848)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Repayment of bank borrowing RITETER (11,610) =
New unsecured bank borrowing raised s AR IRITIE - 31,734
Cash received from government grants EMBFHDERE 4,597 1,121
Interest paid BEAFE (672) (657)
Dividends paid EIIRE (23,356) (46,712)
Capital contribution received from B IEFE IR 2 R B B
non-controlling interests 5,535 -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ARBEETHNREFE
ACTIVITIES (25,506) (14,514)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RERRESEEWEMOHND) FH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,747 (185,320)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FONRERASEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 78,280 262,248
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERgapE
RATE CHANGES 883 1,352
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNBRSRASEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR, ARITRESB R T 27
represented by bank balances and cash 104,910 78,280
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

GENERAL

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the "Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
"Corporate Information” section of the Annual Report.
The Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of silicone
rubber and related products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC, Macau and Indonesia whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB"), Macau Pataca
("MOP") and Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") respectively, the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is
HKS.

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of
the Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in HK$.

At 31 July 2013, the directors of the Company consider
the ultimate holding company of the Company to be
Bluebell Global Enterprises Limited which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

—REHR

RASEERARAR((ARR ) RERSE
SEMAZHBERRF  ERONBEBBER
SRARAR ([BRAT]) ERET - KRR
MprEm Rk EEL X MBANMIERNFRIA
AER | —HHhRE - ARRREMBAR (A
B EZREYW R REREMMRERHE

HFEPBHRRTIABT(EIT]) 27 BRI
CEFIRENERZAMEB AR D BIRARE
(TAR® ) - BPI% ([DRPI% ) RENFEE (TEN
EEDERIGEE!RI KRR KEWEB AR
M E B RAETT -

HRAARRRER LT - MARRIEEA A
BYBHRRABTZINTIBRE

RZZE—=FtA=1+—H AXRFEERAE
AR R Al #) xR IR A & & Bluebell Global
Enterprises Limited (R A BRZHE ([ KB R
KEES 1) eEAaz) »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

112

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a
‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments
to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
in the current year. Under the amendments, investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the
purposes of measuring deferred taxes, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The Group measures its investment property using the fair
value model. As a result of the application of the
amendments to HKAS 12, the directors of the Company
reviewed the Group's investment property and concluded
that the Group's investment property located in the PRC
is held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, and that
the presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is
rebutted. Accordingly, there will be no effect on changes
in accounting policies on deferred tax liabilities on
changes in fair value of investment property located in the
PRC.

Except as described above, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosure set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

114

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

HK (International Financial
Reporting Interpretation
Committee) (“IFRIC")

— Interpretation ("Int") 20

HK(FRIC) - Int 21

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle'

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
— Government Loans'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements'

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities'

Fair Value Measurement!

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance'

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities and Separate Financial
Statements: Investment Entities?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets?

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting?

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine'

Levies?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs
include the amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements, the amendments to HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment and the amendments to
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position
only when the retrospective application, restatement or
reclassification has a material effect on the information in
the third statement of financial position and that related
notes are not required to accompany the third statement
of financial position.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts,
stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
classified as property, plant and equipment when they
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment in
HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group
has already adopted this treatment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments
clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and
settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for
financial instruments under an enforceable master netting
agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures
should also be provided retrospectively for all
comparative periods. However, the amendments to HKAS
32 are not effective until annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application
required.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS
7 may result in more disclosures being made with regard
to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the
future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’'s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11,
HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described
below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements. HK (SIC) — Int 12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under
HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for consolidation, that is,
control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of
control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor's returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK (SIC) - Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or
joint ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of
the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS
31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly
controlled operations. In addition, joint ventures under
HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements and associates, and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current
standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional
guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the
first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with
earlier application permitted provided that all of these
standards are applied at the same time.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are joint
arrangements under which each investor has joint control
and the rights to the net assets of the arrangements and
they are not joint operations. The investments are
accounted for using the equity method and therefore, the
first time adoption of HKFRS 11 for the financial year
ending 31 July 2014 is not expected to have any financial
impact on the Group.

Except disclosed in above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that these five standards will be adopted in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 August 2013. The application of
HKFRS 10 may have a significant impact on the Group's
accounting for its interest in an associate. However, the
directors of the Company have not yet performed a
detailed analysis of the impact of the application of these
standards and hence have not yet quantified the extent of
the impact.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception to
consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity, except
where the subsidiaries provide services that relate to the
investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is
required to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to
be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is
to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

] measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
have been made to introduce new disclosure
requirements for investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, with early application permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the amendments will have no effect on the Group as
the Company is not an investment entity.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair
value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and
requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are
more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based
on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently required
for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to
cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period ending 31 July 2014 and
that the application of the new standard may affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements
and result in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments and the investment property that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in an
existing subsidiary

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in an existing
subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBE®E)
(Continued)
Investment in an associate (Continued) REEDNTHIRE (E)

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of the associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, interest
in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
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long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
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with respect to the Group's interest in an associate. When B BARER  ARBEESHERE 365
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment [BERE] HIEE (BIEFE) 22 RmER

(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount,
any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Where a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of the interest in
the associate that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of the jointly
controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting except when the investment is classified as
held for sale (in which case it is accounted for under
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations). Under the equity method,
interests in jointly controlled entities are initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entities.
When the Group's share of losses of jointly controlled
entities equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entities (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment
in the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

The financial statements of jointly controlled entities used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBE®E)
(Continued)
Joint ventures (Continued) EELEE)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill, if any) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36

HEEHER(E)

ARG EREINRZREERAREEREH
E?MSEEA H% B 58 2 I EFER LA
EEE- - E6FER  REZESTERSE
365% FEEW@J HEE(BERE(WA))Z

ERREERE-EEETRENR  TER
BEATKEOSEAEREEREATFERFEE

Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its BAZBSE /L) BERMEELR  mE
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value EEE?E’]Eﬁ?)ﬁfﬁ@ﬂ%%ﬁ\g%ﬁﬁEEE{EZ—ﬁB
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment REEE 2 BB TRIEE B G AERIE 36
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the EJEEEW f’ﬁ%%gﬁxﬁﬁ{%%bﬂZTHﬂZ@@%ﬁ

investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is AR

recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that

the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled EXEEEEHEARIEFTERI SN - BHER
entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions ZHIE RS ﬁ?ﬁiﬁ’]?ﬁ/\MJﬁAZJXE@ﬁéﬁﬁ
with the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the TEMERATER - MELAP B 7N 52 B 3 1 4R 7 A £
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the A BN ER AR

extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are

not related to the Group.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale PEARABEHEZFRBEE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production of goods or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purpose are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees for qualifying assets capitalised in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, amortisation is charged to
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of
the rights using the straight-line method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBEm®
(Continued)
Investment property REM=

Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is measured at its fair
value using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at bank and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or
less. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
four categories including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded
in net gains or losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBE®E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRTEE)
Financial assets (Continued) SREE(F)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss N -FESIRRIE S 2 PG B A & B B
RATEINRWEBRRNEENSREED B
Wi BERFEECREERRY SRR
BERBRATEIIRTEEENRENERE
E= o

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as
at FVTPL on initial recognition.

HEBTIER  CREESNBAR(IEEER

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

on initial recognition, it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

WEEmEENTERMNBR AR K
fEHERE : X

EREERVSERRBRAEES G
ERMNEHRFeRIAEAGHN —HD
WABRIEREHENES : X

CREE/ABEENITETARAE
BIEREIHTH -

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for R HIRTIER - HIEEESRMEENIIN S
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial B E E ARV SRR R TR A AR
recognition if: BaANEE :

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other operating income. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in Note 7.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable from a
jointly controlled entity, trade and other receivables,
entrusted loan receivable, amounts due from jointly
controlled entities, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTBE®
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRMIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) TREE (&)
Available-for-sale financial assets A E T B E

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-sale equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBE®E)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRTEE)
Financial assets (Continued) SREE(F)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to
be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investments revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEESHEE®E)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRTEE)
Equity instruments EmTH

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group

T ASBHARKEZKHREMA AERA
BETARSBERNEFEH - REBEETH
T BB WA SRR B R BITRARE

are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct R e
issue costs.
Effective interest method BB

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective

ERMNEETIFESBRAENDHEERARD
FAEREMANERAIHTE -  BERNEDRSE
BB EM TR F R SGE A MBI - MRS

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated R ARRe N (BEREEBRKEBER
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or MENBENKERERRAEEZE  XHHA
received that form an integral part of the effective interest R E At % (B 33 40) = 1098 W RR B /9 BR [ R (B

rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and unsecured bank borrowing are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XE®HBE®
(Continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets BREENRBEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

J the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect

of the transaction can be measured reliably.
Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEESHEE®E)
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued) W TSR ()

(iii) Rental income (iiiy HEEWA

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

(iv) Service income

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

(v) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associate, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEBE®E)
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) BEE)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the

BEEHBEENRREES —REHRETR
A QEHRE AR R 9B R Bl i K R] A DA M )
B AR IEIETR IR B EE ©

BEEBREERABRBENREHRSEMK
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liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax EEENEESIRPENT RS -

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets RIEFRIBABREENG 2 REERS HARAR
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the SEEHREREKREISEEREEERAGERE

manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities for
investment property that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amount of such property is presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities for
such investment property are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the property will
be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XESHEE®)
(Continued)
Leasing HE

All leases of the Group are classified as operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the entity's
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying the
entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in
consolidated financial statements.
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
held-to-maturity investments in the light of its capital
maintenance and liquidity requirements and have
confirmed the Group's positive intention and ability to
hold those assets to maturity. As at 31 July 2013, the
carrying amount of the held-to-maturity investments is
approximately HK$10,100,000 (2012: HK$45,477,000).
Details of these assets are set out in Note 23.

Reversal of overprovision for Macau Complementary
Income Tax ("MCIT")

In respect of the reversal of overprovision for MCIT as
mentioned in Note 12, the management exercised their
judgement to determine that certain provision for MCIT
had gone beyond the five years time-barred period for tax
assessment and therefore, the respective provision for the
relevant period is reversed. The management will review
the reversal of MCIT provision on an ongoing basis.

Deferred taxation on investment property

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment property that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group's investment property and concluded
that the Group's investment property is held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment property, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amount of investment
property measured using the fair value model is recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values
involve management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate will
be changed in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

The Group tests annually whether property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments have suffered any
impairment in accordance with relevant accounting
policies. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates such as the future revenue
and discount rates. As at 31 July 2013, the carrying value
of property, plant and equipment is approximately
HK$264,638,000 net of accumulated impairment loss
recognised of approximately HK$19,940,000 (2012:
HK$290,626,000 net of accumulated impairment loss
recognised of nil). The carrying value of prepaid lease
payments is approximately HK$13,574,000 net of
accumulated impairment loss recognised of approximately
HK$2,010,000 (2012: HK$60,355,000 net of accumulated
impairment loss recognised of nil).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain investments in listed securities
as available-for-sale financial assets and recognised
movements of their fair values in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investments revaluation
reserve. When their fair values decline below their costs,
management makes assumptions about whether
impairment loss should be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. As at 31 July 2013, the carrying
value of listed securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets is approximately HK$30,069,000 net of
accumulated impairment losses recognised of
approximately HK$4,880,000 (2012: HK$51,899,000 net of
accumulated impairment losses recognised of
approximately HK$4,769,000). Accumulated impairment
losses previously recognised of approximately HK$599,000
(2012: nil) is released to profit or loss upon disposal during
the year.

For the available-for-sale financial assets not quoted in an
active market and measured at cost, the management
uses its judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique. Valuation techniques commonly used by the
market practitioners are applied. The Group’s unlisted
equity investments with carrying value of approximately
HK$2,015,000 net of accumulated impairment losses
recognised of approximately HK$12,199,000 (2012:

4.

EESTHEH RS TABEENE
ERIR )

At THABEENEERR(E)
AHHESRMEERE

AEEBETR EMBELNEES B AR HE
%‘i\pﬂéﬁ WREMEZEARABREQFE

2y RRKREERHFHETR + o %"?LET
Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁw&ﬁ% EREHERERTEE
HRTPERREBEELRSE - F_Ef—ﬁ
+tA=+—H SBEAHEESHEEN L
T 75 % /) BR @ 8 49 5 30,069,00078 7T (2 K
DR R TR EE B 44,880,008 7T) (=&
—Z4F : 51,899,000 0 (B BR EERRETR
BE18494,769,000770))  BERERE R5HE
EE1E4599,0008 L (ZF——F : T)RF
M SR B TEE -

FLRE BTG I 3R (E MR ANt 2 /0 7] 4

HELREENS  EEEMEERENGE
FEERHE - NEBERAMSHEETHD
HERE - AEBEREELA2,015,00087T(E
MR E R R TRERE412,199,000%70) (=
T ——4F : 13,625,000 7T (B KR E R R
BB 18 47589,00078 ) )M IE ETHHERS IR E -

FEAREM BN TIRBEER A IR M5 ES E

HK$13,625,000 net of accumulated impairment losses EETEERERR - ERARBE S REDTEST
recognised of approximately HK$589,000) are valued HE - ZFERERENAFEGENEE L&

using a discounted cash flow analysis based on the
assumptions supported, where possible, by observable
market prices or rates. The estimation of fair values of
these equity investments also includes some assumptions
not supported by observable market prices or rates.

WIFER A BETIHERKERMELORR
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment property

Investment property is carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2013 at its fair
value of approximately HK$32,382,000 (2012:
HK$31,195,000). The fair value was based on a valuation
on the property conducted by an independent firm of
professional valuers using open market value by reference
to comparable market transactions which involve certain
assumptions of market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result
in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
property and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based on
assessments of the net realisable value of inventories. An
allowance is applied to inventories where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the net realisable
value is lower than the costs of inventories. The
identification of obsolete inventories required the use of
judgement and estimates on the conditions and
usefulness of the inventories. Where the actual outcome
in future is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance write-back in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. As at 31 July 2013, the carrying value
of inventories is approximately HK$153,074,000 (net of
accumulated allowance of approximately HK$9,027,000)
(2012: the carrying value of inventories is approximately
HK$166,156,000 (net of accumulated allowance of
approximately HK$1,596,000).
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AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables with the accounting
policy stated in Note 3. Such provision for impairment is
established if there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. Management reassesses
the adequacy of any such provision on a regular basis. As
at 31 July 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$185,598,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$1,913,000) (2012:
carrying amount of trade receivables is approximately
HK$228,203,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$951,000).

Impairment losses recognised in respect of a loan
receivable and amounts due from jointly controlled
entities

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of a loan receivable and amounts due from
jointly controlled entities with the accounting policy stated
in Note 3. Such provision for impairment is established if
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms.
Management reassesses the adequacy of any such
provision on a regular basis. As at 31 July 2013, the
carrying amounts of a loan receivable and amounts due
from jointly controlled entities are approximately
HK$7,801,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of nil
(2012: HK$7,801,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts
of nil) and HK$5,428,000 net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$3,669,000 (2012:
HK$11,853,000 net of allowance for doubtful debts of nil)
respectively.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EESTHERMATTHBEENE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment losses on assets classified as held for sale

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower
of its carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell.
As at 31 July 2013, the directors of the Company have
assessed the carrying amount and compared to its fair
value less costs to sell, no impairment loss was recognised
in respect of the assets classified as held for sale for the
year ended 31 July 2013.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The management of the Group uses their judgements in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for derivative
financial instruments. Assumptions are made based on
quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instruments. If the inputs and estimates applied in the
model are different, the carrying amount of these
derivatives may change. As at 31 July 2013, the carrying
amount of derivative financial instruments is
approximately HK$1,204,000 (2012: HK$2,229,000).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The overall
strategy of the Group remained unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of short-term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, unsecured bank
borrowing and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the
associated risks. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends
and the issue of new debts.

EXERER

7SR B A A IR I B E (TS LM 2R
BT R E B R
AR BRI - 7o B BB 5 B
EERBTE -

REBNERNREBEERRITER - RITHE
#BREE BEARTEFTARERBEE A
bR (BREBTRARMERE) - NAAFE
EEMMABEARRLE - (ERIRE —#0 - AR
AEEEEEAKALABRR - RIEAAE
ExEs AEESEBRNERE RETHE
FEHEBRBEARRE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EWMIT A
Categories of financial instruments SRIENER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial Assets SREE
Fair value through profit or loss RAFEYBRI 1B 5 A R IR
Held-for-trading investments REERRE 14,250 5,851
Financial asset designated at EERATHEYRIT R EZEA
fair value through profit or loss BRENGRIEE 36,997 -
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 1,204 2,229
52,451 8,080
Held-to-maturity investments FAEEIHKRE 10,100 45,477
Loans and receivables (including B R EKEZE (B
bank balances and cash) RITHEBERS) 417,982 477,479
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESREE 32,084 65,524
Financial Liabilities SREE
At amortised cost b re = DN 104,493 131,890
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets,
derivative financial instruments, financial asset designated
at fair value through profit or loss, loan receivable from a
jointly controlled entity, trade and other receivables,
entrusted loan receivable, held-for-trading investments,
amounts due from jointly controlled entities, short-term
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, unsecured bank
borrowing and trade and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several
subsidiaries of the Company in currencies other than
those subsidiaries’ functional currencies. In addition,
certain portion of the loan receivable from a jointly
controlled entity, amounts due from jointly controlled
entities, available-for-sale financial assets, held-to-maturity
investments, derivative financial instruments, financial
asset designated at fair value through profit or loss, held-
for-trading investments, trade and other receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
unsecured bank borrowing are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the entities to
which they relate.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BREBEEBEERBEK#E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued) BE¥EkE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency REEAIMNEHENEBEEREB A ERR
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at SHHHREENT

the reporting date are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
'E afE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_Eg—= === —Eg—= ===
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T T
United States Dollars (“USD") S t([ZET)) 20,157 29,847 3,573 5,968
Euro ("EUR") BT ([T ) 365 4 = =
Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR") 2R g ik
(I5%1) 5,185 5,105 - -
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE([HE]) 1,791 921 380 310
RMB ARE 37,377 37,274 - -
New Taiwan Dollars ("NTD") T a#¥ ([FHa# ) 178,943 230,414 1,122 1,163
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency ANEBEIRGIW EINEERER - AT BEEE
hedging policy. However, the management monitors ERINERRIIN AT ERZ BEHEARIMNE
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging BB ©

significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of USD, EUR,
MYR, JPY, NTD and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
(2012: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2012: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A negative number below indicates an increase in loss
where HK$ strengthens 5% (2012: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening of HK$ against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss and other equity, and the
balances below would be positive.
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MEREREEBERBEK#E)

BE¥ R (&)
HRESFT

REBFERZET B % AE -
B RAREHEBRER

T FREFI AN 5 B 4 A T AR R 9N S O B SR A
5%(ZF——F 5% WBEE - 5%(=F
——4F :5%) BRAIEEZEEE A 8 {EHRIPHN
KRR ERFFFTANSREL R WAEEE
HIEXRSBAREE BTG - WREDTER
FEASNE EERAREZEERIEE - WHIMNEIE
RH5% (ZF——4F : 5%) BB ABRBENF
KSR - TRNBEBTEBENEITLIER
EEFAESB(ZF——F : 5% ) BRGNS EE o
BT AR BB ES%( =T ——4F : 5%)
Bl¥E 18 Rk s B AR B AR R 2
MmN A EEERBIAIEE -

uUsD MYR JPY NTD RMB
EpT e =} Ham ARY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Loss after tax K18 B 1R
— 2013 ——ZT—=F (6,424) (541) 6) (2,309) (1,987)
— 2012 ——F—_fF (7,568) (632) (3) (3,061) (2,273)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate loan receivable from a jointly
controlled entity, deposits with banks and unsecured bank
borrowing and is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate short-term bank deposits and
held-to-maturity investments for the year ended 31 July
2013. To mitigate the impact of interest rate fluctuations,
the Group continually assesses and monitors the exposure
to interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2012: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$223,000 (2012: HK$276,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate loan receivable from a
jointly controlled entity, deposits with banks and
unsecured bank borrowing.

MBRREERERBEK#)

R 2= @ B

HE_Z—=FtA=1T—"HILEFE F£E
SN — M HEE ERAZEER  RITE
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TEBREIE | —HF -
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EER (2 — 4 : 50MEEER) Mo R
MRAEREIEA B A EDAH = [ b [ 2R AT
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in available-for-sale financial assets and held-
for-trading investments. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity securities had been
5% (2012: 5%) higher/lower:

— loss for the year ended 31 July 2013 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$713,000 (2012:
HK$293,000) as a result of the changes in fair values
of held-for-trading investments; and

— investments revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,503,000 (2012:
HK$2,595,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed available-for-sale
financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 July 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amounts of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 68%
(2012: 73%) of the total trade and bills receivables as at 31
July 2013.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 16% (2012:
23%) and 49% (2012: 60%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The credit risk on liquid funds, derivative financial
instruments, financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss and held-to-maturity investments is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of deposits with banks and
bank balances and cash deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. As at 31
July 2013, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts
of the unsecured bank borrowing with a repayment on
demand clause approximately amounted to
HK$20,161,000 (2012: HK$31,945,000) and included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
bank choosing to exercise its rights.

Except for the unsecured bank borrowing, all other
financial liabilities are non-interest bearing and their
maturity dates are within one year or on demand.

MBRREERERBEK#)

FERRE &)

REEREERERR AEEEEECDKEEE
BREREEERE FEMEREMBEER
Fr o fE R BR ER R A 5 5 A e B 80 BR 5 7R = it
S AEBREHRERRERESEHE ZER
AR E SRR BRATATRESEELEH
HURERTE - LM E - ARREZRRAE
EMEERBRERERE -

AEFERWEMEFENEERREEEF R
PR E T =F+tA=+—HHEKES
R R EWE R A5 % (B ——5F : 73%) ©

AEEBFEEETHER  REREKE SR
TR ER BB BT 16% (=T —ZF : 23%)
K 49% (ZZF— % : 60%) B B FE AR =
RABRPMARTPHFIA

HREFHREBRREETRARBRTREE
FEAREVERTT Bt RBE S - TTAESRT A -
BERAFEIRENEBRARENSHEE
EFAEIMRENEERRER -

RBE SRR

REBRBECRRNE @ AEEERIRITT
BARBITEHRRIES  UEEEFREEE
RERANKE  BAEBEBREES - I
BIERESRERDNTE - RZT—=F+A
=+—H - IR ERKEEIEROEIRRERT
& SR H) AR AR 3R AR & 48584 5 20,161,000 78 T ( =
T —Z4F : 31,945,000 7T) + Wit A FHYH]
MEE A (T RiRI TR TEE N A AT aE M) ©

BREEMRITESIN MBEEMESREEDR
SERTR - MEARHR S —FANN EREEE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively;

(i)  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current
market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments; and

(i)  the fair value of derivative financial instruments is
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, use is made of discounted cash
flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of current financial assets and current financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values due to
their immediate or short-term maturities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amount of loan receivable from a jointly controlled entity,
which carries variable interest rate and reprices with
reference to market changes, approximates its fair value.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

assets or liabilities.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

MBRREERERBEK#)

REREM BN REZN A FEEE)

%= EAFEE S —EARREANT
BRAESR ESABREE (DER) LHE
(BB (ER) B -

F—EBAVEFEHERBLIFARBET S
B(TABREE) RERNEEXBEH AR
ERBERMNEE -

31 July 2013
—g-=ftA=+-~H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—8 FfE st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET TERT
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEYRILEED
NEENESHMEE
Held-for-trading investments HIEEEIRE 14,250 - 14,250
Financial asset designated at FETE IR A F A BRI A
fair value through profit or loss BamNEIER
TRIEE - 36,997 36,997
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMTA - 1,204 1,204
Available-for-sale financial assets AJt HE LR EE
Listed equity securities ETRAEES 30,069 - 30,069
44,319 38,201 82,520
31 July 2012
—E——-F+tA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
F—E F_E a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEIREERR
NEENSHMEE
Held-for-trading investments HBEEEKRE 5,851 = 5,851
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A = 2,229 2,229
Available-for-sale financial assets At HES RIS E
Listed equity securities ETIRAES 51,899 = 51,899
57,750 2,229 59,979

There have been no transfers between Levels 1 and 2
during the years ended 31 July 2013 and 2012.

REE-TE—=ER-_FT——F+HA=1+—H
IFEE  F—EBRE_E BV ET([EE o
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. EXTRHMEERA

INCOME

Turnover represents fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and for goods sold in the normal
course of business to customers, net of discounts and

sales related tax.

Turnover and other operating income recognised for the

year are as follows:

AE P
sHEMRRATIA -

ERERCUHERRERERBEFBET
mERENRFE - MR R

AEEHRNEFBREMLEWRANT

2013 2012
—E—=F —E2——F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Turnover e
Sale of goods HEEmMm 551,326 624,525
Other operating income AL PN
Interest income B WA
— Bank deposits — RITEHK 3,432 4,673
— Held-to-maturity investments — RBFEZEIHRE 630 277
— Entrusted loan receivable — EREFEER 210 1,836
— Loan receivable from a jointly — RS T
controlled entity MER 199 347
Total interest income FBUL A ez 4,471 7,133
Agency income from trading of BEE AR RIBHEA
biodiesel 9,499 7,428
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HEEMAEREN S
payments 10,858 =
Increase in fair value of investment EMENDNFEL (M aE21)
property (Note 21) 160 4,355
Investment income from derivative PTHES R T AMRERA
financial instruments 3,255 2,125
Gross rental income (Note a) THe WAL (fzFa) 1,049 1,146
Penalty income SR A 222 438
Dividend income A& B U A 2,838 2,848
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale  H&ER[HEHED R EER W
financial assets 7,826 4,134
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HEREEBERENKE
investments 2,532 1,589
Government grants BT B &
— Amortisation of deferred income — F AR A S (F77E39)
for the year (Note 39) 25 24
— Grants related to expenses — BEERAEML LW AR
recognised as other operating A EENmEE S
income (Note b) (KizEb) 1,635 1,121
Sundry income AU 4,255 3,785
48,625 36,126
Total turnover and other operating =L EPNERFE N PNk
income 599,951 660,651
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8.

INCOME (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  An analysis of the Group's net rental income is as follows:

EEEAREMBEERA @)

Mt :

@) ASEESWAFENIFTMOT

2013 2012
=F—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHET
Gross rental income e ALz 1,049 1,146
Less: Outgoings incurred for investment B NEREARS AR
property that generated rental KBTS RS
income during the year (included in GFATTERRA)
administrative expenses) (171) (195)
Net rental income HEWAFEE 878 951

(b) For the years ended 31 July 2013 and 2012, the amount
represented unconditional grants from government for
subsidising the operations of high technology enterprises
in the PRC.

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9.

The Group's turnover, results, assets and liabilities are
primarily attributable to the manufacturing and sale of
silicone rubber and related products, based on
information reported to the chief executive officer, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment. The
directors of the Company consider that there is only one
operating and reportable segment for the Group.

b) #HEE—=FK-_FT—_—F+tA=t1+—HIt
FE  BEAREARBAEEDFESREE
XEENEREHEDE

2 ERE

BREBERETRER (B EBLERKE) DECE
BREFHERBRMAERENER - AEEHZ
X XE BERAEIZRABEREE
WBRHEER ARAEZRR  AEER
B AR ERTREDED °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
Turnover from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover from
its major products:

2 EBE R (41
TEEMEXRE

AREB X RE MR EEBDIMMAT -

2013 2012
—E—= —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT

Keypads for consumer electronic HEBEFEmRE
devices 213,101 266,897
Keypads for computers and notebooks 5 & [z 25 50 7Y 6 s i 43t 169,774 204,383
Lifestyle products HEVEES 55,808 59,234
Keypads for mobile phones F ki 35,379 20,753
Automotive peripheral products R FEEE M 35,692 27,283
Others products HiES 41,572 45,975
551,326 624,525

Geographical information

The Group's operations are principally located in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's turnover from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
customers and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

i E E
AEFENEBEFEVNPRENKES -
AEBRREEE D 2 KB INIBE P&

SN REAEMERE S 2 ERDAER
BB -

Turnover from

external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEFHEELE IREBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F —E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT FET T
The PRC A B
(excluding Hong Kong) (BBERIN) 327,781 373,969 297,231 373,415
Hong Kong E55 97,985 112,381 8,953 10,285
Other Asian countries E M TMNBEI R 99,340 108,793 22,293 23,410
America £ 19,161 18,613 - =
Europe M 7,059 10,769 1,678 1,341
551,326 624,525 330,155 408,451

Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale financial
assets, held-to-maturity investments and loan receivable
from a jointly controlled entity.
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9.
Information about major customers
Turnover from customers contributing over 10% of the

total sales of the Group are derived from sales of silicone
rubber and related products in both years and are as

Statements

D EER (E)
FTEEFEHR
R - 3G R B 5 4 580 10% &)

BEPMEXEE  HREVBREMEMRKEE -
BRI

follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THBT
Customer A ZEH 100,036 132,616
Customer B 2E7, 71,992 85,738
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. HApix
2013 2012
—E—=%F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
Exchange losses i &R 4,649 5,558
Impairment loss recognised in respect Al {# H & & pl & EER
of available-for-sale financial assets KRB E R 12,320 4,123
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREZBEE
plant and equipment 1,700 76
Fair value loss on held-for-trading FEEEREN A TERE
investments 1,947 1,846
Loss on disposal of derivative HETES T AR
financial instruments - 631
Impairment loss recognised in respect ¥ - BE RREERNREEE
of property, plant and equipment 19,940 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FLIETE FIBFERHREEE
of prepaid lease payments 2,010 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Fi# £k [Fl12 1| & 82 A 1 25 iR A
interests in jointly controlled entities  JE{EE1E 629 1,800
Impairment loss recognised in respect of i & Uy — &5 2t [B] 122 & & 28 ZUE #E R
amount due from a jointly controlled  HYREEE
entity 3,669 -
Fair value loss on financial asset EERAFEFIRI AR AR
designated at fair value through MemEENRTERER
profit or loss 803 -
Fair value loss on derivative financial TEEMIARNTFERE
instruments 1,025 1,524
48,692 15,558
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. MEHRAR
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
Interest on unsecured bank borrowing 7B F 6 A HE & B E K IF
wholly repayable within five years SRITIERFE 672 657
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FifSBiESR
2013 2012
—E-—=F —FT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current tax BIVERTHIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH - -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B FTISHE 1,617 143
Taiwan Profit-Seeking-Enterprise B UEE i)
Income Tax (“Taiwan Income Tax") ([BEmEH]) = 161
1,617 304
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFERETR GBERE)
PRC e 32 -
Hong Kong BE 43 -
MCIT (Note) RIS TR (HfaE) (9,342) (10,524)
(9.267) (10,524)
Deferred taxation (Note 40) EIERIE (H17F 40)
Current year REFE (140) a1
(7,790) (2,809)

Note: Due to no formal tax assessment notice has been issued by
the Macau tax authority and the expiry of five years time-
barred period in accordance with the MCIT (Decree Law
21/78/M) Article 55, the management of the Company
assessed that the overprovision for MCIT in prior years of
approximately HK$9,342,000 (2012: HK$10,524,000) is
written back and credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 31 July 2013.
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12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12. FRiiSHiE SR (&)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group did not
derive any assessable profits for the years ended 31 July
2013 and 2012.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision for Indonesia Income Tax for the years
ended 31 July 2013 and 2012 has been made as the
subsidiary operating in Indonesia did not generate any
assessable profits in Indonesia.

Ta Yang Group (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited was
incorporated as a commercial offshore entity in Macau
and is exempted from MCIT.

Taiwan Income Tax was calculated at 17% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 July 2012. No
provision for Taiwan Income Tax for the year ended 31
July 2013 has been made as the Group did not generate
any assessable profits in Taiwan.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards. Accordingly, provision for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25%
of estimated assessable profits for both periods, except
disclosed as follows:

o Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic Technology Company
Limited (“Huzhou Ta Yang”) and Dongguan Tai
Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial Company Limited
("Dongguan Tai Yang"”) are foreign investment
enterprises and are entitled to tax concessions
whereby the profit for the first two financial years
beginning with the first profit-making year is
exempted from income tax in the PRC and the profit
for each of the subsequent three years is taxed at
50% of the prevailing tax rates.

o In September 2008, Huzhou Ta Yang is recognised
as an approved technology enterprise and is eligible
to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2009
to 31 December 2013.

HRAEEEHE T =F N T~ —F+
A=t— R FEXEELEFFERBEN -
W B|R T A BRRAIEH T BN S TEE -

REFAEFENEBRLUHESNHRANIIESR
AEEHABMNHESRENEBRIHBENE
RS °

HREHEEENNBARLBENEELE
A ERTGAN - At ERABE_F—=F R
—ZE-—HF+ A=+—HIFFEEHNEMRE
B o

RSB CRPIBEAERS) ERQ AR
AT AR L A B T R RS S - R R AR
FIPRSMTERL ©

BE—T——FLA=+—BLFE A8
BB R ERBUEFIN 17% 55 - RAE
50 A8 00 4 2 A E AR BT A
BEE—T—=FLA=—HILFEHEA
S B -

REBEPBECEAEFETRRAF/TX]) R
EMBWEERGD  PRMBARNR-ZF
NE—A— BRI ER25% - Bt - HEH
& B H) AR B (R 2 PTG AR B e i 5% R L A R A
ETERBE N 25% 5t 8 - T FIMREE
G

o MNKEFEFRHRBRAB(DHMAE])
HERERFBRBHEMEBR AR (REX
FDRIMERE  AIZEHRARR &
It EEERFE R ERETRFEE
B A AT B R AR BT ISR  Hig=
FEFRNZERHERERT

] RZZFEZNFNA @ HNKFERA A
RERMEE  WARZZTENF—A
—HRE_ZE—=F+=-A=+—HH
M=ZH 15%MEEHE -
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12.

168

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 12. Frf

o The first profit-making year of Dongguan Tai Yang is o
2008. Accordingly, Dongguan Tai Yang is exempted
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax from 1 January
2008 to 31 December 2009 and is entitled to a 50%
exemption of income tax from 1 January 2010 to 31
December 2012. From 1 January 2013 onwards,
provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for
Dongguan Tai Yang is calculated at 25% of its

estimated assessable profits.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss as follows:

FANFTE 5 HAR
BHERAT :

SHER @)

REANFNEEENFER_TT/\F -
Hit REAFB-_ZZEN\F—HF—H
RE_FTNF+_A=+—HHHE
HReBMTBEMERMEN X8 _F—

TZFEF—HF—HREZE_ZT—

—F+=A

=+ —HER=ZEAES0% TSR % o
H-ZE—=F—A—H RENFE
H A 5T FE R B 0m A B9 25% 1B H AR Bl 1b %

FS Bt o

& 185 3R T E RO BR % A1 &S

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Loss before tax MR AR (139,709) (87,899
Tax credit at rates applicable to loss  &iE AR A B 1A E R EIER
in the jurisdictions concerned FREFTENHIIE R (18,731) (16,757)
Tax effect of income not subject to tax H/ER R A BB 22 (4,991) (988)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT BB 5 S F B 75 B2 22
for tax purposes 9,361 1,592
Tax effect of share of result of e E R R EENTBTE
an associate (6) @3
Tax effect of share of results of AEHFEHEEEENT B2
jointly controlled entities 296 1,578
Utilisation of tax losses previously BB I AR R A A S 1R
not recognised (12) =
Overprovision in prior years BT FE R R (9,267) (10,524)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERF S E RN TS 2 15,560 15,321
Income tax credit for the year FAFTEHRIER (7,790) (9,809)

Details of deferred taxation are shown in Note 40.
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13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 13. FRAEE
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss for the year has been arrived at SR EE TS IR A TR IE ¢
after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZBENEN & 1,329 1,277
Amortisation of prepaid lease T AR &R IE S (M5t 20)
payments (Note 20) 868 1,371
Costs of inventories sold (Note) BEETFERAN (M) 535,779 587,652
Allowance for inventories (included in 77 &#4& ((T ASEEKA)
cost of sales) 7,431 436
Share of taxation of an associate S —EEE AR FIE 18 43
Depreciation of property, plant and W BE RRETE
equipment (Note 18) (et 18) 40,049 43,493
Directors’ emoluments (Note 17) B (MaE17) 5,074 5,688
Impairment loss recognised in respect of i U & 5 BR 7 K £ {th & Yg 3k 18
trade and other receivables (Note 28)  #ERH AR 1S (K17E 28) 1,158 171
Research and development costs 25 Ak ZX 5,049 4,745
Payments under operating leases in AR REFNLEHERT
respect of land and buildings NN 7,577 7,715
Equity-settled share-based payment  #EZSE S HYID ERE (T FRFI 52
expenses = 802
Staff costs (excluding directors’ ETIRA(CTEEESIHNE)
emoluments) (Note 16) (Ba£16) 291,935 305,226
Note: Cost of inventories sold included approximately Hiit - EEFERABIEEE THRA  FEFAX KK
HK$267,940,000 (2012: HK$287,199,000) relating to staff LHEBEREMMNESEY 267,940,000 T (=
costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges T — 4 : 287,199,000 7T) - EEELFITE
which amounts are also included in the respective total FTAR EXB BEEN A BAEA o

amounts disclosed separately above.
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14. DIVIDENDS RECOGNISED AS DISTRIBUTION
DURING THE YEAR

14. FAERBDTRHERE

2013 2012
—ET—=F —ET—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Dividend recognised as distribution FARRRDIKARE
during the year:
2012 final dividend declared and EEREEN - FRERE
paid of HK$0.03 (2011: HK$0.06) BR0.03BIL(ZE——%F:
per share 0.06787T) 23,356 46,712
The directors of the Company do not recommend the AAAREETRAEZRNEBEE -—T—=F+ 8
payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended —t+—HIEERMERERES (T ——F : &

31 July 2013 (2012: final dividend of HK$0.03 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 July 2012).

15. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the

15.

ET - —HFLA=T-HIEFENRAKRSE
Fh0.03E7T) °

BREE
(a) E&X

BREBEEDRMEFERAREES AR
E 1R R AR 397 & B AR Y I 15 2L

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue HE o
during both years.
2013 2012
—E-—=F 2%

Loss for the year attributable to RARHEE NEIEFEEE

owners of the Company (HK$'000) (F#1) (131,616) (78,090)
Weighted average number of BT SRR INET 2

ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (1) 778,541 778,541
Loss per share (HK cents) FREE GBIl (16.90) (10.03)

(b) Diluted (b) #8

The computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options for the years ended 31 July 2013 and
2012 as the exercise prices of those options are
higher than the average market price for shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

16. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

16. EIRA(FTREFEEHE)

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET—C—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 4 - 88 & H g F| 277,522 288,596
Retirement benefit schemes RIKEFIE 2R

contributions 14,413 16,021

Share-based payments LARR 5 72 ZE R B9 5 3K - 609

291,935 305,226

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined
contribution schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which are available to
qualified employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently
administered funds. Monthly contributions made by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated
under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in
the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this country
participate in respective government retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the Schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees.
Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The
relevant authorities of the PRC are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Schemes.

Employees employed by the Group’s operations in Macau
Special Administrative Region (“MSAR") are members of
government-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the MSAR government. The MSAR operations
are required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the MSAR government is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

FENMBARRBEEERHIMELTE S BIF
PIREEREBRLERMRTE - ZFTE
MEERBYEEESRE  BNBARNE
ENF - MERREARERFHKANET
B 20 L SR AB R AR T AT AR Y B E SR AR (2@ )
TR -

RETEBERERNRL - NEENEAMNME
REZEBBBFHRARENGE(ZER
g1 MEARARLRZEEIERHEK
REEREENERKRBNRHES - MZFF
S R R TR oh B AR 1) AT BR 653 B 3 B A
ANETEAOLE - FEAHEERARRR
KEBXNEBERKE - AEEZFHEIN
M — B EERES AR ET R ERI R -

AEBENRPIRRITTHER (DRFIRFE ) WERK
PR R E (2 B 58 PR [ BURT A &8 R IR AR A
FHEIR R - BRI REENRBTARZE
KM 88 AELERHER - RBERRENIRE
HE S - BLULIRRPIR BB FTEERRIKR
MEHEIM S - ARE MK —BEE(FH &S
PR E RO HER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

16.

17.

172

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

The retirement benefit schemes contributions represent
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by
the relevant authorities of the PRC, the retirement scheme
operated by the MSAR government and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in Note 41.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

16. ETRA(FEREEEMHE) @)

RAREMNGFEHRTEAEERTERERE B

TR ER &

SR PR (8 BT A% A7 ) AR AR AT 8

KRB BRI EREE LA HRK -

ARBRTAEEEBBRENFFIBHRNME

410

17. EERTHARZHE

(a) Directors’ and chief executive officer’s (a) EERTHARMNE
emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine BN ERNNE(ZE—ZF: Wh&)E
(2012: nine) directors and the chief executive officer ERITHEZ SN ZIMT :
are as follows:
For the year ended 31 July 2013 BE-Z-—=FtA=+—HLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
and other Discretionary  schemes based
Fees  benefits bonus  contributions  payments Total
#4020 BUER  URfGA
#e REMERN BRERL  HEMR  ERNAR £y
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ThEL ThEL ThAL ThnL ThEL Thn
Executive directors BITES
Huang Sheng-Shun = e - 1,200 80 15 - 1,295
Huang Te-Wei (Note) =HIER(HFE) - 863 56 15 - 934
Lin Hung-Ming MZ=EH - 957 62 15 - 1,034
Wong Tak Leung HER - 756 63 15 - 834
Non-executive director EHITES
Wu lh Chen REW 180 338 24 15 - 557
Independent non-executive directors ¥& 37 FEEITES
Kirk Yang (Note) 15 &R (Hfat) - - - - - -
Yeung Chi Tat HEE 180 - - - = 180
Hsieh Yu A 120 - - - - 120
Jou Yow-Jen 5Pk 120 - - - - 120
600 4,114 285 75 - 5,074
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

17. EERTHEARMNE &)

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s (a) EERTHARMS (&)
emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 July 2012 BE-Z——-—FtA=+—HLFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
and other Discretionary ~ schemes based
Fees benefits bonus  contrbutions  payments Total
e 2 REER  HRGA
e REMEN  BERL SERX EROER &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T5n THr T5n THL THr T5n
Executive directors HITES
Huang Sheng-Shun w5 = 1,200 100 12 47 1,359
Huang Te-Wei (Note) == (M) - 924 70 12 29 1035
Lin Hung-Ming M Z=EH = 1,035 78 12 32 1,157
Wong Tak Leung mHER = 756 63 12 30 861
Non-executive directors FHITES
Kirk Yang (Note) S RER (Kat) - - - = = -
Wu Ih Chen REH 180 579 30 12 43 844
Independent non-executive directors ¥ 3 FEEITESE
Yeung Chi Tat GnE 180 = = = 4 184
Hsieh Yu FRIN 120 - - - 4 124
Jou Yow-Jen IEbaE2 120 - - - 4 124
600 4,494 341 60 193 5,688

Note: Mr. Huang Te-Wei is also the chief executive officer
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as
the chief executive officer.

Mr. Kirk Yang ceased to be the non-executive
director and was re-designated as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 15 November 2012 for a term of three years.

On 1 February 2011, Mr. Kirk Yang and the Company
signed a deed of waiver whereas Mr. Kirk Yang
agreed to forgo to receive directors’ fee from the
Company commencing on 1 February 2011.

fifet - ERBEEMAARRRITHRAS - £EX
PR NS B IR E(EATTRA R M
RIS S -

BREBEEE —E——F+—A+HH
RTBRIFNTES  XHEREAR

BIUERITESE - BH=F -

RZBE——F_A—H HEBEEHE
KRB LHARRL  REZRK 5
EREEREE T ——4F_H—HE
WERARBUNESHES

“E-CHER AFEEERERARF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

17. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, no other directors
and the chief executive officer waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
July 2013 and 2012.

The discretionary bonus for both years was
determined by reference to the performance of the
directors and the profitability of the Group.

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2012: five) were directors and
chief executive officer of the Company whose
emoluments are set out above. The emolument of
the remaining one (2012: nil) individual was as

(a)

(b)

17. EERTHREBMNE 2)

ESRITBERME (@)

b bR BEEIN  MEBEEERBE=
T—=FR-_F——FtA=+—HL
FEHREXRERETMAME o

MEFERBIBIEADE2RESF KR
RAEENBFENRETE °

EREEEME

FEBALBREFALS W (=F
— =% A1) BEARNEERTHA
B HENHEBREX - BT—A(=
T——fF: B)MHLWT :

follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—CfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Salaries, allowances and other e R R EMER
benefits 832 -
Retirement benefit schemes RIRAE T B 51
contributions 15 _
847 -
The emolument was within the following band: BN FATEE :

No. of individuals

AE
2013 2012
=2—= —E—_fF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7 7T 1 =
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 B EZE=—Z—=F+ A=+—HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - BERZE
Properties Furniture,
held for Motor Plantand fixtures and Leasehold
own use vehicles machinery equipment  improvements Total
Kt fll - RE
E)iES hE BERHAS ke HENREE L h

HK$000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HK§000 HK§000 HK§000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

cosT A

At 1 August 2011 RZE-—%/\A-H 108,380 6,822 337,200 7333 75,101 600,839
Exchange realignment A% 11 83 3998 837 M 7,000
Additions RE 82 51 4024 4227 5222 13,606
Transfer from construction in progress  EEEER T

(Note 19) (Hi#19) - - 1973 2525 55 4553
Disposals e = 439) (1.752) (563) - 2,754)
At 31 July 2012 RZF-—FtA=1-H 109,633 6,517 345,443 80,362 81,289 623,244
Exchange realignment R 310 17 1,134 2552 2675 19,688
Additions RE 8 345 19.392 2530 3398 5,751
Transfer from construction in progress  B&AER T (7 19)

(Note 19) - - 13719 1714 - 3,093
Disposals e (938) - (8477) (1,355) - (10,770)
At31 July 2013 R-E-—=F+A=1-H 111,80 7079 368,871 85,803 87,362 661,006
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND  Z:fHE KR

[MPAIRMENT
At 1 August 2011 R=F——%/\f-R 20,566 3599 167371 52,001 44621 288,164
Exchange realignment EiE= 212 44 2002 613 531 3402
Provided for the year (Note 13) EREEHEED) 4976 830 24,169 7839 5629 4349
Eliminated on disposals HERLE - (395) (1,551) (495) - (2441)
At 31 July 2012 RZB-—F+A=1-H 25,754 4128 191,991 59958 50,787 332618
Exchange realignment A% 929 151 6,663 2,003 1,742 11,488
Provided for the year (Note 13) EREEHEED) 4975 706 24,234 5833 4301 40,049
Impairment loss recognised MR BERERNRERR

in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss 5290 192 10425 1,716 2317 19,940
Eliminated on disposals HERE ) - (6,464) (1,186) - (1727)
At 31 July 2013 RZE-ZEtA=1-A 36,871 5177 206,849 68,324 59147 396,368
CARRYING VALUES ]

At 31 July 2013 RZE-ZFtA=1-A 75,020 1902 142022 17419 28215 264,638
At 31 July 2012 RZF-#tA=1-A 83879 2389 153452 20,404 30,502 290,626
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives less residual value as follows:

Properties held for own use situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than
50 years after the date of completion.

Estimated useful life

18.

W% - BERR®E @)

A EWE - BB MR B A EAREIZ A T A
sHAE AR RIS EEF EITE

ME i oA BYRRAREROBESR
HAET A AFEHGEX B HR0FA) MR
RENE -

Residual value

fhEt AL A 1A FerEE
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%
JED 5%
Plant and machinery 10 years 10%
B Bt es 104F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
&L~ HE KRB 5%

Leasehold improvements

HEMEEE

Shorter of the lease term and -
5to 10 years
AR SZEI10F - UREE AL

During the year ended 31 July 2013, the Group had
continuously suffered from operating loss. As a result of
the adverse operating environment and the change in
market conditions, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and determined that a number of those assets
were impaired. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$19,940,000 had been recognised. The recoverable
amounts of the property, plant and equipment have been
determined by reference to a valuation report conducted
by an independent qualified professional valuer, BMI
Appraisals Limited (“BMI”) and determined based on the
value in use calculation. The pre-tax discount rates in
measuring the amounts of value in use range from 18.32%
to 26.21% in relation to property, plant and equipment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 B EZE=—Z—=F+ A=+—HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M1%¥ - REREE &)
(Continued)
The carrying value of properties held for own use shown FHtEEE AMENREERRE

above comprises of:

2013 2012
—E—=%F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHETT
Medium-term leases RHEEE
— in Hong Kong — URER 8,581 8,816
— outside Hong Kong — HBLAIMEE 66,439 75,063
75,020 83,879
On 3 September 2013, the carrying value of land and RZE—=FhLA=H R-_ZE—=F+tA
buildings located in Hong Kong under medium-term lease =+—HREERS8,581,0008IL(ZFE—=4F :
amounted to HK$8,581,000 as at 31 July 2013 (2012: nil) is DR BEAREBETHEEREN L REF
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. BETHEAR  (ERRKEMERRITEERER
19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. EEIRE
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 August RAA—B 2,423 749
Exchange realignment I &, A 41 9
Additions NE 1,322 6,218
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE  RERRE
equipment (Note 18) (Ftat 18) (3,093) (4,553)
At 31 July RtEA=+—8H 693 2,423
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

178

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC held under
medium-term leases, on which the Group's factory plants
and staff quarters are built. During the year, certain vacant
lands were disposed of. The remaining period of the land
use rights of the Group ranges from 38 to 45 years (2012:

20. EMNHEERIEA

TENAERIBEIEE BN T EZF HHEER
BNt (AEEEZBELI M FERERERE
TES)NLFERENAE - FR - BELE
HTFZ=E T o A E L0 AR R TSR HAR
NFIBEA5F(ZT——4F : 39F46F )% o

39 to 46 years).
2013 2012
—B-=F —FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
COST RANME
At 1 August RNAH—H 66,545 66,085
Disposals He (49,413) -
Exchange realignment [E 5 Fg %8 799 460
At 31 July ntA=+—H 17,931 66,545
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION REHEHE ORE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 August WA\ A—H 6,190 4,783
Charged for the year (Note 13) FRMR (KE13) 868 1,371
Eliminated on disposals HH R g (4,844) =
Impairment loss recognised RERE B R ERN
in the consolidated statement B EE
of profit or loss 2,010 =
Exchange realignment e 5 EE 153 36
At 31 July RtA=+—8H 4,357 6,190
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 July BntA=+—H 13,574 60,355
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 B EZE=—Z—=F+ A=+—HIEFE

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

21.

As at 31 July 2013, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of the Group's prepaid lease
payments and determined that the prepaid lease
payments were impaired as a result of the adverse
operating environment and the change of market
conditions. Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$2,010,000
have been recognised. The recoverable amounts of the
prepaid lease payments have been determined by
reference to a valuation report conducted by an
independent qualified professional valuer, BMI and
determined based on the value in use calculation. The
pre-tax discount rates in measuring the amounts of value
in use range from 18.32% to 26.21% in relation to prepaid
lease payments.

20.

BANEERE @)

RIZB—=F+A=+—H BHRELERHERXR
ERTRER  ARREEHAKENANAE
EXEAETEN  YEFENEERRD HR
WA - Bt - BHERIREEE 2,010,000 T °
BNHEERENAIRES RN EBLEEM
B MBEMBENGEERSSH - AR
BEREEEET - sAtERNEEREER
BEMMKMAOBARREN F1832%E
26.21% °

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEELH DN
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Current assets TRENEE 361 1,370
Non-current assets IEREEE 13,213 58,985
13,574 60,355
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 21. BEWE
HK$'000
FAT
FAIR VALUE ATE
At 1 August 2011 RZZE——F\A—H 26,510
Change in fair value recognised in the consolidated RiF&iERRERN AT EEH)
statement of profit or loss (Note 8) (K/7£8) 4,355
Exchange realignment TE 330
At 31 July 2012 and 1 August 2012 RZE——F+tA=+—H
rE=ZF——F\A—H 31,195
Change in fair value recognised in the consolidated RiF&EZRERN AT EES)
statement of profit or loss (Note 8) (K17 8) 160
Exchange realignment P 5 =8 1,027
At 31 July 2013 R=—E—=%F+tA=+—H 32,382
—T-CFER AXKEERERAT 179
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

21. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued) 21. REWME(#)

Notes: Hiat -

(@)  Asat 31 July 2013, the fair value of the investment property (@) MRZE—=FtA=+—H BEVWEN
was amounted to approximately HK$32,382,000 (2012: A F{E 4 £32,3820008 T(ZF — = F:
HK$31,195,000) which was valued by an independent 31,195,000 7T ) * JY B %8 3 F ¥ (H E R
qualified professional valuer, BMI. The valuation was BT - ZIEMET2ZERME KA
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction HUMERNZZERTISERETE o A
prices for similar properties in the same locations and AEABEER IS EERBUYFEETT
conditions. BMI has appropriate qualifications and recent HEMLE -
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations.

(b)  The carrying value of investment property shown above is (b) AERREREYENREELCNFE - WA
situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease. HEERE -

(o) All of the Group's property interests held under operating (0 AEERKEEERABRRIES S E AR
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes ENFEMERERIIARTFERENGE - 5D
are measured using the fair value model and are classified HERARIIEREYE -
and accounted for as investment property.

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS AHESREE
Available-for-sale financial assets comprise: AL ESRMEERE
2013 2012
—E—= —T——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FAT

Listed securities: FHES

— Equity securities listed — EFBAIMER F
outside Hong Kong, HRAES - BATE
at fair value (a) & (b) 30,069 51,899

Unlisted securities: FEEMES

— Equity securities — BRAES

— At cost — R ANE (c) 14,214 14,214
— Less: provision for — R RERBERE

impairment loss (d) (12,199) (589)

2,015 13,625

32,084 65,524
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 &IZE=Z—=FtA=+—HILFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The fair value of the above listed securities is determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the
relevant stock exchanges. During the year ended 31 July
2013, the directors of the Company considered the
significant decrease in market prices of the listed securities
and an impairment loss of approximately HK$710,000 (2012:
HK$3,856,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Included in the above listed securities are investments in
Formosan Union Chemical Corp. (“Formosan”) of
approximately HK$12,042,000 (2012: HK$15,506,000).
Formosan is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange and there is a common director of the Company
and Formosan.

Also, as at 31 July 2013, there are investments in Force Mos
Technology Company Limited (“Force Mos”) of
approximately HK$3,110,000 (2012: HK$2,373,000). Force
Mos is a company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange and
there is a common director of a subsidiary of the Company
and Force Mos.

The unlisted equity securities are issued by private entities
incorporated in Taiwan. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The directors of the Company had reviewed the carrying
values of the unlisted equity securities and considered that
in light of the operating losses of an investee and the
market conditions, total impairment losses of
approximately HK$11,610,000 (2012: HK$267,000) had been
recognised during the year. The directors of the Company
were in the opinion that the impairment was made based
on their best estimation with reference to the market
situation and circumstances of the equity securities.

Included in available-for-sale financial assets are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other than
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which
they relate.

22. m#

HESHMEE @)

Mt :

(a)

bt ERRESHAFETDIZNIEERZ SIS
MmEEAREETE -REBEE_T—=FtH
=+—HIEFE  ARREFR A LHEHH
MERETE - F AR a KR ERIRER
5 49710,000% 7T (=& — = 4F : 3,856,000 %
) ©

b;rm* FEERMSEBTERNDERA
(fﬂ] 5 1) K& #912,042,00008 T( ==

¢ 15,506,000/ 7C) - FlmE—RR A
/em xR BT EMATE  ANARRFEE—
fTHEREE -

o R=ZZF—=F+tA=+—8 " "EnhH
j:ﬂ??iﬂxf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/&a(thj)?ﬁﬁ%@w10,000
BL(ZZT——4 :2373,000%87T) > HE=&
—RREBEBER D EMHAR » ANAFH
BRARIRNETAE—NERES -

S EIRARES A S MR OTLAL R
%1 - REBERSEREMARAADAE
SR D ARREEENARATAGTE
BEA - AATEFRARAFEMET
i

AARERCEMNIF LTRAFSNREE

VRBENREHRATELELEBBRER
B WIEMR - R FARRREBEAEY
11,610,000/ 7C(=F — =4 : 267,000 T) °
RAREEFRR  BETAERBEELZRAR
BRI S50 RIRF & PR & fhat i &

-
iE °

—J@iﬁ‘iﬁmﬂéF@%TﬁlJLﬂﬁﬁﬁ Elgct)
W EB AN BT BN S

2013 2012

=F—= —ET——F

‘000 '000

T FIT

NTD Haw 111,366 192,220
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23. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

182

Held-to-maturity investments comprise:

23. HERIWRE

FAEZIMRERE

2013 2012
—ET—=F —ET—CF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FExT FET
Unlisted debt securities FELEHEBLES
— Fixed-rate — BEEFE (a) 10,100 45,477
Analysed for reporting purposes as:  BER & EHE DT
Current assets MBEE 10,100 43,035
Non-current assets ERBEE - 2,442
10,100 45,477
Notes: HtaF -
(@) At 31 July 2013, the fixed-rate unlisted debt securities carry (&) MRZZE—=FtA=+—8  BEEHERFELD

interest rates at ranging from 2.85% to 3.75% (2012: 3% to
3.75%) per annum and will mature in August 2013 and
March 2014 (2012: February and August 2013).

Included in held-to-maturity investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which
they relate.

BREEAENT285BEE375B(ZE——4F:
3EREIISE)MEFERGFE - BAEZHFER
—E-=FN\ARZE-HME=AFH(C=F
——F:ZT—=F"AKkNA) -

FAEREHKRERE TIARBEEERNY
BERME AN R ESIER S ©

2013 2012

—Z;—= —EB——4F

‘000 ‘000

Fr T

RMB AR 8,014 37,274
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

24. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24, REEEZEFIERNER
ENTITIES
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LTI © HRAEANE 19,418 16,646
Share of post-acquisition results and ~ D{EUXEEE 24 N IE 5 (& &
exchange reserves (16,968) (11,946)
2,450 4,700
Transfer to assets classified as held ERESEAFEHERE
for sale (Note 35) (H#f7£ 35) (21) -
Transfer from assets classified as held #E B D EABIEHEEE
for sale (Note 35) (Ktz%35) - 2,772
Impairment loss recognised B RERREERE (2,429) (1,800)
- 5,672
At 31 July 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the RZE—=FRk=_FT——F+tA=+—H K
following significant jointly controlled entities: SERATEEHFZES BT EAER -

Nominal value of  Proportion of

Place of issued and nominal value of
Form of incorporation/ fully paid issued capital
Name of company business structure operation share capital held by the Group Principal activity
AEEFAFE
a1 1o AV ERTRAE BITRAEE
NCIECE EBRBELER BB IR B B FRrAG E 51 FEEH
2013 & 2012
—E—=F
R=B—=F%F
Ocean Genius Incorporated Hong Kong 10,836,000 shares 50% Investment holding
of HK$1 each
Ocean Genius BRiiZAvA B 10,836,000 R IR E B REZMK
1T RIR R
Huzhou Ri Jun Established The PRC US$2,345,995 50% Manufacturing of
keypads
iPAISE FXZ H 2,305995% T HERGE
Ta Yang Agricode Incorporated Malaysia 10,000,000 shares 50.1% Production and sales of
Sdn Bhd ("Ta Yang of MYR1 each (Note) fertiliser, other
Agricode”) pesticides products
and biodiesel
AERBRRRRAR MKz HRAER 10,000,008 &M 50.1% HERHERH - Aft
AR(TKFREE]) BE1SEORG  (Hi2) RBEmREWEA
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24.

184

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

Note:

The Group holds 50.1% of the issued share capital of Ta Yang
Agricode. However, under a joint venture agreement, the Group
and the other significant shareholders jointly control the
composition of the board of directors of Ta Yang Agricode.
Therefore, Ta Yang Agricode is classified as a jointly controlled
entity of the Group.

On 31 July 2011, one of the wholly-owned subsidiaries, Great
Ocean Development Limited (“Great Ocean”), entered into sale
and purchase agreements (the “Purchase Agreement”) with three
of its staff and an independent third party (the “Purchasers 1")
pursuant to which Great Ocean agreed to sell and the Purchasers
1 agreed to acquire total of 1,100,000 shares in Ta Yang Agricode
at aggregate cash consideration of MYR1,100,000 or equivalent
to approximately HK$2,890,000. The Purchase Agreement was
terminated on 6 July 2012 and the assets classified as held for
sale was reclassified to interests in jointly controlled entities at its
recoverable amount on the same date.

As at 31 July 2013, interest in Ta Yang Agricode has been
reclassified as assets classified as held for sale, details have been
set out in Note 35.

The summarised unaudited financial information in
respect of the Group's interests in jointly controlled
entities which are accounted for using the equity method
with the line-by-line reporting format is set out below:

RARZEHERAER (&)

Mt -

AEBERFERFRBEEITRANS0.1% A - 1R

BaE S

[FIHE I HEE -

R_E——FEA=+—

© SR [E R B A 3 B AR SR AL IR R B

WESGNMAENK - Bt KFEBSBERAEENH

H - Ef—fHEEHBRA

AFBERBRABI(RNF)BE=F28TUER—%

BYFE=75 (87— DI E B Hh#

(MBEWw=])

Bt XKFRBEHEMES —REEEANTEBE L

1,100,000 A% f% 17

ANB#LE

Wm e BEH D EENHRZES

K=

"*E/‘%%—M‘Etljﬁﬁﬁ

PAfEZS

IS NRELREA1,100,000 5% (3%
BN 492,890,000787T) - BB E 173
DEARKELENEERENRRBAA
B R o

EN T ——F+

—=F£tA=+—R KFEEBHNERCER

A BR 0 A B 7 Ak R 22 )

BB M35

BRI

FREHVABINOREELHBERNT

2013 2012

—E—=F =T 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

Current assets MENE E 27,255 35,226

Non-current assets EREEE 8,847 18,669

Current liabilities mEAaE (39,255) (34,798)

Non-current liabilities ERBaRE - (7,801)

Net (liabilities) assets (BB EEFE (3,153) 11,296

Income recognised in profit or loss RIE SRR A 23,422 49,305

Expenses recognised in profit or loss ~ FAIE25HE R H) B 2 (38,229) (23,556)
Other comprehensive income Emz2mEmBA (FR)

(expense) 277 (1,005)
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24. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

The directors of the Company reviewed the carrying
amount in the equity interest of Ocean Genius whose
business activity is manufacturing of keypads as at 31 July
2012 and 2013. In view of the continuing losses during the
year ended 31 July 2012, the directors of the Company
were of the opinion that the recoverable amount is less
than its respective carrying amount, accordingly an
impairment loss of the goodwill approximately
HK$1,800,000 (2013: nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of
loss of one jointly controlled entity. The amounts of
unrecognised share of loss of this jointly controlled entity,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

24,

RERZEFIERERS @)

KRB EFEEZEM Ocean Genius (£ FE BEFE
EEARBEEAEIR_E——_FR-_ZT—=F
Tt A=+ AR ERREME - SER%A R
REBE_TE——F+tA=+—BHILFEHEE
B ARAESERAANEEBLREZSERN
BREE ARG aiEanRkERNE2RER
158491,800,000 BT (ZF—=4F : ) o

AEFERILEBED (G —RARZEHIEEAN
B8 - FERRARERN S HZILREHE
REBRSENT

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Unrecognised share of losses of FRERERHN DG —E R
a jointly controlled entity for the year ~ B 428E518 2,246 =
Accumulated unrecognised share of  2&tRERH DG — K RZH
losses of a jointly controlled entity BREE 2,246 -
25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 25. A—EHE A RNER
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost FE MR - HREANE 1,278 1,278
Share of post-acquisition profits and S {GUREE LTI I & 3
exchange reserve less distribution R A D R
of profits 400 63
1,678 1,341
—ESHER OREEZRERAT 185
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25. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 25. A—EHE ARNER &)
Details of the associate at 31 July 2013 and 2012 are as RZFE— =R —F+tA=+—Hr
follows: ERAFEWT
Place of Proportion of
Form of incorporation/ Registered/ ownership interest
Name of company business structure operation paid up capital held by the Group  Principal activity
ML AEEFENES
YNCIECE EBRBEA R SR RA RS FEXEH
2013 & 2012
—B-ZfR
—E-—C—F
SiTY Silcum & Ta Yang  Incorporated Germany EUR250,000 50% Trading of silicone tiles

186

International GmbH

and electrical

(“SITY") switching systems
and related items
SITY Silcum & Ta Yang  #EfBAZ (e 250,000 87T 50% YVBERELZRR
International GmbH HBEEES
([siTY])
The summarised unaudited financial information in AEBEE RN RN REEZNBEEREZRT
respect of the Group's associate is set out below: A
2013 2012
—E—= —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Total assets AEMAE 7,673 5,698
Total liabilities BEEE (4,316) (3,015)
Net assets BEFEE 3,357 2,683

Group's share of net assets of

DfE— & R EH

an associate BEFRE 1,678 1,341
Total revenue WS 4858 13,683 13,188
Total profit for the year FRR AR 74 372

Total other comprehensive income

Hip 2 mERA () @5

(expense) 600 (574)
Group's share of profit (loss) and R E (S — A B R EAY

other comprehensive income F R (EE) REMEE

(expense) of an associate for the year W A (Fi7) 337 (101)
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM A JOINTLY 26. B —BELREEFHEBRBNENR
CONTROLLED ENTITY
At 31 July 2013 and 2012, loan receivable from a jointly R_E—=FR-_ZFT——FtA=+—QH &
controlled entity in amount of MYR3,000,000 is unsecured, Ui — ] 2k [R) 22 11 & B8 9 B 30 4% 3,000,000 5 #
interest bearing at London Inter-bank Offered Rate AEER - RBBERTTREF S N3 EH F 7
("LIBOR") plus 3% per annum and repayable in April 2014. EEHR - WARZZ—MNFMAEE -
27. INVENTORIES 27. 78
2013 2012
—E-=5F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THBT
Raw materials R4 # 48,914 55,582
Work-in-progress 85 50,742 56,084
Finished goods SRk 53,418 54,490
153,074 166,156
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. EWWE SRR HAipEWEIE
(a) (a)
2013 2012
= —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Trade and bills receivables JEWE 5 BRI W SRR
— from third parties —EBRE=H 184,750 227,295
— from an associate — PRl — QA 2,761 1,859
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts i : BEWRE=HEVEKRE 5
recognised in respect of RN e W SRR TR R A
trade and bills receivables REREE R
from third parties (1,913) (951)
185,598 228,203
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIA ~ #R2e R E A R UGRIE
other receivables 27,656 37,127
213,254 265,330
The Group did not hold any collateral over these NEBW KRG ZEE R IFEEAERS -
balances.
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

188

(Continued)

The Group normally grants to its customers credit
periods ranging from 30 to 135 days which are
subject to periodic review by the management.

An aged analysis of trade and bills receivables, net
of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on
the invoice date at the reporting date is as follows:

28.

FEUR B 5 R R B HL At P WORK R (41)

(a)

(%)

AEE—RETFTHEFENTI0BZE135
BN EES mMERES TR AR
ZEH -

RBEAH MBEREREREBEROEKRE
ZRA R EWEIEZER A AN REK D
2T

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Within 1 month or on demand — @B AR ERKEE 92,205 111,880

More than 1 month but less than —@ANREEBIR=EA

3 months 64,570 80,702
More than 3 months but less than —EANEELHR+—EA

12 months 28,823 35,529

More than 12 months +=@ALAE - 92

185,598 228,203

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

(b) EUEEBEZIEFREREBENRRREE

of trade and bills receivables is as follows: T
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAExT
At 1 August WAHA—H 951 778
Exchange realignment b 5, A2 51 2

Impairment losses recognised EHRRERE

(Note 13) (Hfat 13) 1,158 171
Amounts written off as uncollectible  [E7~a] 4k [E] i 45 19 & 58 (247) -
At 31 July WtRA=+—H 1,913 951

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts
recognised are individually impaired trade and bills
receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$1,913,000 (2012: HK$951,000).
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate
to customers that are in financial difficulty or of poor
credit history.
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ERRBAEEGBEERAERELED
1,913,0007% 7t (=& — Z 4 : 951,0007%8
70) B {ERI B2 R E R E 2 R S B
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28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

28. BWEZRMRK EAbBEURRIE (#)

At 31 July 2013 and 2012, the analysis of trade and (c) R=ZF—=FF=—_FT——FtA=+—
bills receivables that were past due but not impaired H BB ERENEKRE SRR
are as follows: REWEFEN SO
Past due but not impaired
A B ERE
Over Over
Neither 90 days 1 year
past due but less but less
nor Less than than than
Total impaired 90 days 1 year 2 years
Ri::3Ep ] 90HEE EBB—%F
st TERE HPRI90H EBELR—F ELRME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
31 July 2013 —T—=FtA=+—H 185,598 169,249 15,276 1,073 -
31 July 2012 —ET——-FtA=+—H 228,203 174,202 48,203 5,772 26
Trade and bills receivables that were neither past WEAHTERENEKRE SEZR R E
due nor impaired relate to a wide range of W BT EI E MR SR S R R
customers for whom there was no recent history of HE o
default.
Trade and bills receivables that were past due but B E W ERENERE SRR E
not impaired relate to a number of independent WEEEAREEZ LG B IF N
customers that have a good track payment record BYREAER - BIEBELE AR E
with the Group. Based on past experience, BEEVEE AR N LSS AT
management believes that no allowance for doubtful KU E - WEBRBHEEHERZS &
debts is necessary in respect of these balances as EE FERBE o
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
Included in trade and other receivables are the (d) EWESERZ R ERRESE T

following amounts denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity to which they relate:

NHEEEERNEERAINER
SIEREEE

2013 2012

== —E—=F

‘000 ‘000

Fr FIT

usb EH 17,481 25,902
NTD ek 26,956 6,207
EUR BT 276 =
—ToSHFR OREEERERAT 189
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29.

30.

190

ENTRUSTED LOAN RECEIVABLE

The Group entered into an entrusted fund management
agreement on 8 September 2011 with a bank. Pursuant to
which, Huzhou Ta Yang, a wholly-own subsidiary of the
Company, acted as the entrusting party to provide
funding to a specified borrower. The entrusted loan
carried fixed interest rate of 7% per annum.

As at 31 July 2012, no entrusted loan receivable had been
past due or impaired. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the entrusted loan borrower had good credit
quality and accordingly, no impairment was made. The
entrusted loan receivable was guaranteed by a related
company of the borrower and the bank.

The entrusted loan receivable was fully recovered during
the year ended 31 July 2013.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The amounts due from jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

Included in amounts due from jointly controlled entities
are the following amounts denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity to which they relate:

29.

30.

YR ZEFEER

AEER —T——F N ANBE-RERTAL
ZREERGE - Bt - ARRE2ENBER
MK FERERETMEERRAREE
& o ZREFREEFNKRTEAR ©

RZB——F+A=+—H #HEEKETE
REBHASFE - ARAEFRRE - ZEER
ERANEEERRY - BUHAELRE
e EEE A B RANBER B RRITRHE
PR -

BRERERERBE_SE—=FLtA=+—
B 2 BRE -
FEW S R 2 H BB AR

FEUFLFEHI B R FNIAREER 28 RIE

TRfEE -

ERARZEHERKBRETIAEBEER
BHIEEEB AN ERETIERN SR

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——4F

‘000 ‘000

T Tt

MYR Bk 2,185 2,105
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31. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

31. HEEERE

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—C—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THBT
Equity securities at quoted IEAE Z (FRMI5HRE)

market prices
— listed in Hong Kong —REB LT 4,702 3,233
— listed outside Hong Kong — RBEBEIN TR 9,548 2,618
14,250 5,851

Included in held-for-trading investments are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which

FEEEREBRETIIAEBEEERNIEE
BRASNEREDIER S -

they relate:
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
‘000 ‘000
Tt Ft
NTD etk 25,271 9,699
usb ETT 352 -
32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. fTE€MIA
Derivatives not under hedge accounting: FEED ST RIBAATAT A
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Derivative financial assets PTESRMEE
Currency structured forward contracts ¥4 IR IS 4 1,204 2,229
“T-ogFR AFgEEERERaE 191
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32.

192

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 July 2013

During the year ended 31 July 2013, the Group entered
into a 24 monthly settlement HK$/USD structured forward
contract with a bank. On each settlement day, if the spot
exchange rate (the “Spot Rate”) of HK$ to USD is at or
appreciates above the contracted rate, the Group can
choose to pay either a) a HK$ amount which is determined
as USD4,000,000 x (Spot Rate — 150 basis points) in
exchange for USD4,000,000 or b) USD4,000,000 in
exchange for a HK$ amount which is determined as
USD4,000,000 x (Spot Rate + 150 basis points). If the Spot
Rate is below the contracted rate, the Group needs to pay
HK$30,996,000 in exchange for USD4,000,000.

For the year ended 31 July 2012

During the year ended 31 July 2012, the Group entered
into two non-deliverable net settled RMB/USD structured
forward contracts with a bank. The total notional amount
of the RMB/USD structured forward contracts is
USD2,000,000 with 24 monthly settlement amounts. On
each settlement day, if the exchange rate of USD to RMB
is at or depreciates below the contracted rate, fixed
amounts of USD3,000 would be receivable from the bank.
If the exchange rate of USD to RMB appreciates above
the contracted rate at the settlement date, amounts would
be payable by the Group. The amounts payable by the
Group would be a function of the settlement amount and
the difference between the contracted rate and the
exchange rate of USD to RMB at the settlement date.

At 31 July 2013 and 2012, the fair values of currency
structured forward contracts were determined based on
the estimated discounted cash flow valuation provided by
BMI.
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32.

TTEEMITA®)

BE-ZE—=FtA=+—HLEE

REBE-Z—=F+tA=1t—HItEE K&
E #H—RRITRI M — AT En A R
A4 D2ABAKE - REF/ER  WBTLE
ETNRERER((REERR)ERK EAES
REWNER  AIAEEARE) TN -5
4,000,000t x GREIER — 1502 5T &/
TS % - LAHREN4,000,0003 7T ¢ sib) X A+
4,000,000 7T + BA#2ER—2E4% 4,000,000 35 7T x
(IREEXR+ 150E2) A EMNATSE - MR
EERTHRZERRANER  AEEAXH
30,996,000 7 JLH2HR 4,000,000 £ 7T, ©

BE-E—_—F+tA=+—HLEE

REBE-Z——F+tA=1+—HItEE K&
EH—RERTI LMD IERMMFELEEAR
B ETLEBERAEHN - ARE EnitE
MRHIA XA % & 4858 52,000,000 7T © 5
QALY  -REFER  WETHLARKE
KERE THRERREHER - ARl AERTTUK
M300ETTHETESHEE - MNEEH £
HARBER FAZRRAKNER  AIREEH
BYNETLE AEEEMNSEFETLE
HoHEMANERELEAETH ARKER
MERNEZEME -

RZEBE—=FK-_F——-—F+tA=1+—H &
MEBERAAINAFAETIRER I EAT
REMNGHFITREBASREHEET -
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32.

33.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 July 2012 (Continued)

Included in fair values of the derivative financial assets are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entity
to which they relate:

32. fTAESRMIA®

BE-—FE——-—S£+tA=1+—HLEE#H)

TESREENATEEBETIAEBREEE
BHEEEB AN ERETIERN SR

2013 2012

—E-=5F —ET——F

‘000 ‘000

T F7t

usb ETT 155 288

FINANCIAL ASSET DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

33.

EERAFEIIRLAEZEANEEN
THMEE

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT T

Structured deposit with a bank TR IRITEV A 117 K 36,997 -
The financial asset is denominated in a currency other EReREEAEBEE TR EE N

than functional currency of the relevant group entity
amounted to RMB29,363,000 (2012: nil).

As at 31 July 2013, the fair value of the financial asset
designated at fair value through profit or loss amounted
to approximately HK$36,997,000 (2012: nil) which was
valued by an independent qualified professional valuer,
BMI. The valuation was arrived at by an appropriate
valuation technique, assumptions are made based on
quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument.

B E €58 AARE29,363000T( =
——F:F)o

R-ZB-—=F+H=+—RH " BEERAFE
RINBENEENEREENAFENS

369970008 L (ZE—=F : FT) @<
ABYAERBEGEMTPMBENGHES
28 BRAMGENERSENGEERMESS - I
BIEFTHRMEERRR - AR T A EE
A% -
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34.

194

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits

At 31 July 2013, the short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of more than three months carried interest at
fixed rates ranged from 3.25% to 3.30% (2012: 1.49% to
6.00%) per annum.

At 31 July 2013, the Group's short-term bank deposits
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB81,500,000 (2012: RMB67,000,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

Bank balances and cash

At 31 July 2013, bank balances and cash comprise of cash
held by the Group of approximately HK$103,929,000
(2012: HK$77,517,000) at prevailing market rates. The
maturities of bank balances were within three months.

Bank balances and bank deposits with maturities within
three months carried interest at average market rates of
0.41% (2012: 0.85%) per annum.

At 31 July 2013, the Group's bank balances and cash
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB52,731,000 (2012: RMB20,033,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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34.

BHERTER RTEBRRAE

BHRITER

R-T—=F+A=+—08 RIBEA=E
AU EREHRITE RN T3.25E =330 &
T F | A9EF600E ) B E FE R X
ETE o

RZZB—=F+A=+—H TEEUARK
FHE R B IR1T 7 504 7 AR % 81,500,000 7T
(ZZT—=%F : AR¥67,0000007T) ° AR
B H AR IMNE AR A B INE B IR (5 J A EE
EERNETEREMRR o

RITEHRRAE

RZF—=FLtA=+—0 RITEHERSE
BRASEFARENTSHXRGTENREN
103,929,000 7T ( = T — = % : 77,517,000 8
TU) ° R BFIRITAERI = B A REIH -

R 18 A B B0 SR 1T 6 84 AR T/ 3032 0.41
E(ZZ——%:0858)WTFHMSERMR

B o
o

R-ZE—=FtA=1+—8 ZEEUARE
STEMRTEHRRIE S A AR 52,731,000
TT(ZZE—=—%F : AR#¥20,033,0007T) ° # A
R 5 # 05 SNEE 7B 5 Fh B ON B B 1R (K45 I A
[ - EERMNESEREAER -
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34.

35.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances and cash (Continued)

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which
they relate:

34.

EHRTER BITESRRES®)

RITEHRRRE (F)

RITHEH LA BRE TN EREEERNY
REEBIAINEEEHEMNFIR |

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——4F

‘000 ‘000

Fr Tt

usD =S 2,169 3,657

EUR BL T 89 4

JPY = 1,791 921

NTD e 15,350 22,288
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 35. P EARBELHEERE

On 31 July 2011, Great Ocean entered into the Purchase
Agreement with the Purchasers 1 pursuant to which Great
Ocean agreed to sell and the Purchasers 1 agreed to
acquire total of 1,100,000 shares in Ta Yang Agricode at
an aggregate cash consideration of MYR1,100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,890,000).

Since the share transfer had not yet been completed due
to the unexpected delay, Great Ocean and the Purchasers
1 unconditionally agreed to terminate the Purchase
Agreement on 6 July 2012. Accordingly, the Group's
related assets ceased to be classified as held for sale and
were reclassified to interests in jointly controlled entities
on the same date. The carrying amount of the assets at
that date was approximately HK$2,772,000, which
represents the carrying amount of the assets before they
were classified as held for sale.

R_ZE——FtA=+—8 ' KFEEH—F
VEBEWRE Bt AFREHEMER —H
EHE AT EBA 1,100,000 /%5 - BER
{E#B%E /51,100,000 5 ¥ (F8E R4 2,890,000 74
JT) °

RPN {7 82 5 A = NEL I i 1 AR SEAK + KOFER
BF—R-ZT——FtANBEKHERERL
BERZ - Al ~AEENEBREERR BT
BOEARBERE  YEHHBEERERES
ERENER BHEENEHINEREEENA
2,772,000 7T « B S BER D EARFIELE
ATRYBRTE(E o
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35. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

On 30 April 2013, the Civil High Court in Malaysia (the
"Court”) has ruled that, Great Ocean has to enter into a
legal binding settlement agreement with the other
significant shareholders of Ta Yang Agricode (the
"Purchasers 2") pursuant to which Great Ocean agreed to
sell and the Purchasers 2 agreed to acquire the entire
equity interests of Great Ocean in Ta Yang Agricode at an
aggregate cash consideration of MYR5,300,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$13,250,000). The relevant entire
equity interests in jointly controlled entity of
approximately HK$21,000 are reclassified as assets
classified as held for sale on that date. The share transfer
has not yet been completed as at the date of the approval
of the consolidated financial statements. The relevant
entire equity interests are expected to be disposed of
within twelve months.

35.

DERFFEHEEE @)

RZZE—=FNA=1+H SRXARSERE
SEBT (AR ) ok K F AR A F RIS HE M E
BRE(EHZ ) EARORNNEEH
FBE KERAEEEMES_REEBEX
FRRXFREHEDR A #ER  ReNERSE
75,300,000 55 #& (#8E 72 49 13,250,000 4 7T ) ©
A £ R4 1) B B2 49 21,000 78 70 K9 B A #R B AR AN
BHEEFHEARELEEE - Nna UK
WmMFTEMESH - ROEFEHATK - FTEE
B AESEAET —EARNLE -

36. UNSECURED BANK BORROWING 36. BMEABITER
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Carrying amount repayable BIRERKEEEHRNERE
on demand 20,124 31,734

During the year ended 31 July 2012, the Group obtained a
new bank loan amounting to USD4,100,000 or equivalent
to approximately HK$31,734,000. This loan carries variable
interest rate at 2% or 3% over Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate ("HIBOR")/LIBOR or the Lender’s Cost of
Funds respectively, per annum, whichever is higher and is
repayable on demand. The effective interest rate on the
borrowing is 2.2% (2012: 2.8%) per annum. The bank loan
proceeds were used as working capital. During the year
ended 31 July 2013, the Group has repaid HK$11,610,000
to the bank.

As at 31 July 2012 and 2013, the unsecured bank
borrowing was guaranteed by the Company.
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REBE_T——FtA=+—HLLFE £&
& 18 #94,100,000% 7( =k H & R 4
31,734,000870) FTRITER - BREAEZIRE
BIRITRERE MRBRITREFREM2ES
SEMFEFHERIMEAZESHKS (UREE
BE)FE - WEREREE - ERNERSE
MER22EB(ZZE——4%F :28FE) - $RITERK
TS BIRELEES - REBE-T—=F
+tA=+—BLFE A£SECHEBTEE
11,610,000 7T °

R-E——FR T =F+A=+—H &
EIRRITERBERN R AIELR o
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36. UNSECURED BANK BORROWING (Continued)

37.

Included in unsecured bank borrowing is the following
amount denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which
they relate:

36.

EIERRITER @)

EERMRITERRE TIAEEEEERNI)
REEB AN ERTIER S -

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET——4F

‘000 ‘000

T T

usbD ETT 2,600 4,100
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 37. EHEZRARREMENRIE

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTRET THET

Trade and bills payables JERE 5 R RN FIE 36,339 51,930

Other payables H A T RRIR 59,185 55,036

95,524 106,966

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

RS BNEZERAREBNERIZER
AR DM 2500

follows:
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month or on demand — (B ARSI EKEE 20,097 21,162
More than 1 month but less than —EAREEBLR=1(EA
3 months 13,048 26,623
More than 3 months but less than ZEAREELHR+ A
12 months 1,491 2,779
More than 12 months +TZ@EAE 1,703 1,366
36,339 51,930

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
ranging from 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are settled within the credit timeframe.

BEERMTEHEEHNFII0BENNH - &
ESEXREUBRKBREIEIR - UHERHMAEN
HEHMNMEEBRS AT °
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37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 37. ENESERRREMENSTIEE)
Included in trade and other payables are the following JE 18 5 B 3 K H At & 5 R IE B4 T 51 LA A A
amounts denominated in currencies other than the SEEENEREUIMEEIEN TR
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which
they relate:

2013 2012

—E-=F —ET—CF

‘000 ‘000

T Tt

usbD ETT 973 1,868
JPY = 380 310
NTD ek 1,122 1,163

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. R

Authorised and issued share capital EEREBITRA
Number of
shares
ignig 2 ¢=|
‘000 HK$'000
TR THETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEO0.BITH B
Authorised: TETE
At 1 August 2011, 31 July 2012, RZZE——%N\A—HB ZZ—_-F
1 August 2012 and 31 July 2013 +tA=+—H8 —Z——FN\F—H
E=ZE—=F+A=+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 August 2011, 31 July 2012, K=B—£/\A—B —2—=%
1 August 2012 and 31 July 2013 +tA=+—H8 - —TE——FN\A—H
;EZZE—=FtA=+—H 778,541 77,854
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39. DEFERRED INCOME 39. ELEWA

2013 2012

—E-=5F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT THBT

At 1 August RNAHA—H 1,028 1,040
Government grant received FANBINERNRHEIE

during the year 2,962 -

Exchange realignment PE 5 A2 96 12

Credited to consolidated statement of t A4RAEZFR
profit or loss (25) (24)
At 31 July RtR=+—H 4,061 1,028

In 2009, the Group received a government grant (“Grant
A") of approximately HK$1,049,000 from 7T 4 1 4% 75 53
%R E B £ B 2 for the acquisition of prepaid lease
payments. The amount is recognised as other operating
income over the unexpired lease term of prepaid lease
payments. During the year, deferred income of
approximately HK$25,000 (2012: HK$24,000) has been
recognised for Grant A in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 July 2013, the Group received a
government grant (“Grant B"”) of RMB2,400,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$2,962,000 from Bz £}
B3 i1 /3 for the development of high resolution flexible
circuit board technology. The amount will be recognised
as other operating income upon the completion of
patents registration of such technology. No deferred
income has been recognised for Grant B in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 July 2013.

RZZTTNF - AEBEABMNBERIBER
HNDIBMNEERRRERRE 8 SHR THBNT
W2 ([HEE M) #1,0490008 T ° %2
RER TR E SR IBR R E M A BN FER A EAth
MEWA - FRN - EREGREIBERARHES
FRFERIEIE W A 49250008 (=& — —4F ¢
24,0007 7T) °

REE-_ZT—=F+tA=+—HIEFE &X&
ESZEES D HRZE SRR R RET
MERITBATHBAMS ((FMEhE2]) A
R ¥ 2,400,000 7T (S ABE 1R 492,962,000 7T ) °
RERZBRITNEFERLE - BEHESEBRE
REHMEERA - BE_T—=F+t A
=+—HLEFE  UERLEEESER AN
© CHRERIBEZIA -
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40.

200

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 40. EEBHEAE

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereof during the current
and prior years:

Unrealised
(profits) Accelerated
loss on tax

inventories depreciation

FENRER ill:3
(&H) B & BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000

AEEMBAFEEEANTIERERIA(E
E)BBEREZEHNT

Deferred

Change in income

fair value of arising from

Estimated investment government

tax losses property grant Total
B S
it REWEH EEN
WEER ATEED 130N st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT THL THL THL THT TAT
At 1 August 2011 R-E——4F
NA—H 2,108 105 (105) 460 (259) 2,309
Exchange realignment P i = = = = 21 ©) 18
(Credited) charged to i
consolidated statement Bk GGtA)
of profit or loss Nk (684) 3 3) 1,089 b 411
At 31 July 2012 RZE——F
+RA=+—-H 1,424 108 (108) 1,570 (256) 2,738
Exchange realignment P& R 42 = = 52 (24) 70
(Credited) charged to i e
consolidated statement BHEERGIA)
of profit or loss k% 554 5 (5) 40 (734) (140)
At 31 July 2013 R-ZT—=4
+A=+—-H 2,020 13 (113) 1,662 (1,014) 2,668

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$11,335,000 (2012:
HK$11,276,000) as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2013

BIECEMERE  PENBARIA=ZZZN
F— A —BARARMBENSRAORSHMATE
N o REEWERLRE M IERE 5 HH
JB A B FI BT EE A 9 BT BRE 1 2= 249 11,335,000
BT (=T — 4 : 11,276,000 7T ) TR IE T
TIBEAE - RE A7 S [E B S i 1 o B B 1
ZEMKHE BZRSEREEZTIK]EENA
FASRAEE D o
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40. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

41.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$133,744,000 (2012:
HK$68,698,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$687,000 (2012: HK$655,000) of such
loss. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining losses of approximately HK$133,057,000
(2012: HK$68,043,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At 31 July 2013, approximately HK$486,000
(2012: HK$486,000), HK$4,268,000 (2012: HK$4,268,000),
HK$49,119,000 (2012: HK$49,119,000) and HK$55,653,000
(2012: nil) included in the above unused tax losses will
expire after the year of assessment of 2014, 2015, 2016
and 2017 respectively. Other estimated tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed on
16 May 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option Scheme”) and a
Post-IPO share option schemes (the “Post-IPO Option
Scheme”) whereby the directors and eligible employees
of the Group were given the rights to subscribe for shares
in the Company subject to the terms and conditions
stipulated in two schemes.

At 31 July 2013, the total number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the schemes was 18,340,000 (2012:
18,910,000), representing 2.36% (2012: 2.43%) of the shares
in the Company in issue at that date. The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the two schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of
the Company'’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company's shareholders.

40.

41.

EEBIHAE 2)

RFERR AEBEHHRBATIBEBIEL
133,744,000 75 ( =& — = £ : 68,698,00078
JL) A RIOER - EREHEEIED
687,000 7T ( Z & — —4F : 655,000 7T ) FER
BEFRIBEAE - AR ARETEARIEFRE -
14 34 82 N B8 49 133,057,000 T (— &2 ——
F 1 68,043,0008 ) BRELERBEE - R=
T—=F+A=+—H LillHRSBEFEE
18 H R 49486,0007% 7T ( = F — = 4F : 486,000
YSIT) ~ 4,268,000 7T (ZF —=4F : 4,268,000
P& JT )~ 49,119,000 T( = T — = F:
49,119,000 7t ) } 55,653,000/ T (= E — =
F:B)HRER=_T—NOF - —T—AHF
T RNER T LFIHFEERI &
fth i 5T R TE B 18 ] PR HR A 82 o

BRETE

BRER-_ZZLFAA+AERBNKRER
RER - ARBRMERAFRESABREST
(TERAAEENBRENS ) RERAR
HERBRE S ([BERARBEERBIE
g Bt AEENEEURAERERE
Al RBA R R AER] - MR M 85T
BIRT AR IRSR R RIF AR ©

RZTB—=F+tA=1+—8 ZZH2 2K
EEEBARTEBERETSERRDBHE B
18,340,0000% ( =& — — £ : 18,910,0000% ) -
HERAREZABETRD236% (ZF—=
F:243%) c EREBARRBRRE LI
AT+ P EET 21N AT T 5% A BE AR AE % R Y
B BN SIB B A R BT B A B 31T
17 10% ° fE RIS AN A FIRRER B LR - B
] 4F [ AT {a] A £33 H B 7] e 35 H A B A e
Frd R BB 29T R 8 T 23T D & B NSBB8
AR EUEAIEFO D ETRMD 1% [AEZH
BB IEMTE SR HENBREMRBARA
A) B 450.1% 3k (& & i 38 5,000,000 74 7T+ W78
VS AN RA R R B o
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41.

202

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 41.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's share.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

BRESE ()

TEERARAESTEE

BT ER (AR

= E R () AR RRMREE B BT E
() BRONEZRR L A AT AEZ X H T

mE K (i) AR R AEE -

EEBRIBBRERN BT -

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
KRB SEH 1T THEE
Pre-IPO Option Scheme 16 May 2007 One to five years 8 June 2008 to HK$2.20
commencing from 15 May 2017
8 June 2007
BRAREEAERESTSE —TT+F H-ZTTLF —EENFRANRE 22087
AA+<A NANBREE —+t$H1HA
1EESEF +HH
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 24 December 2009 0.5 year 24 June 2010 to HK$0.96
— Lot 1 23 December 2019
BRARBERBRE —TTAF 0.5%F —T—EFXHA 0.96 87T
HE-—F#t +=-A=+mMH —+tmAE
—ZE-NEF+H
—+=H
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 24 December 2009 1 year 24 December 2010 to HK$0.96
— Lot 2 23 December 2019
BRARBEERBRE —ZEENF 14 —ZE-TF+R 0.96 % 7T
El—— %t +=—A=+MmH —t+mEBEZE
—ZE-NEF+H
—+=H
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 11 January 2011 0.5 year 11 July 2011 to HK$1.05
— Lot 1 10 January 2021
BRARBEERERE —T——%F 0.5% —E——%+A+—H 1.058 7T
E-I—EJ—_%iH:t 7H+ H E-F——F
—HA+H
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 11 January 2011 1 year 11 January 2012 to HK$1.05
— Lot 2 10 January 2021
BRARBEERBERE —T——F 14 —E-—_%—A+—H 1.058 7T
n‘|'§J_—%':TH: 7ﬁ]+ H ;Et—giifﬁ
—HA+H
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41. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
Company's share options held by directors and
employees during the year:

For the year ended 31 July 2013

41. BIRESE(2)

TREBHEERE A NRR AHBRHER
RS

BE-_Z-—=-FtA=1t—-HLEE

Forfeited
Outstanding at during Outstanding at
1 August 2012 the year 31 July 2013
R-B—=F R=ZB—=

NA—H tA=+—H

i RATEE FRRK o RATE

Pre-IPO Option Scheme EPNNGENiE e 6,100,000 (130,000) 5,970,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 BRAFREERERIETS—

— Lot 1 — %8 2,349,000 (48,000) 2,301,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 BRAFREERERIETS—

— Lot 2 —EH 4,809,000 (108,000) 4,701,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 BRAFREEREBRIETSE=

— Lot 1 — %8 2,826,000 (142,000) 2,684,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 BRAFEEREBERIETSE=

— Lot 2 —F it 2,826,000 (142,000) 2,684,000

18,910,000 (570,000) 18,340,000

Exercisable at the end of the year B[R EFRTT{E 18,340,000

Weighted average exercise price  J#EF577#E HK$1.39 HK$1.29 HK$1.39
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41.

204

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 July 2012

41

BT 8 ()

BE-E-——_FtA=1t—HLEFE

Outstanding at

Forfeited Outstanding at

1 August 2011 during the year 31 July 2012

R-F——%F R-F——F

NHA—H +A=+—H

im ARTT F AR im ARTT

Pre-IPO Option Scheme EPONGES LI B TR 6,240,000 (140,000) 6,100,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 BRAFZERERETE—

— Lot 1 — %t 2,452,000 (103,000) 2,349,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 BRARBEERERETS—

— Lot 2 — 4t 4,912,000 (103,000) 4,809,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 EPNGE: 3 g e

— Lot 1 — 54 2,883,000 (57,000) 2,826,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 EPNGE: 3 g e

— Lot 2 —F#t 2,883,000 (57,000) 2,826,000

19,370,000 (460,000) 18,910,000

Exercisable at the end of the year R[RAFKITE 18,910,000

Weighted average exercise price I F 57 TE (B HK$1.39 HK$1.36 HK$1.39

REBE—E——FER-_ZT—=H+A=+—H
IEFEB MmN T o

No share options were exercised during both years ended
31 July 2012 and 2013.

REE-F——FLA=t+—ALER A%
1 B 2 AR SR 50 7 08 B A R AR
AT EREBRBIX47802,0007% 7T (i 13) (=
T-=%: %)

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately HK$802,000 (Note 13) for the year ended
31 July 2012 (2013: nil) in relation to the fair value of the
share options granted by the Company and vested during
the year.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEIRS
(a) Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (a) BREAHVBHRERBITEEEIN  RF

financial statements, the Group entered into the
following transactions with related parties during the

W AREE RS

FAEINA TR S

year:
Name of company Nature of transaction 2013 2012
NG REME —E-=5F —T—C—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
SiTY (Note i) Sales of rubber keypads 5,979 4,948
SITY (Kfati) HEWRBZE
Huzhou Ri Jun (Note ii) Sales of rubber keypads 51 370
N B EE (FYaii) HEWRBIRE
Rental income 579 1,146
GERAL N
Sub-contracting income - 864
A EWA
Purchase of rubber keypads 64 -
BEYRBZE
Ta Yang Agricode (Note iii) Interest income 199 347
ANAEES (Fatiii) FLEHA
Force Mos (Note iv) Dividends received 25
T+ (Htaziv) B S
Formosan (Note v) Receipt of bonus shares of 276,768 1,300
(2012: 181,063) shares
(included in available-for-sale
financial assets)
s (Ffatv) WER 276,768 PR AT %
(ZZ——4 :181,063/%)
(BEAHEEemERE)
Dividends received 478

S

(i) SiTY is an associate company of the Group.

(i) Huzhou Ri Jun is a jointly controlled entity of the

Group.

(i) Ta Yang Agricode is a jointly controlled entity of the
Group. It is transferred to assets classified as held for
sale of the Group on 30 April 2013.

SITY BN E B Ay BE & A F)
AN BB BAS B R HERIESE S
RNEBRBARNEE R LRI EFE -

R-E—=FOA=THEREESH
FHEHEEE -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 42.

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  Force Mos is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange and Mr. Chung Ru Yu is the common
director of a subsidiary of the Company and Force

Mos.

(v) Formosan is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange and Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is the
common director of the Company and Formosan.

Compensation of key management

personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and

BERRS (&)
(a) (&)

Hiat : (&)

iv) DER—ZFRREEBHFXZMETHA
Al mMERAEEERARR—HMNER

ARALTHHAES -

v) M=EE-RKNEERE

FR G ETHRA

Al MEBFEEERAR A RN

FE=S -

(b) FEEEEASHRMN

RER ARBEERHEMEIEEHEE

other members of key management during the year BCE R FHMAT
was as follows:

2013 2012
—_E—= —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAExT
Short-term benefits "G EARR T 6,339 7,105
Post-employment benefits BB 1242 A 119 103
Share-based payments DARS A7 A B R B9 5 3R - 220
6,458 7,428

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

ARBEZREBZITHRABNHMIIH
FMEE2LEEMEMNALHRERT

LB MEE -

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. BEXREE
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Capital expenditure contracted for but T ZI&IBEE 5T 4B & &
not provided in the consolidated NGRS e
financial statements in respect of: EARFT
— Acquisition of property, — WEME - BERRE
plant and equipment 3,563 1,569
— Acquisition of land use right — U BE £t R A 4,775 4,781
8,338 6,350
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

44. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 44, REHERIE
LEASES
The Group as lessor AEBEREEA

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$1,049,000 (2012: HK$1,146,000). The
investment property is expected to generate rental yield
of 3.2% (2012: 3.7%) on an ongoing basis. The investment
property held has committed tenants for the next year.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:

FRBEA YRS WAL A1,049,000/8 T(=
T— 4 11,146,000 70) - TBHRR B W
FEARI2N(ZBE——F :37%)WH<£ M@
WK o IR EMERRFEBHEFEM -

RB|EMR - AEEE R T ARRKEEER
HEHEFRTA -

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FET

Within one year —F R 509 668

The Group as lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases for its factories, offices and staff quarters. The
leases were negotiated for terms ranging from one to five
years, with the options to renew the leases when all terms
are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REBEREBEA

AEERBELEHEHEETHERERSE
WMAERBIES - ZSHENKHEHBESRN
F-ERF YHARBREREER ERNMER
RERIBHEE - 2SFHEMBESERIAEE

RIR& R - AL ERE T SE AR
3 31 EAR B 80 32 R SR B A AR R A
T

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT

Land and buildings: T REF
Within one year —FE R 6,698 9,393
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZENF (ERMFBEFEEN) 11,395 21,904
18,093 31,297
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. QB 8B IARR R
THE COMPANY

2013 2012
—ET—=F —ET—CF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FExT FET
Non-current asset EREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EE A RRRE 104,149 104,149
Current assets BN EE
Other receivables Ho b fE WSk IE 99 392
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NG (a) 922,226 920,024
Bank balances and cash RITHEBEIRS 766 644
923,091 921,060
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables E fth fE < 5RIE 1,812 1,619
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A B 2k18 (a) 318,328 285,575
Amount due to a jointly JE{S — Rk R I B8 50E
controlled entity (a) 3,104 3,104
323,244 290,298
Net current assets mBEEFE 599,847 630,762
Total assets less current liabilities BEAEBRLRHEE 703,996 734,911
Capital and reserves BAR K S
Share capital &N 77,854 77,854
Reserves i (b) 626,142 657,057
Total equity B EE 703,996 734,911
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries/a jointly

controlled entity

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The fair values of the
amounts at the end of the reporting period

approximated to the corresponding carrying

amounts due to their short-term maturities.

45. KRN TWEIFEAR R T (2)

(@) EW ESHBLE,—

FIE IR

B#5
HRAE

W5

3 5 42

KIBREER R RIZEREE -
RIFG R A E H AIH

BERRN AT EEEEETERES

Reserves (b) f#E
Retained
Share profits Capital
Share options (accumulated redemption
premium reserve loss) reserve Total
RE A
RoRE  BRERE (RETEBR) EFEERE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TAT THL TAT
At 1 August 2011 —g——%/\A-H 633,786 14,132 10988 2400 66132
Total comprehensive iﬂq%ﬁu&}\%@%ﬁ
income for the year = = 41,641 = 41,641
Transfer to reserve for BRRAEEREBE
value of share ERRLE
options forfeited = (830) 830 - -
Equity-settled share- EmERHRER
based transactions HEfR 5 - 802 - - 802
Dividend declared and ERERK
paid during the year BERMARE = = (46,712) = (46,712)
At 31 July 2012 and RZE——F
1 August 2012 TA=+—HkK
—2-——FN\RF—H 633,786 14,104 6,747 2,420 657,057
Total comprehensive FREAFATEE
expense for the year = = (7,559) = (7,559)
Transfer to reserve for BHORUERENEE
value of share options BERTEE
forfeited - (466) 466 - -
Dividend declared and FRNERKE RS
paid during the year = = (23,356) = (23,356)
At 31 July 2013 R-ZT—=4%
+A=+—H 633,786 13,638 (23,702) 2420 626,142
—E-cE4E OREERRERAT 209
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. TEMBEAT

Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company RNIMEER - AT EFEENEZEMEB R RIS

at the end of the reporting periods are as follows: R
Place of
incorporation/ Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity  Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment  shares held registered capital interest of the Group ~~ activities
AL/ FREER
(il PEEL HE R0 &R BRIRA/EREER ey IERH
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-Cf —F-Cf ZE-ZF —%-C

Ta Yang Silicone Rubber HongKong ~ Ordinary shares 1,000,000 shares 1,000,000 shares 100% 100%  Trading of
Industrial Company Limited i TRk of HK$1 each of HK$1 each silicone rubber
(' AEYBBIZARAA") 1,000,000 &K  1,000000REHKE BEVE

HEE1BRORGE E1ETORD

Chief Ocean Limited HongKong  Ordinary shares 1 share 1 share 100% 100%  Provision of

2N B LRk of HK§1each  of HKS1 each management
1REFE1 BTN REBE BT services
i3 ) RUEBTRRE

Ta Yang Group Limited BVI Ordinary shares 11,930,811 shares 11,930,811 shares *¥100% *100%  Investment
(' RFEEARATF") ZERNES Lak of USD1each  of USD1 each holding

11,930,811 BER 11930811 R RERR
BE1ETHES  EEIZTORS

Top View Investment Holdings BVI Ordinary shares 1 share 1 share 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (" BB REER RBRAES TER of USDleach  of USDT each BERR
R 1REE1XTH 1 REEIETH

ki )

Ta Yang Group (Macao Macau Ordinary shares 1 share 1 share 100% 100%  Trading of
Commercial Offshore) Limited 29 TRk of MOP 100,000 of MOP 100,000 silicone rubber
(AR RE(RFERREERE) each each BEVE
BRAR") 1 BRE{E100,000  18%E(E 100000

APBHRG RFEARIA
PT. Elegant Giant Indonesia Indonesia Contributed capital ~ USD8,000,000 USD8,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Il BABR 8,000000%7  8000,000%7 silicone rubber
REWR

Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$86,000,000  HK$86,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Rubber Industrial Company i BABR 86,000,007 86,000,007 silicone rubber
Limited (" REAFEBHR REYE
BRRA")

Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic The PRC Contributed capital ~ USD38,000,000  USD38,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Technology Company Limited EYN-vS 38,000,000%x  38,000000% 7T silicone rubber
("BMAFEFREERAR") HEYE

Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$5,000,000  HK$5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Plastic Industrial Company = HABR 5,000,000  5000,000%7C silicone rubber
Limited (" RRZF &2 &M HEYE

ERAA")
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #IZE—ZE—=F+ A=+—HItFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 46. TEMBAT (&)

47.

Place of
incorporation/ Class of Issued share capital/ Attributable equity ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment  shares held registered capital interest of the Group ~~ activities
HRAL/ ARBRG;
WEARER L Fris R R ERORE/EMER ey 3 IERH
2013 2012 2013 2012
“E-ZF - ZE--F —F-—F

Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$70,000,000  HK$68,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Plastic Industrial Company i HABK 70,000,000%7 68,000,007 silicone rubber
Limited (" REAF B 2EE HEYR
BRRA")

Bei Liu Jin Gu Electronic The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$50,000,000  HK$50,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Technology Co., Ltd. i HAER 50,000,0005% 50,000,000/ silicone rubber
("tREABTREERAR") HEYR

e Except for Ta Yang Group Limited, all the subsidiaries are i BRAFEEERRAIN - FIEHERREHAR

indirectly held by the Company.

Note: All entities established in the PRC are wholly-owned
foreign enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@)  During the year ended 31 July 2013, 276,768 (2012:
181,063) bonus shares with amount of approximately
HK$1,300,000 (2012: HK$920,000) are received from
Formosan.

(b) Sales proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$712,000
was not yet received as at 31 July 2013 and included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

()  During the year ended 31 July 2013, interest income
from a jointly controlled entity amounted to
approximately HK$199,000 (2012: HK$347,000) was
not yet received and included in the amounts due
from jointly controlled entities.

47.

NAEERA -

Kiet - FRAEPBEK N ERIGRIIEBELE -

ERINFARREER AT EZEAEEES
FEENAEEWNBAR - ARAREERRF
FIEMHE AR AN SEHFEREN LR

RERE SR I - BERH B A AHA T
AERITR BB -

FEFREXRS

() HEZZFT—=FtA=1T—HLFE"
AR A B M B 276,768 % (=T ——
4 181,063 0% ) 4T % + {E{E 491,300,000
BT (ZZF— =4 : 920,00077T) °

b) R-ZE-—Z=FtA=+—8  wARKD
KELEWE  BERREBOMAEREA
#1712,0008 7T » W EFH ATANFIA - &
T R HE e YRR

@ #HE_FT-=FtA=t—HLFE"
AW E R E — A RESE RO S
Y A #9199,00078 T( = F — = F:
347,000 7T ) - I B 5T A FE Y 2k B 2
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Five Years Financial Summary

L FETBERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2013 #EZE—Z—=+A=+—HILFE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 31 July

BELtA=+—HLFE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—EENFE —T-TF —T——F T ZT-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT T FET FET
Turnover o 620,251 812,093 787,348 624,525 551,326
(Loss) profit for the year ERX(ER) T (38,893) 67,266 42,644 (78,090) (131,919)
(Loss) profit for the year TRALEEFER
attributable to: (E18) =7 :
Owners of the Company  ANARIEA A (38,893) 67,266 42,644 (78,090) (131,616)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEFERRfEZE - - = = (303)
(38,893) 67,266 42,644 (78,090) (131,919)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES GeEEERERE
As at 31 July
REtA=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNE —F-TF —T——F T —B-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT T FET FBT
Total assets BEM#E 1,190,173 1,247,784 1,282,526 1,179,702 1,012,409
Total liabilities BB (119,248) (167,534) (144,373) (171,813) (144,621)
Total equity EmEE 1,070,925 1,080,250 1,138,153 1,007,889 867,788
Equity attributable to: IATNATEEH#ER :
Owners of the Company RNATER A 1,070,925 1,080,250 1,138,153 1,007,889 862,928
Non-controlling interests  FEIZR%#E =S = = = = 4,860
Total equity HEmEE 1,070,925 1,080,250 1,138,153 1,007,889 867,788
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Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Flat 28, 23/F, Metro Centre Il, 21 Lam Hing Street,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB R ERR AT EED O —HI23F 828 E
Tel &E& : (852) 3678 5088

Fax 8 : (852) 3678 5099

Website #34F : www.tayang.com
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